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57% OF THE COMPANY'S TOTAL WD-40
BRAND SALES COMES FROM OUTSIDE THE U.S.
AMERICAS

Products: WD-40, 3-IN-ONE, 2000 Flushes,
Spot Shot, Carpet Fresh, X-14, Lava

Up 0.2% vs. last year
Lubricant sales up 8.1% vs. last year
Household Product sales down 9.9% vs. last year

Hand Cleaners down 3.5% vs. last year

ASIA-PAC

Products: WD-40, 3-IN-ONE, No Vac, Solvol
Up 14.9% vs. last year

Asia sales up 8.0%

Australia sales up 29.0%

EUROPE
Products: WD-40, 3-IN-ONE, 1001
Up 22.0% vs. last year

Strong growth in UK, France, Germany, ltaly, Spain,
Eastern and Northern Europe and the Middle East

SALES BY SEGMENT

Americas
$187,146,000

Europe
$96,485,000

Asia-Pac
$24,185,000

Year over year change in global FOREX
positively impacted saies by $9.3 million or 3%
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“WE ALL SEE ONE MARKET, AND IT’S GLOBAL.”

G'day

Though | shared this insight with you in my last share-
holder letter, this year it is even more relevant. |n fact,
that's why we are featuring flags on the cover of this
Annual Report. It's our way of paying tribute to the many
people — in countries all over the world — who are part
of our ever-expanding global market.

To see how far we've come, let’s take a look back at 1998
for just a moment. That was the year we embarked on

a diversification strategy by “brand, borders, and trade
channels™. Our sales, totaling about $138 million
worldwide, consisted predominantly of lubricants. Fifty-
six percent of sales came from the U.S and 44% percent
of sales came from other markets.

As we look at our business today, 2007 was a record
year for us — with $308 million in net sales. Our lubricant
sales comprise 70% of our total business, and 58% of
these sales are in markets outside of the U.S. Compared
to 1998, cur lubricant sales outside of the U.S. have
doubled, and we have a sustainable household products
segment in the U.S. and a growing household products
segment in the United Kingdom and Australia.

INNOVATION

Here at WD-40, we define innovation as “creation in a
better form" and we continually strive to deliver it to our
customers,

+ It has been gratifying to see the development and
launch of the WD-40 Smart Straw® in 2007. Smart
Straw is an innovative delivery system that enhances
value for our consumers. In an effort to deliver this
value to as many consumers as possible in the U.S.,
we have decided to incorporate the Smart Straw
technology into most of our WD-40® can sizes during
the coming year.

+ As part of our ongoing commitment to develop environ-
mentally friendly products, this year we introduced
Spot Shot “PetClean™" an innovative product that is
not only non-toxic but also biodegradable.

RENOVATION

Renovation, which we define as the process of “improving
existing products,” remains another key focus for us.

+ This year we re-launched the X-14 The Bathroom X-pert®
product line, positioning it as the “bathroom expert” ~—
capable of helping consumers with a wide range of
bathroom cleaning chores.

+ Qur 3-In-One® professional line has experienced
progressive change this year with the addition of a
garage door lube product that incorporates the Smart
Straw technology.

+ In 2007, we refreshed the packaging and marketing
communications in our Carpet Fresh® product line, and
in the coming year we will be revitalizing our Lava®
product packaging.

This past year we also investigated new and different
ways of going to market. For example, we are currently
experimenting with Direct Response TV as a vehicle for
introducing new products to more consumers.

A YEAR OF ACCOMPLISHMENTS

Even with the continued pressure of increased raw mate-
rial costs, our gross margins have improved , thanks to
the focus of our people.

We also opened our subsidiary in China ahead of schedule
and under budget — demonstrating our commitment

to develop our business in those high potential markets
we've identified.

Business is not without risk, so0 you should be continually
aware of some of the areas that could affect the compa-
ny. Litigation in the U.S. continues to be an ever-increas-
ing part of soclety, and our business along with the entire
business community will always have legal exposure.
Please be sure to review the complete list of risk factors
contained in our Form 10-K,

| believe we have made solid progress on our strategy by
expanding our global reach, increasing distribution in new
trade channels, and expanding our portfalio of brands.
This has resulted in a more robust global business and
record sales and earnings, as you will see in the 10-K
section of this Annual Report.

In closing, | want to thank you for giving me the op-

portunity to lead a great team of people, to care for and
expand our great brands and to grow a great company.

Cth

Garry Ridge
President & CEQ
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Stock Performance Graph

The following graph compares the cumulative total stockholder return on the Company's Common Shares
with the cumulative total return of a Peer Group of consumer product companies, the Standard & Poor’s 500
Composite Stock Index (“S & P 500"), the Standard & Poor’s Small Cap 600 Composite Stock Index (S & P
600"") and the Russell 2000 Composite Stock [ndex (“Russell 2000”) for the five fiscal years ending August 31,
2007. The comparison assumes $100 invested on August 31, 2002 in the Company’s Common Shares and in
each of the indices.

COMPARISON OF FIVE-YEAR CUMULATIVE RETURNS
WD-40 Company, a Peer Group and the S&P 500 Index, S & P Small Cap 600 Index, Russell 2000 Index.
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Year ended August 31
2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007
WD-40Company ........ ... it 100.00 11406 11474 119.21 14801 15223
S&PSO0 ... .. e e 100.00 112.07 12490 14059 153.08 176.25
S&PSmallCap600..... ... ... ...l 100.00 122.70 14093 17827 19098 218.24
Russell2000 ...... ...t 100.00 129.08 143.73 17694 193.50 215.48
Peer Group . . ..o ieviiii it iai i ana e 10000 10595 117.68 12813 13926 154.62

The Peer Group returns are based upon beginning-of-year market capitalization weighting of the cumulative
| returns for the following 11 consumer product companies: Alberto-Culver Co., Church & Dwight, Inc., Enesco
Group, Inc., Kimball International, Lancaster Colony Corp., La-Z-Boy Chair Co., National Presto Industries,
Inc., Oneida Ltd., RPM Inc.-Ohio, Scotts Company and Valspar Corp.
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WD-40 COMPANY

1061 Cudahy Place
San Diego, California 92110

NOTICE OF ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS

To the Stockholders:

The 2007 Annual Meeting of Stockholders will be held at the Mission Valley Hilton Hotel, 901 Camino del Rio
South, San Diego, California 92108, on Tuesday, December 11, 2007, at 2:00 p.m. for the following purposes:

I. To elect a Board of Directors for the ensuing year and until their successors are elected and qualified;
2. To approve the WD-40 Company 2007 Stock [ncentive Plan;

3. To ratify the appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as the Company’s independent registered
public accounting firm for the fiscal year 2008; and

4. To consider and act upon such other business as may properly come before the meeting.
Ouly the stockholders of record at the close of business on October 18, 2007 are entitled to vote at the meeting.
By Order of the Board of Directors

Maria M. Mitchell
Secretary

San Diego, Califomnia
November 8, 2007




PROXY STATEMENT
GENERAL INFORMATION

This Proxy Statement is furnished in connection with the solicitation of proxies by the Board of Directors of
WD-40 Company for use at its Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be held on December 11, 2007, and at any
postponements or adjournments thereof, This Proxy Statement and enclosed form of Proxy are first sent to
stockholdess on or about November 8, 2007.

At the meeting, the stockholders of WD-40 Company will vote to elect the Board of Directors for the ensuing
year, 1o approve the WD-40 Company 2007 Stock Incentive Plan, and to ratify the selection of
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as the Company’s independent registered public accounting firm. Detailed
information concerning these matters is set forth below. Management knows of no other business to come before
the meeting,

The close of business on Qctober 18, 2007 is the record date for stockholders entitled to notice of and to vote at
the Annual Meeting of Stockholders of WD-40 Company. On October 18, 2007, WD-40 Company had
outstanding 16,859,720 shares of $.001 par value common stock. Stockhotders of record entitled to vote al the
meeting will have one vote for each share so held on the matters to be voted upon. A majority of the outstanding
shares will constitute a quorum at the meeting. Abstentions and broker non-voles are counted for purposes of
determining the presence or absence of a quorum.

If the enclosed form of Proxy is properly executed and returned, the shares represented thereby will be voted in
accordance with the instructions specified thercon. Except as described herein with respect to broker non-votes,
if no specification is made, the shares will be voted by the proxy holder as set forth on the Proxy. A Proxy may
be revoked by attendance at the meeting or by filing a Proxy bearing a later date with the Secretary of the
Company.

The cost of soliciting proxies will be borne by the Company. Solicitations other than by mail may be made by
telephone or in person by employees of the Company for which the expense will be nominal.




PRINCIPAL SECURITY HOLDERS

The following table sets forth information concerning those persons known to the Company to be the beneficial
owners of more than 5% of the common stock of the Company,

Amount and Natore
Of Beneflclst
Ownershp Percent
Name and Address of Bepeficial Owner October 13, 2007 of Ciass
Allianz. Global Investors of America LP 1,446.660" 8.6%

Newport Beach, CA 92660

NWQ Investment Management Co, LLC 1,166,4032 6.9%
2049 Century Park East 16* Floor
Los Angeles, CA 90067

I Barclays Global Investors UK Holdings Limited 1,007,678} 6.0%
1 Churchill Place
Canary Wharf
London, England

Mario L. Crivello 898,593+ 53%
San Dicgo. CA

I
i 630 Newport Center Dr. Suite 250

' Asof June 30, 2007, Allianz Global Investors of America LP ("Allianz”) filed a report on Form 13F with the Securities and Exchange
Commission to report beneficial ownership of 1,446,660 shares. Allianz reported shared investment diseretion with respect 1o all shares,
sole voting authority with respect to 373,200 shares, shared voting suthority with respect to 1,048,060 shares and 1 o voting authority
with respect to 25,400 shares. Beneficial ownership information as of October 17, 2007 is unavailable,

? Asof June 30, 2007, NWQ [nvestment Management Co., LLC ("NWQ") filed a report on Form 13F with the Sccuritics and Exchange
Commission 1o report beneficial ownership of 1,166,403 shares, NWQ reparted shared investment discretion with jespect to all shares,
shared voting authority with respect to 990,252 shares and no voting authority with respect to 176,151 shares, Bencficial ownership
information as of October 17, 2007 is unavailuble.

3 Asof June 30, 2007, Barclays Global Investors UK Holdings Limited (*Barclays™) filed a report on Form 13F with the Securities and
Exchange Commission to report beneficial ownership of 1,007,678 shares. Barclays reported shared invesumentt dit cretion with respect to
all shares, sole voling authority with respect to 874,300 shares and no voting asthority with respect (o 133,378 shates. Beneficial
ownership information as of Dctober 17, 2007 is unavailable.

*  Mr. Crivello has sele voting and investment power over 766,404 shares held in trust for the benefit of others. He alio has sole voting and
investment power over 14,780 shares held ax custodian for others and 101,609 shares held direetly, Mr. Crivello ali.o has the right to
acquire 15,800 shares upon exercise of stock options.




ITEM NO. 1
NOMINEES FOR ELECTION AS DIRECTORS
AND SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF MANAGEMENT

Unless marked to the contrury, the Proxies received will be voted for the ¢lection of the nine nominces named
below to serve as Directors until the next Annual Meeting of Stockholders and until their successors are elected
or appointed. [n the event any nominee is unable or declines 1o serve as a Director at the time of the Annual
Meeting, any proxy granted to vote for such Director will be voted for a nominee designated by the present
Board of Directors to fill such vacancy.

The nominees for election to the Board of Directors who receive a plurality the votes cast for the election of
Directors by the shares present, in person or by proxy, shall be elected as Directors. Holders of common stock are
not entitled to cumulate their votes in the election of Directors. Withheld votes and broker non-votes (which are
treated as “‘withheld” votes) are not counted as votes in favor of any nominee. Since the nominees receiving the
most votes will be elected as Directors, withheld votes and broker non-voles will have no effect upon the
outcome of the election.

Article [11, Section 2 of the Bylaws of the Company, approved by stockholders on December 14, 1999, provides
that the authorized number of Directors of the Company shall be not less than nine nor more than twelve until
changed by amendment of the Certificate of Incorporation or by a bylaw duly adopted by the stockholders. The
exact number of Directors is to be fixed from time to time by a bylaw or amendment thereof duly adopted by the
stockholders ar by the Board of Directors. Gary L. Luick will retire from the Board of Directors as of the date of
the annual meeting of stockholders. The number of dircctors was fixed at nine effective upon the expiration of
Mr. Luick's term of office by resolution of the Board of Directors adopted on October 16, 2007.

Director Independence

The Board of Directors has determined that each director nominee other than Garry O. Ridge is an independent
director as defined in Rule 4200(a)(15) of the Marketplace Rules of the Nasdag Stock Market, Inc. (the “Nasdaq
Rules™.)




Security Ownership of Direciors and Executive Officers

The following table sets forth certain information, including beneficial ownership of the Cempany’s common
stock, for the nine nominees, for the executive officers named in the Summary Compensation Table on Page 22
of this proxy statement, and for all Directors and executive officers as a group.

Amount and Nature of

Beneficia) O
October 18, 2007
Dircctor

M 25: Principal Occapation Shiwe !_h‘ smber  Percent of Class
John C. Adams, Jr. 59  Investor; Retired Chairman and CEQ, AutoZone. inc. 2001 70,5262 .
Giles H, Bateman 62 Investor 2003 15,5083 .
Peter D, Bewley 61 Invesior, Revred General Counsel, The Clorox Company 2005 12,7814 .
Richard A. Collato 64 President & CEQ, YMCA of San Diego County 2003 17,717 *
Mario L. Crivello 67  Invester 1994 868, 59325 5.3%
Linda A. Lang 49 Chairman & CEQ, Jack in the Box, Inc. 2004 15,4426
Kenneih E. Ofson 71 investor. Former Chairman and CEQ, Praxima Corporation 2000 20,776*
Garry O. Ridge 51 President and CEQ, WD-40 Company 1997 50,9327
Neal E. Schmale 61  Chairman of the Board, WD-40 Company: President and COQ, 2001 20,5262 *

Sempra Encrgy
*  Less than onc (1) percent.
' All shares owned directly unless otherwise indicated.
i Mr. Adams, Mr. Crivello, Mr, Qlson and Mr. Schmale each have 1he right 1o acquire 15,800 shares upon the & xercise of stock options.
¥ Mr. Bateman and Mr. Collato cach have the right to acquire 13,800 shares upon the exercise of stock oplions,
4 Mr. Bewley has the right to zcquire 9,800 shares upon the exercise of stock options.

3 Mr. Crivello has sole voting and investment power over 766,404 shares held in trust for the benefit of others. He alio has sote vating and
investment power over 14,780 shares held as custodian for others and 101,609 shares held directly.

¢ Ms. Lang has the eight (0 acquire 11,800 shares upon the exercise of siock options,

1 Mr, Ridge has the right to acquire 137,580 shares upon exercise of stock options. Mr. Ridge has voting und investnicnt power over 992
shares held under the Compuny’s 401(k) plan.




Amount and Nature of
Bentficial Ownership

October 18, 2007
Director _ Perovotof
Executlve (fTicer 13_2 Principal Occnpation Since Number Class
Michael L. Freeman 53 Division President, the Americas, WD-40 Company NIA 55,0082 *
Michael J, {rwin 44 Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer, WD-40 Company ~ N/A 53,6417 b
Graham P. Milger 52 Execulive Vice President, Global Development, Chief Brunding Offices.  N/A 79058+ *
WD-40 Company

William B. Noble 48  Managing Director Europe, WD-40 Company Lid. (U.K.} N/A 47,630 .
All Directors and 1.447,280% £3%

Executive Officers

as o Group

-

Less than ane (1) percent.
' Al shares owned dircctly unless otherwise indicaied.

2 Mr, Freeman has the right to acquire 44,430 shares upon cxercise of stock optiens. Mr. Freeman has voting and investment power over
1,819 shares held under the Company’s 401(k) plan.

3 M. Irwin has the right to acquire: 48,550 shurcs upon exercise of stock options. Mr. Irwin has voting and investment power over 691
shares held undder the Company’s 401{k) plan.

4 Mr. Milner has the right to acquire 70,630 shares upon exercise of stock options. Mr. Milner has voting and investment power over 1,364
shares held under the Company™s 401(k) plan.

5 Mr. Noble has the right 1o acquire 46, 130 sharcs upon exercise of stack options.

*  Toul includes the rights of directors and executive officers 10 acquire 513,610 shares upon exercise of stock options and 4.866 shares
held by exccutive officers under the Company’s 401(k) plan.

Nominees for Election as Directors

JYohn C. Adams, Jr. was elected 10 the Board of Directors in 2001. Mr. Adams served as President and Chief
Executive Officer of AutoZone, Inc. from 1996 until 1998, then serving as Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer until his retirement in 2001. He previously served as President of the Miami division of Malone & Hyde,
Inc., AutoZone's former parent company from 1984 until 1990. Mr. Adams was an owner of Nicotiana
Enterprises, Inc., a food distribution company, from 1990 until 1995. Mr. Adams is a director of Tractor Supply
Company.

Giles H. Bateman was elected to the Board of Directors in 2003. Mr. Bateman was a co-founder and Chief
Financial Officer of Price Club from 1976 until 1991, Mr. Bateman served as director and chairman of
CompUSA, Inc. from 1994 until 2000. Mr. Bateman is a director of Life Time Fitness, Inc. and United PanAm
Financial Corp.

Peter D. Bewley was appointed to the Board of Directors in 2005. Mr. Bewley was the Senior Vice President-
General Counsel & Secretary of The Clorox Company frem 1998 1o 2003.

Richard A. Collato was clecied to the Board of Dircctors in 2003. M. Collato is President & CEO of the YMCA
of San Diego County. Mr. Coltato is a director of Sempra Energy and Surge Global Energy Inc.

Mario L. Crivello was elected to the Board of Directors in 1994. Mr. Crivello is retired, having been the
managing owner and master of Tuna Purse Seiners.

Linda A. Lang was elected to the Board of Directors in 2004. Ms, Lang has served as director, President and '
Chief Operating Officer of Jack in the Box, Inc. since 2003. Ms. Lang was elecied Chairman of the Board &
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Chief Executive Officer of Jack in the Box, Inc. as of October 2, 2005. Over the past 16 year:, Ms, Lang has held
the offices of Executive Vice President, Senior Vice President Marketing, Vice President anc. Regional Vice
President, Southern California Region, Vice President Marketing and Vice President of Prodcts, Promotions and
Consumer Research at Jack in the Box, Inc.

Kenneth E. Olson was elected to the Board of Directors in 2000. Mr. Olson served as Chairman and CEO of
Proxima Corporation, a digital imaging products company, from 1990 10 1998. He is a director of Digirad
Corporation.

Garry O. Ridge joined WD-40 Company in 1987 as Managing Director, WD-40 Company (Australia) Pty.
Limited and he was responsible for Company operations throughout the Pacific and Asia. Mr. Ridge transferred to
the corporate office in 1994 as Director International Operations and was elected Vice Presidem — International
in 1995. He was clecied to the position of Executive Vice President/Chief Operating Officer in 1996 and he was
named President and Chief Executive Officer in 1997. He was also elected to the Board of Directors in 1997. Prior
to joining WD-40 Company Mr. Ridge was Managing Director of Mermax Pacific Pty. Lid. and held a number of
senior management positions with Hawker Pacific Pty. Ltd. {a Hawker Siddeley PLC Group Company) which was
a licensee for WD-40 until 1988.

Neal E, Schmale was elected to the Board of Directors in 2001, Mr. Schmale was named Chzirman of the Board
in 2004. Mr. Schmale has served as President and COO of Sempra Energy since January 2006. Previously, he
was Executive Vice President and CFO of Sempra Energy from 1998 through 2005. Mr. Sch:nale is a direclor of
Sempra Energy and Murphy Oil Corporation,

Board of Directors Meetings, Committees and Annual Meeting Attendance

The Board of Directors is charged by the stockholders with managing the business affairs and exercising the
corporate power of the Company. The Board of Directors relies on the following standing committees to assist in
carrying out the Board of Directors’ responsibilities: the Audit Committee, the Compensution Committee, the
Corporate Governance Committee and the Finance Committee. Each of the comuniitees has a written charter
approved by the Board of Directors and such charters are available on WD-40 Company’s web site at
www.wd40.com on the “Officers & Directors” page under the Investor Relations tab. There were four scheduled
meetings of the Board of Directors during the lasi fiscal year. All directors serving for the full fiscal year
attended at least 73 percent of the aggregate of the total number of meetings of the Board anc. of all committees
on which the director served. The Board of Directors holds an annual organizational meezing on the date of the
Annual Meeting of Stockholders. All directors are expected 1o attend the Annual Meeting,. Al the last Annual
Meeting of Stockholders, all directors were present.

Board of Directors Compensation

Director compensation is set by the Board of Directors upon the recommendation of the Corporate Governance
Committee. The Corporate Governance Committee conducts an annual review of director compensation,
including consideration of surveys of companies considered comparable to the Company in total revenues and
market capitalization. The independent compensation advisor serving the Compensation Committee of the Board
of Directors, Compensia, Inc., has also provided guidance o the Corporate Governance Commitiee with respect
10 director compensation recommendations. For fiscal year 2007, directors received compensation for services as
directors pursuant to a director compensation pelicy which is reviewed annually. As approved on December 12,
2006, the director compensation policy provided for compensation of directors as follows.: For 2007, each
non-employee director is entitled to receive a base annual fee of $32,000 for services provided from the date of
the Company’s annual mecting to the next annuval meeting. The Chairman of the Board receives an additional
annual fee of $14,000. Non-employee directors receive additional cash compensation for service on committees.
The Chairman of the Audit Committee receives $16,000 and each other member of the Audit Committee receives
$8,000. Each Chairman of the Compensation Commitiee, the Corporate Governance Commillee and the Finance
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Committee receives $8,000 and each other member of those committees receives $4,000. All annual fees are
payable in March. For service during the year, non-employee directors also received non-qualified stock options
to purchase 3,800 shares of the Company’s common stock. The options were granted on the date of the
Company’s Annual Meeting in 2006 pursuant to the Company's 1990 Incentive Stock Option Plan. The stock
options are immediately exercisable with a termination date ten years from the grant date. The exercise price for
options granted ta the directors was $32.78, equal 1o the closing price of the Company's shares as of the day of
the Annua) Meeting.

The Company has maintained the 1999 Non-Employee Director Restricted Stock Plan (the *Director Stock
Plan”) providing for the issuance of shares of restricted common stock of the Company 1o each non-employee
member of the Board of Directors. Shares have been issued under the Director Stock Plan in lieu of cash
compensation according to an election made by the director prior to November 30th of the year prior to the year
of service. A director who held shares of the Company having a value of at least $50,000 has been entitled to
elect 10 receive the entire annual director’s fee in cash. Otherwise, directors received restricted stock in lieu of
$5,500 of cash compensation and they have been permitted to elect to receive restricted stock in lieu of the
balance of their base annual fee in increments of $5,500. The restricted shares have been issued in accordance
with a director's election as soon as practicable after the first day of March of the year of service. The number of
shares issued is equal to the amount of compensation to be paid in shares divided by 90% of the closing price of
the Company's shares as of the first business day of March.

Restricted shares issued to a director do not become vested for resale for a period of five ycars or until the
director’s retirement from the Board following the director’s 65ih birthday. Unless a director has reached age 65.
the shares ase subject 1o forfeiture if, during the five ycar vesting period, the director resigns from scrvice as a
director,

The Company also maintains a Director Contributions Fund from which each incumbent director has the right, at
a specified time cach fiscal year, to designate $6,000 in charitable contributions to be made by the Company 10
properly qualified (under Internal Revenue Code Section 501(c)(3)) charitable organizations.




The following Director Compensation table provides information concerning director compensation eamned by
each non-employee director for services rendered in fiscal year 2007. Amounts earned and reported in the
Director Compensation table for each director are dependent upon each director’s ¢lection to “eceive discounted
shares in lieu of all or pan of the director’s annual base fee wnder the Director Stock Plan as described above and
on the various committees on which each director served as a member or as chairman during ihe fiscal year.

DIRECTOR COMPENSATION
Fiscal Year 2007
Fres Egrmed ar Optin All Other
Paid in Cash Stock Awards  Awmds  Compensation Towl
NI__ME (P {$¥ 3 [£ 7 %
John C. Adams, Ir. $41,330 $0 $26.076 $6,000 $74,006
Giles H. Bateman $53,192 $0 $26,676 $6,000 $85.868
Peter D. Bewley $47.989 30 $26,676 $6.000 $80,665
Richard A. Collato $48.939 $0 $26,676 $6.000 $81,665
Mario L. Crivello $35.500 50 $26.676 $6.000 $68,176
Linda A. Lang $46,989 $0 $26.676 $6.000 $79.665
Gary L. Luick $42,125 $0 $26,676 £6,000 $74.801
Kenneth E. Olson $42,500 50 $26.076 $6.000 $75.176
Neal E. Schmale $50.330 50 $26.676 $6,000 $83.006

I For services rendered during fiscal year 2007, dircctors received restricied shares of the Company's common stozk in ficu of all or part of
their base annual fees pursuant (o their respective elections under the Director Stock Plan (o5 described in the nurative preceding the
Director Compensation wble) as follows: John C. Adams, Jr. and Neal E. Schmzle received shares valued &1 $8,>30; Giles H. Bateman
received shares valued o1 $16,817; Peter D. Bewley, Richard A, Collato and Linda A. Lang received shares valued at $34.989; and Gary
L. Luick received shares valued a1 $1,524.

2 No amounts are included in the Stock Awards column since all of the shares awarded to the directors pursucnt to the Director Stock Plan
were awarded pursuan! 1o elections to receive shares in licu of all or part of the directors” base annual fees. ‘The alue of the shares
received by each director pursuunt to their respective elections to receive shares is included in the Fees Earned or Paid in Cash column
and detailed in footnote 1.

3 Non-qualified stock options 1o acquire 3.800 shares of the Company*s common stock were granted 1o the directors on December 12,
2006 at an exercise price of $32.78 per share. The options were fully vested upon the date of grant. The Option Z.wards fair value of
$7.02 per shaye for such options has been determined as of the gran date of December 12, 2006 using the Black- Scholes Option
Vajuation mode). The following assumptions were used in determining the value: (i) o dividend yield of 3.05%: «ii) expected volatility of
0.238%: (iii) a 5.61-year risk free interest rate of 4.45%: and (iv) an expected option termflife of 5.61 years. The 1eported amounts equal
the grant date fair value for the stock options computed under FAS 123R since the options were fully vested as of the date of grant. The
outstanding oprions for cach director as of the end of the fiscal year is reparted wilh respect W such director’s security ownership as of
QOctober |8, 2007 on page 4 of this proxy statcment.

*  Amounts represent charitable conuributions made by the Company as designated by each non-cmployee director pursuant to the
Company’s Director Contribution Fund,




Stockholder Communications with Board of Directors

Stockholders may send communications to the Board of Directors by submitting a letter addressed to: wD-40
Company, Corporate Secretary, 1061 Cudahy Place, San Diego. CA 92110

The Board of Directors has instructed the Corporate Secretary to forward such communications to the chairman
of the Board of Directors. The Board of Directors has also instructed the Corporate Secretary to review such
comespondence and, at the Corporate Secrelary’s discretion, 10 not forward correspondence which is deemed ofa
commercial or frivolous nature or inappropriate for Board of Director consideration. The Corporate Secretary
may also forward the stockholder communication within the Company to another department 1o facilitate an
appropriate response.

Committees
falrator Audlt Compenastion | Governance Flnanre
John C. Adams, Jr. v 4
Giles H. Baicman Chairman v
Peter D. Bewley 4 Chairman
Richard A. Collato i Chairman
Mario L. Crivello v
Linda A. Lang v Chairman
Gary L. Luick v v
Kenneth E. Olson v 4
Garry O. Ridge
Neal E. Schmele v
Number of Meetings Held in Fiscal Year 2007 4 4 4 4

Corporate Governance Committee

The Corporate Govemnance Committee is comprised of Peter D. Bewley {Chairman), John C. Adams, Jr,,
Kenneth E. Olson and Neal I. Schmale. The Corporate Governance Committee atso functions as the Company’s
nominating commitiee and is comprised exclusively of independent directors as defined in the Nasdaq Rules. The
Corporate Governance Committee met four times during the last fiscal year.

The Corporate Governance Committee acts in conjunction with the Board of Directors to ensure that a regular
evaluation is conducted of succession plans, performance, independence, and of the qualifications and integrity
of the Board of Directors. The Corporate Govemance Commitice also reviews the applicable skilis and
characteristics required of nominees for election as directors. The objective is to balance the composition of the
Board of Directors to achieve a combination of individuals of different backgrounds and experiences. In
evaluating the suitability of nominees, the Corporate Governance Committee takes into account many factors,
including the following: whether the candidate is currently or has recently been an exccutive officer at a publicly
wraded company: whether the candidate has substantial background in matters related to the Company's products
or markels, in particular, supply chain management, information technology and marketing; and whether the
candidate has substantial international business experience, a substantial financial background or is serving as a
director at one or more publicly traded companics.

In determining whether to recommend a director for re-clection, the Corporate Governance Commitiee considers
the director's past attendance at meetings, results of annual evaluations and the director’s participation in and
anticipated future contributions to the Board of Directors, A dircctor who will have reached the age of 72 prior to
the date of the next annual meeting of siockholders will not be recommended for re-election at that meeting.




The Corporate Governance Committee reviews new Board of Director nominees through a series of intemal
discussions, reviewing available information, and interviewing selected candidates, Generally, candidates for
nomination to the Board of Directors have been suggested by directors or employees. The Company does not
currently employ a search firm or third party in connection with seeking or evaluating candidates.

The Corporate Governance Committee will consider director candidates recommended by security holders under
the same criteria as other candidates described above. Nominations may be submitted by letter addressed 10
WD-40 Company Corporate Governance Committee, Corporate Secretary, 1061 Cudahy Place, San Diego, CA
92110.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee is comprised of Giles H. Bateman (Chairman), Richard A. Collato, Gary L. Luick and
Kenneth E. Olson. Four meetings were held during the last fiscal year 10 review quarterly financial reports, to
consider the annual audit and other audit services and to review the audit with the independent registered public
accounting firm after its completion. The Board of Directors has determined that Mr. Bateman is an “audit
committee financial expert” as defined by regulations adopted by the Securities and Exchange Commission.

Mr. Bateman and each of the other members of the Audit Committee is an independent director as defined in the
Nasdag Rules. Each member of the Audit Committee also satisfies the requirements for service on the Audit
Committee as set forth in Rule 4350(d)}(2) of the Nasdaq Rules.

The Audit Committee has oversight responsibility for review, approval or ratification of rclated party
transactions involving the potential for conflicts of interest. The Audit Committee relies upon the Company’s
disclosure controls and procedures adopted pursuant to Exchange Act rules for the purpos: of assuring that
matters requiring disclosure, including such related party transactions, are brought to the auention of
management and the Audit Commitiee on a timely basis. Specifically, the Audit Committee relies on a review by
the Corporate Governance Committee of individual questionnaires completed by all direciors for the purpose of
identifying matters that may affect the independence of directors and the existence of related party transactions as
defined in relevant rules promulgated under the Exchange Act and in the Nasdaq rules. Cenflict of interest
questionnaires are also completed by each of the Company’s executive officers for review by management and
reporting to the Audit Committee. No formal written policy for Audit Committee's oversight obligation has been
adopted, but the actions of the committee in conducting its review at least annually is set forth in minutes of the
meetings of the Audit Commitiee.

The Audit Committee also has responsibility for the selection, appointment and oversight of the independent
registered public accounting firm for the Company. A separate report of the Audit Committee is set forth below.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT

Each year the Board of Directors appoints an Audit Committee to fuifill regulatory requirements and to assist the
Board in oversight of the Company’s financial reporting, internal control functions and audit process. Each
member of the Audit Committee meeis the independence requirements set by the Nasdaq Stock Market.

The responsibilities of the Audit Committee include the selection and appointment of a independent registered
public accounting firm to be hired as the Company’s independent accountants. The Audit Committee is also
responsible for recommending to the Board that the Company’s consolidated financial statements be included in
its annual report on Form 10-K.

With respect to the preparation and audit of the Company’s consolidated financial statements, management is
responsible for the preparation of the financial statements; the establishment of accounting and financial
reporting principles; the establishment of disclesure controls and procedures; the establishment of internal
control over financial reporting; the evaluation of the effectiveness of both disclosure controls and procedures
and internal control over financial reporting; and the evaluation of changes in internal control over financial
reporting that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, internal control over
financiaf reporting. The Company’s independent registered public accounting firm is responsible for performing
an independent audit of the consolidated financial statements; expressing an opinion as to whether the
consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America; and expressing an opinion as (0 the effectiveness of the Company’s
interna) control over financial reporting.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the consolidated financial statements of the Company for the fiscal year
ended August 31, 2007. The Audit Committee has discussed the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements with management and with the Company’s independent registered public accounting firm,
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLF, and the Audit Committee has met separately with PricewaterhouscCoopers LLP
and with management to discuss issues relating to the preparation and audit of the financial statements.

For the fiscal year ended August 31, 2007, management has completed the documentation, testing and evaluation
of the Company’s system of internal control over financial reporting as required by Section 404 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002. The Audit Committee has been kept apprised of management's activities in the completion of
such work and evaluation and the Audit Committee has provided oversight and advice with respect to the process
undertaken by management. The Audit Committee will continue to oversee such work being undeniaken by the
Company for the fiscal year ending August 31, 2008.

The Audit Committee has taken the following steps in making its recommendation that the Company’s financial
statements be included in its annual report on Form 10-K for the fiscal ycar ended August 31, 2007:

1. Atregularly scheduled meetings of the Audit Committee, management and PricewaterhouseCoopers
LLP provided periodic reports as to the work undertaken by the Company to complete the
documentation, testing and evaluation of the Company’s system of internal contro} over financial
reporting. Upon completion of such work and upon preparation of the Company’s consolidated
financial statements for the year ended August 31, 2007, the Audit Committee reviewed a report
provided by management on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial
reporting.

2. The Audit Committee discussed with PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, the Company’s independent
registered public accounting firm for fiscal year ended August 31, 2007, those matters required 10 be
discussed by Statement on Auditing Standards No. 61 and PCAOB Auditing Standard No. 2, including
information concerning the scope and results of the audit. These communications and discussions are
intended to assist the Audit Committee in overseeing the financial reporting and disclosure process.
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3. The Audit Committee discussed with PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP its indeperndence and received
from PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP a leuter concerning independence as required under applicable
independence standards for auditors of public companies. This discussion and Jisclosure helped the
Audit Committee in evalualing such independence.

4, The Audit Committee reviewed and discussed with the Company’s management and
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, the Company's audited consolidated balance sheet at August 31, 2007,
and consolidated statements of income, cash flows and stockholders’ equity for the fiscal year ended
August 31, 2007,

5.  The Audit Commitiee has reviewed PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP's Report of indcpendent Registered
Public Accounting Firm and Management's Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting
included in the Company’s annual report on Form 10-K.

Based on the reviews and discussions explained above, the Audit Commitiee recommended to the Board that the
Company's financial statements be included in its annual report on Form 10-K for its fiscal year ended

August 31, 2007, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP has been selected to serve as the Company’s independent
registered public accounting firm for the fiscal year ending August 31, 2008.

Giles H. Bateman (Chairman)
Richard A. Collato

Gary L. Luick

Kenneth E. Olson

Finance Committee

The Finance Committee is comprised of Linda A. Lang (Chairman), John C. Adams, Jr. and Jiles H. Bateman.
Four meetings of the Finance Committec were held during the last fiscal year, The Finance Committee is
appointed by the Board for the primary purpose of assisting the Board in overseeing financial matters of
importance to the company, including matters relating to acquisitions, investment policy, capital structure, and
dividend policy. The Finance Committee also reviews the Company's annual and long-term linancial strategies |
and objectives.

Compensation Committee
Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation

The Compensation Commitiee is comprised of Richard A. Collato (Chairman), Peter D. Bew'ey, Mario L.
Crivello, Linda A. Lang and Gary L. Luick, all of whom are independent directors as defined under the Nasdag
Rules. The former Chairman of the Compensation Committee, John C. Adams, Jr., served as Chairman during
first quarter of the last fiscal year. All Compensation Commitiee members meet the governing; criteria for
independence, including those of The NASDAQ Stock Market and regulations under Section 162(m) of ihe
Internal Revenue Code of 1986 and Section 16 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the “Exchange Act™).
The Compensation Committee met four times during the Jast fiscal year.




COMPENSATION DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

WD-40 Company’s Compensation Discussion and Analysis addresses the following topics with respect to
Named Executive Officer (“NEO") compensation processes and decisions:

Governance of Executive Officer Compensation Program

The purpose of The Company's Board of Dircctors’ Compensation Commiitee (the “Committee™) is to assist the
Board with compensation- and benefits-related issues related to the Chief Executive Officer (CEQ) and the other
NEOs referred to in the Summary Compensation Table appearing on page 22 of this proxy statement. The
Committee is responsible for establishing the Company’s overall compensation strategy, with support from
management and consultants. The Committee also has responsibilities in connection with administration of the
Company's equity compensation plans.

With respect to compensation of the CEQ and the other NEOs, the Committee undertakes the following
responsibilities:

+ Develop and review employment agreements, salaries, incentive plan panicipation, severance
agreements, change-in-control agreements, equity compensation plan participation and employee benefit
plan participation for the CEQ and other NEOs.

+ Conduct an annual review of corporate goals and objectives relevant to the CEO’s compensation and
evaluate the CEQ’s performance in light of those goals and objectives.

« Recommend to the Board for its approval, the annual compensation package (including base salary,
incentive plan participation, equity compensation awards and other berefits) for the CEQ, taking into
consideration CEO performance, Company performance and CEO compensation fevels al comparable
companies.

« Conduct an annual review, with the assistance of the CEO, of corporate goals and objectives relevant to
the compensation of the other NEOs, evaluate NEO performance in light of those goals and objectives,
and approve the annual compensation package (including base salary, incentive plan participation,
equity compensation awards and other benefits) for the NEOs.

+  Provide recommendations to the Board for changes to the Company's equity compensation plan and
other compensation and benefit plans.

« Administer the Company’s stock option and other equity-based compensation plan, including the grant
of awards or recommendation of awards to the Board for final approval as the Board or the relevant plan
may authorize.

The Compensation Comimittee acts according to its Charter, a copy of which can be found on the Officers and
Directors page of the Company's website under the Investor Relations tab — at http:/twww.wd40.com.

Process for Evaluating Executive Officer Performance and Compensation

In accord with its Charter, the Compensation Committee works with the Company’s Human Resources function
in carrying out its responsibilities; the Vice President of Human Resources is management's liaison with the
Committee. During fiscal year 2007, the Committee engaged Compensia, Inc, an independent compensation
advisor, to provide advice and information relating to executive compensation, Compensia assisted the
Committee in the evaluation of execulive base salary, bonus and equity incentive levels. Cormpensia reports
directly to the Committee and provides no additional services for management.
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Executive Compensation Philosophy and Framework

Compensation Objectives

The Company's executive compensation program is designed to achieve four primary objectives:
1. Aittract and retain high-caliber executives.
2. Align the interests and compensation of executives with the value created for shareholders.
3. Reinforce a sensc of urgency among executives 1o achieve key Company objectives.

4, Create a direct, meaningful link between business and team success and individual performance and
rewards.

Target Pay Position/Mix of Pay

The Company’s compensation program consists of base salary, annual cash incentives and long-term equity
grants. Each of these components is discussed in greater detail below under “Executive Officer Compensation
Decisions.” The Compensaiion Committee has established a target for executive officer cash zompensation (base
salary and annual performance incentive payout) at the 50 percentile relative to the market {sletails on the
benchmarking process are provided below), Actual cash pay may vary, based on an individua('s performance,
length of time within the position, and anticipated contribution, With respect to equity, the Ccmmittee has
managed stock option grants to an annua) utilization or “burn” rate. The “burn™ rate represent; a percentage of
the Company’s total outstanding shares used during the current year for compensation purpos:s. The Commiltee
allocates stock options to individuals (including a recommendation to the Board for stock options for the CEQ)
based on the Company’s retention goals, the criticality of the role of each plan participant and the individual’s
contribution to the Company's performance. Fiscal year 2007 stock option grants to the Company’s NEOs
(including the CEQ) were at roughly the 25t percentile of the market based on the value cf such options as
determined for financial reporting purposes and as compared to equity grants of companies falling within a broad
industry set of companies having revenues comparable to WD-40 Company as further discussed in the next
section.

Compensation Benchmarking

For fiscal year 2007 compensation decisions, the Compensation Committee examined the exe:utive
compensation practices of a peer group of ten companics to assess the competitiveness of the Company’s
executive compensation. Peer group companies were historically selected on the basis of their similarity to the
Company in terms of business strategy, market capitalization and revenuc.

Given the Company’s position in the market, it is not easily comparable with a meaningfully large set of other
companies. In order to account for the diversity of companies in its peer group, and to mitigat: the influence of
larger companies within the peer set, data from the peer group companies has been regressed fo align with the
Company's revenue. [n addition to the peer group data, the Committee has used broad industry company data
from compensation surveys for a set of companies having revenues more directly comparable to WD-40
Company. This mix of data has been weighted, 85% for the broad industry company data iand 15% for the peer
group data.

The Committee believes these practices have represented appropriate methods for managing the limited number
of comparable companies 1o WD-40 Company.
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The companies used in the pecr group analysis for 2007 compensation decisions are comprised of:

+ Chattem, Inc. *»  Prestige Brands Holdings, Inc. » The Black & Decker Corporation
= Church & Dwight Co, Inc. » Quaker Chemical Corporation  » The Clorox Company

« (Colgate-Palmolive Company + Ronson Corporation

«  Qil-Dri Corporation of America ¢ Scott’s Liquid Gold-Inc.

For 2008 compensation decisions, a new peer group has been selected. Due to the small size of the former peer
group and reliance on compensation survey data for broader industry companies, the Commiitee decided to refine
its process to use data derived solely from a broader list of U.S. headquartered companies having revenues
reasonably comparable to WD-40 Company and doing business in the specialty chemical industry or within
specific consumer products categories. Twenty-one companies meeting these criteria have been selected 1o serve
as the peer group for 2008 compensation decisions. Three of the companies from the former peer group,
Chattem, Inc., Prestige Brands Holdings, Inc. and Quaker Chemical Corporation are included in the new peer
group. The new peer group is comprised of the following companies:

» American Pacific Corporation  * Inter Parfums, Inc. » Pacific Ethanol, Inc.

s American Vanguard Corporation ¢ Katy Industries, Inc. «  Park Electrochemical Corp.

+ Bare Escentuals, Inc, * Mannatech, Inc. » Parlux Fragrances, Inc.

* Cambrex Corporation » Medicis Pharmaceutical * Penford Corporation

» Chattem Inc. Corporation s PetMed Express, Inc.

+ Gaiam, Inc. « National Presto Industries Inc.  +  Prestige Brands Holdings, Inc.

+ Hawkins, Inc. + Nutraceutical International ¢ Quaker Chemical Corporation
Corporation + USANA Health Sciences, Inc.

Executive Officer Compensation Decisions

Base Salary: Process

Base salaries for all NEOs are effective at the beginning of each fiscal year. The Compensation Committee
approves salaries and other compensation components for all NEOs except the CEO. whose compensation is
approved by the Board in October based upon the recommendation of the Committee. Position scope and
complexity as well as external market factors are uscd to determine base salary ranges. Salary increases, if any,
are based on individual performance, position, current pay relative to the market, and future anticipated
contribution.

Base Salary: Fiscal Year 2007

The CEO presented his recommendations for other NEQ base salary increases to the Committee in October 2006.
After reviewing the CEQ’s recommendations, the Committee approved salaries for the other NEOs that
represented a 6.55% average increase over fiscal year 2006 base salary levels. In October 2006, the Board
reviewed the Commitiee’s recommendation for the CEQ's base salary, and approved a 5.0% increase to
$535,000, which was between the 50t and 652 percentile of the market. Mr. Freeman's base salary adjustment
included a 6.18% increase based on performance and a 3.66% rate adjustment to bring his salary into alignment
with market norms based upon his management position as Division President for the Americas, These salary
increases for fiscal year 2007 were otherwise considered by the Compensation Committee and the Board to be
appropriate in light of market conditions as evidenced by the data analysis described in the “"Compensation
Benchmarking™ section above and the substantial achievement of individual performance goals by each of the
NEQs as well as their individual contributions to overall Company performance.
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Salary increase actions for {iscal year 2007 for the Company's NEQs were as follows:

Exerutive Officer ‘Title Buse Salary  Percent In<rease
Garry O. Ridge Chief Exccutive Officer $535.000 50%
Michael I, Irwin Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer $166.500 6.2%
Graham P, Milner Executive Vice President, Global Development, Chief Branding Officer $138,700 5.1%
Michae! L. Freeman Division President, the Americas § 166,500 9.8%
William B. Noble Managing Director, Europe $321,200t 5.1%

! Mr, Noble's base salary for 2007 was converted to dollars based on an average annual exchange rate for fiscal year 2006 of $1.8685 per
pound,

Performance Incentive Bonus

The Company uses its Performance Incentive program to tie NEO compensation to the Comgany's financial
performance. Incentive awards are based on corporate performance measures, including (i) tke Company’s
earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization ("EBITDA™) computed on i co1solidated basis
(referred to herein as the Company's “‘globat EBITDA™); (ii) EBITDA computed for relevant financial reporting
segments; (iii) the Company’s gross margin determined on a consolidated basis; and (iv) with respect to the
compensation of the CEQ and CFOQ, a measure of return on invested capital ("ROIC™). The manner in which the
Company calculates ROIC is provided in the Company’s press release with respect to the anrouncement of its
annual earnings which, for fiscal year 2007, was filed on October 17, 2007 as Exhibit 99.1 to its report on

Form 8-K. The selection of the performance measures applicable to each NEO is based upon the executive
officer’s job classification. The same Performance Incentive program formulas are used for establishing bonus
compensation for all employees of the Company and the formulas for some employees inzluc ¢ the use of other
performance measures relevant to their job classifications.

Depending upon performance results, the Performance Incentive bonus can range from 0--100% of base salary
for the Chiel Executive Officer and from 0-60% of base salaries for the other NEOs. The ma.<imum bonus for
each NEO is refecred to herein as their “annual opportunity”, Maximum incentive bonus payouts require both

achievement of specified individual performance targets and Company performance that e¢xceeds the relevant

target for global EBITDA as described below.

At the beginning of each fiscal year, the Board approves specific performance targets for the ipcoming year,
along with associated weightings and an objective formula for calculation of the Performance Incentive award
for all NEOs. In October of the folowing year, and before payment, the Committee reviews t1¢ Company's
financial results and confirms calculation of the Incentive Performance awards for each of' the executive officers.
No discretion is exercised by the Commitiee or the Board in confirming the incentive award payouts to any of the
NEOs.

In October 2006, the Board approved specific performance targets, including the target levels of EBITDA, gross
margin and ROIC, There were no changes from the prior year Performance Incentive program in the weightings
or formulas 1o be applied in calculating the incentive award payouts for any of the NEOs for {iscal year 2007.
Based on the Company’s performance for fiscal year 2007, the Committee approved the calci.lation of NEO
incentive award payouts as noted in the table below. Incentive award payouts averaged 45.9% of annual
opportunity for the NEOs as a group.

Achievement of the target levels for EBITDA (on a consolidated basis and for the relevant reporting segments),
for gross margin and for ROIC are iniended 1o be attainable through the concerted efforts of all management
teams working in their own regions and areas of responsibility and for the Company as a whole. Use of the same
Performance Incentive program and targets for EBITDA and other performance reasures for all employees over
many years has served to focus the entire company on steady growth of quality earnings, No incentive award
payouts were eamed by NEOs other than Mr. Noble in fiscal year 2004 and award payouts averaging 17.2% and
63.6% of annual opportunity were earned by the NEOs in fiscal years 2005 and 2006, respectively.

16




Subject 1o payouts that are tied to performance targets other than global EBITDA, if the threshold target for
global EBITDA has been achieved, additional bonus payouts up to the maximum annual opportunity can be
carned for increases in global EBITDA beyond the specified threshold target for the year. For fiscal year 2007,
maximum incentive award payouts would have been possible if global EBITDA had been approximately $60.3
million before payout of awards based on global EBITDA. Actual global EBITDA for 2007 was $52.3 million
before payout of awards based on global EBITDA.

The target and maximum payout amounts for each of the NEOs for the 2007 Performance Incentive program are
provided in the Grants of Plan-Based Awards table on page 23 of this proxy statement. On October 16, 2007, the
Board approved payment of the following incentive bonus amounts for fiscal year 2007 performance:

FY2007 Annun)
Incentive FY2007 Actuad
rtunity Bonus a3 8
(As % of Base Percent of FY 2007
Executive Olfficer Tile Salary) Opportunity  Bonus Peld
Garry Q. Ridge Chiel Executive Officer 100% 53.5%  $286.634
Michae] J. Irwin Executive Vice: President and Chiel Financial Officer 0% 53.5% § 853520
Graham P. Milner  Executive Vice: President, Global Development, Chicf Brunding Officer 60% MS5%H 0§ 49383
Michael L. Freeman Division President, the Americas 0% 325% § 52,020
William B, Noble! Managing Director, Europe 60% 509%  $106,830

| Mr. Noble's bonus has been converted to dollars at the Campany’s financial reporting exchange rate for August 2007 of $2.0364 per
pound.

Also on October 16, 2007, the Board approved the Performance Incentive program for fiscal year 2008, including
the specific EBITDA, gross margin and ROIC target amounts. There were no changes in the weightings or
formulas to be applied in calculating the incentive award payouts for any Company employees, inciuding the
NE®Os, for 2008.

Equity Compensation

Equity compensation is a critical component of the Company’s efforts to attract and retain executives and key
employees, encourage employee ownership in the Company, link pay with performance and align the interests of
executive officers with those of stockholders. The Company provides NEOs with an economic interest in the
long-term appreciation of the Company’s common stock though the annual grant of stock options. Stock options
provide value only if the Comnpany’s stock price increases (which benefits all stockholders), and only if the
executive remains with the Company unti] options vest.

The Board recognizes the potentially dilutive impact of stock options. The Company designs its option grant
practices to batance the impact of dilution and the Company’s need to remain compelitive by recruiting, retaining
and providing incentives for high-performing employees. The Board takes the following steps to maintain this
balance:

+ The Company's aggregale stock granting practices are conservative, particularly with respect to options
awarded to the NECs: the Committee seeks to manage to an annual gross burn rate for stock options
awarded to all participating employees that does not exceed 2% of the Company’s outstanding shares.
The actual burn rate over the past three years has been approximaiely 1.6%.

»  Equity grants to individual executive officers are generally based on Company/individual performance
in the preceding year, as well as on the expected future contribution and long-term retention goals for
the executive officer.

In October 2006, the Board approved stock options granted to the NEOs as set forth in the Grants of Plan-Based
Awards table on page 23 of this proxy statement.
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Benefits and Perquisites

As is the case with most Company employees, the Company's NEO’s are provided with stancard health and
welfare benefits, as well as the opportunity to participate in 2 401(k) profit sharing plan. The -401(k) plan serves
10 provide Company employees, including the NEOs with tax-advantaged retirement savings as an additional
component of overall compensation. The Company’s contributions to the Plan may be invested by employees in
a Company Stock Fund invested in shares of the Company's common stock.

The Company maintains individual Supplemental Death Benefit Ptan agreements with each of the NEOs other
than Mr. Noble who has an equivalent life insurance benefit under his local U.K. compensation package. The
Company also maintains individual Supplemental Retirement Benefit Plan agreements with each of the NEOs.
The terms of these plan agreements and the specific benefits provided 1o each of the NEQs are set forth in the
narrative description of benefits included with the Summary Compensation Table and the Supplemental
Retirement Benefits table on pages 22 and 26, respectively, of this proxy statement. Since the Supplemental
Retiremem Benefit Plan agreements only provide a benefit to the NEO if he continues in the cmployment of the
Company until age 65, the Committee is presently reviewing the terms and conditions of the ugreements to
determine whether alternative forms of long term compensation would provide a greater rutual benefit 1o the
Company and the NEQs. The existing agreement benefits are funded by permaneat life insurance policies owned
by the Company that also serve 10 fund the Supplemental Death Benefit Plans.

The Company also provides cars (0 its execulives and private health insurance for Mr. Noble in excess of
coverage available 1o other Company employees in the U.K. The costs associated with the benefits and
perguisites provided to the NEOs are included in the Summary Compensation Table included on page 22 of this
proxy statement and they are separately identified in the narrative description of such benefits included with the
Summary Compensation Table.

The Compensation Commitiee considers the cost of the foregoing benefits and perguisites in connection with its
recommendations to the Board for approval of the CEQ’s compensation package and in connection with approval
of the total compensation for each of the other NEOs. All of such costs are considered appropriate in support of
the Compensation Commmittee’s objective of attracting and retaining high quality executives, because they are
common forms of compensation for senior executives and are expected by such executives when they consider
competing compensation packages.

Post-Employment Obligations

In February 2006, the Company entered into change of control severance agreements with the Company's NEOs.
The specific terms of the agreements are described in detail on page 26 of this proxy statement. The agreements
were enlered into with the NEOs and other executive officers of the Company after extensive review by the
Commitiee and the Board and negotialion with the officers to replace previously existing employment
agreemnenis. Consideration was given (o possible inclusion of severance compensation to be paid to the officers
in the event of their termination of employment without cause (or for good reason) without re;3ard to the
existence of a change of control of the Company. No such provisions were included and seveiance compensation
is payable only following a lermination of employment without “cause™ or for “good reason™ within 2 years
following a “change of control” of the Company (as the quoted terms are defined in the sever:nce agreements.)

The Committee believes that the change of control severance agreements help ensure the best interests of
stockholders by fostering continuous employment of key management personnel. As is the case in many public
companies, the possibility of an unsolicited change of control exists. The uncertainty among management that
can arise from a possible change of control can result in the untimely departure or distraction of key employees.
Reasonable change of control severance agreements reinforce continued attention and dedication of executives o
their assigned duties and support the Compensation Commitice’s objective of retaining high quality executives.
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Overall Reasonableness of Compensation

The Committee believes that the Company is achieving ils compensation objectives and in particular, rewards
executive officers for driving operational success and stockholder value creation. Based on reviews of tally
sheets and a pay-for-performance analysis, and in light of the Company's compensation objectives, the
Compensation Committee and the Board believe that the pay mix and target pay position relative to market for
each of the NEOs are reasonable and appropriate.

Fiscal Year 2008 Compensation Decisions

In October 2007, the Committee considered data derived from the new peer group adopted for use by the
Committee (as described in the Compensation Benchmarking section above), as well as company and individual
performance and the CEO’s recommendations for other NEQ compensation decisions. Based on the Committec’s
analysis and review of these considerations, the Committee and the Board approved the following base salary,
target incentive award payout and stock option grants for the NEOs:
FY2008 FY2008
FY2008 Bace Incentive Stock  Grant Date

: Base Salary Benus Option Falr Velue of
Executlve Officer Tie Satary locresse  Target' Grant Siock Options?

Garry O. Ridge Chief Executive Officer $556400 4.0% $278,200 60000  $475,800
Michael J. Irwin Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer $278,493 4.5% $ 83548 17.600 $139,568
Graham P. Milner  Exccutive Vice President, Global Development, Chief Branding Officer $249.442  4.5% $ 7483312700 S$100,71)
Michael L. Freeman Division President, the Americas §274500 3.0% § 82,350 12,700 $100.711
William B. Neble!  Managing Dircctor, Europe $355.510 5.5% $106,653 20,000 $158.600

' 'The tncentive Bonus Target amoums represent that portion of cach NEQ's annual bonus opportunity that is based on refative atainment
of the specifically identified targicts for performance measures determined under the Company's Performance Incentive program as
described in the Performance Incentive Banus scction above.

¢ Each stock option has an excrcise price of $36.03, the closing price of the Company's shares on Octobet 16, 2007. All of the stock
options are non-qualified stock options vesting over a period of 3 years, Options to acquire 34% of the total shares subjcct 1o each stock
option are excreisable on October 16, 2008 and options to acquire 33% of the total shares subject (o each stock option ore cxercisable on
October 16, 2009 and October 16, 2010,

3 'The Geant Date Fair Value of $7.93 per share has been determined as of the October 16, 2007 grant date using the Black-Scholes Option
Valuation mode). The following assumptions were used in determining the valuc; (i) 2 dividend yield of 2.78%; (ii) expected volatility of
0.2517; {jiii) a S-year risk free interest ratc of 4,34%; and (iv} an expected option term/lifc of 5 years.

4 Mr. Noble's fiscal year 2008 base salary and incentive bonus target amounts are converied from pounds sierling at an average annual
exchange rate for fiscal year 2007 of $1.9603 per pound.

Other Considerations

Equity Grant Praclices

The Company’s practice is t0 approve annual stock option grants at the October meeting of the Board. The
Committee reviews the CEQ's recommendation for stock option grants for all participating employees, including
the nther NEOs and the Commitice recommends a proposal 1o the Board for the grant of stock options to all
employees, including a proposal for the grant of stock options to the CEO. The grant price is set at the closing
price for the Company’s shares on the day of the Board meeting. The approved pool of stock options granted [0
all employees was 267,500 shares for fiscal year 2007, and 337,340 shares for fiscal year 2008.
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Rule 10b5-1 Trading Plans and Insider Trading Guidelines

The Company maintains insider rading guidelines, including transaction pre-approval requir:ments, applicable
to officers and directors required to report under Section 16 of the Exchange Act as well as certain other

Rule 10b5-1 Trading Plans and Insider Trading Guidelines

The Company maintains insider trading guidelines, including transaction pre-approval requir:ments, applicable
to officers and directors required to report under Section 16 of the Exchange Act as well as certain other
employees who can be expected to have access to material non-public information concerming the Company. The
Company’s insider trading guidelines also require pre-approval of all trading plans adopted pursuant to Rule
10b5- 1 promulgated under the Exchange Act. To avoid the potential for abuse, the Company s policy with
respect to such trading plans is that once adopted, trading plans are not subject to change or cancellation. Any
such change or cancellation of an approved trading plan by an officer, director or employze covered by the
Company’s insider trading guidelines in violation thereof will result in the Company’s refusal to approve future
trading plan requests for that person,

Tax Considerations

Scction 162(m) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 (the “Code”) limits the deductibility of compensation
payabie in any year to the CEO and the four most highly compensated other executive officers. Section 162(m)
of the Code generally provides that publicly-held companies cannot deduct compensation paid to its most highly
paid executive officers to the extent that such compensation exceeds $1 million per officer. Compensation that is
“performance-based” within the meaning of the Code does not count toward the $1 millicn limit.

While the Compensation Committee attempls to maximize the deductibility of compensation paid to the CEO
and the other four most highly compensated executive officers, the Committee retains the flezibility necessary to
provide total compensation in line with competitive practice, the Company’s compensaticn pailosophy, and the
interests of stockholders. Therefore, the Company may from time-to-time pay compensation 10 its executive
officers that may not be deductible under Section 162(m).

COMPENSATION COMMITTEE REPORT

The Compensation Committee of WD-40 Company's Board of Directors has reviewed and discussed with
management of the Company the Compensation Discussion and Analysis included in this proxy statement and
the Company’s annual report on Form 10-K for the year ended August 31, 2007 and, based upon that review and
discussion, recommended to the board that it be 50 included.

Comgensation Committee
Richurd A. Collato, Chair
Peter D. Bewley

Mario L. Crivello

Linda A. Lang

Gary L. Luick
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Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance

Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the “Exchange Act”) requires the Company's directors and
executive officers, and persons who own more than ten percent of the Company’s stock, to file with the
Securities Exchange Commission initial reports of stock ownership and reports of changes in stock ownership.
Reporting persons are required by SEC regulation to furnish thc Company with copies of all Section 16(a) reports
they file.

To the Company’s knowledge, based solely on review of the copies of such reports furnished to the Company
during the last fiscal year and writlen representations that no other reports were required, all Section 16(a)
requirements were complied with by all persons required to report with respect to the Company’s stock during
the: last fiscal year with the exception of late reports on Form 4 filed in October, 2006 to report the grant of stock
options on October 17, 2006 to each reporting officer of the Company (Garry O. Ridge, Michael J. Irwin,
Graham P. Milner, Michael L. Freeman, William B. Noble, Geoffrey ). Holdsworth and Jay Rembolt) and one
late report on Form 4 filed by William B. Noble to report the cashless exercise of stock options on August 9,
2007 and the exercise of a stock option on August 10, 2007. Mr. Noble's option transactions were executed
pursuant to a trading plan adopted pursuant to Rule 10b5-1 promulgated under the Exchange Act.

EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

None of the Company's executive officers have employment agreements or other arrangement, whether writien
or unwritten, providing for a term of employment or compensation for services rendered other than under
specific plans or programs described herein.

The executive officers receive a base salary amount established by the Compensation Committee of the Board or
by the Board at the beginning of each fiscal year. In addition, each employee of the Company, including the
executive officers, receives bonus compensation under a Performance Incentive program established at the
beginning of cach fiscal year by the Company and, for the executive officers, by the Compensation Commitiee or
by the Board. For the executive officers, a formula for such bonus compensation is established by the
Compensation Commitiee or by the Board for computation of the bonus after the conclusion of the fiscal year
based on the attainment of certain financial targets, including (i) the Company's eamings before interest, taxes,
depreciation and amortization (“EBITDA") computed on a consolidated basis (referred to herein as the
Company’s “global EBITDA"™); (ii) EBITDA computed for relevant financial reporting segments; (iii) the
Company’s gross margin determined on a consolidated basis; and (iv) with respect 1o the compensation of the
CEOQ and CFOQ, 2 measure of ceturn on invested capital (“ROIC™). Information regarding the target and maximum
potential bonus compensaticn payable under the Performance Incentive program for fiscal year 2007 is provided
in the Grants of Stock-Based Awards table on page 23 of this proxy statement and the actual payouts under the
program for fiscal year 2007 and further details regarding the Performance Incentive program are provided in the
Compensation Discussion and Analysis section of this proxy statemenl.
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The following table shows information for the three (3} fiscal years ended August 31, 2007 concerning the
Company's Chief Executive Officer (“CEQ”), Chief Financial Officer (“CFO™) and the three most highty
compensated executive officers other than the CEO and CFQ (collectively, the “Named Execut.ve Officers” or

“NEOs™).
Summary Compensation Table
Change in
Pension Value
snd Noogualifled
Non-Equlty Defvrred
Optlon Incentive Plan Compensation Al Other
Name and Principal Position E Salary Awgrds! Compensation® Famings’ Com »ensationt Total
Garry Q. Ridge 2007 $535500 $158.124 $286.634 $70,032 $55.491 $1.105.781
President and Chiel 2006 510,000 150,600 319,400 30,151 42,024 1,062,175
Executive Officer 2005 484,000 167,495 93,000 18,924 40,635 814,054
Michae! J. lrwin 2007 3266500 % 62,630 $ 85.520 $33,248 §:14,669 $ 502,567
Executive Vice President 2006 251,000 63.650 94,300 11.558 14,576 475.084
and Chief Financial Officer 2005 239,000 635.693 27.500 14.370 419,521 396,084
Graham P, Milner 2007  $238,700 $ 60264 $ 49383 $33.147 $43.035 $ 434,529
Executive Vice President, 2006 227,100 61,282 87,700 12,998 42,142 441222
Global Development and 2005 216,200 63,720 20,000 16.162 450,001 366,083
Chief Branding Officer
Michael L. Freeman 2007 $266,500 § 53.164 $ 52,020 $57.822 $32.901 § 482417
Division President, the 2006 242,600 54,182 93,700 17,576 3,136 451,194
Americas 2005 228,500 57,804 20,600 9,667 31,244 368.215
William B. Noble 20075 $334900 § 64997 $106.830 $20.704 $92.154 $ 679,585
Managing Director Europe 20064 307,000 66,016 118.200 29.408 12,573 593.197
WD-40 Company (UK) Lid. 20057 288,700 67.665 29,700 62,208 ‘18.803 527,076

! Oplion Awards are reported as the dollar amount recognized for financial statement reporting purposes for each fincal year (including
proforma reporting for fiscal year 2005) in accordance with FAS 12IR, The assumptions made for purposes of such valuations are set
forth in Note 10, Stock Based Compensation, to the Company’s financial statements included in the Company's annual report on Form
10-K filed on October 25, 2007, which assumptions are incorperated herein by this reference.

1 Amounts reponed as Non-Equity Incentive Plan Compensation represent incentive bonus payouts under the Company's Performance
Incentive program as described in the narrative preceding the Summary Compensation Table and in the Compens:tion Discussion and
Analysis scction of this proxy statement. Threshold, target and maximum payouts for each of the NEOs for fiscal sear 2007 are set forth
in the Grants of Plan-Based Awards table on page 23 of this proxy statement. ‘

1 Amounts reporied os Change in Pension Value and Nonqualified Deferred Compensation Earmings represent the f.scal year-to-year
change in the actuarial present value of the Company's liability with respect to Supplemental Retirement Benefit I'lan ogreements
eniered into between the Company and each NEQ as more fully discussed on page 25 of this proxy statement, Such actuarial present
values were defermined using a weighted-average discount rate of 6.5% and a weighted-average rate of comgensalion increase of 4%. No
adjustment :o the calcutations has been included 10 account for the probability that no payment obligation will be :ncurred unless the
NEO continues employment with the Company until retirement after reaching age 63.

4 All Other Compensation for each of the NEOs includes, among other nominal cost benefits, employer profit sharing and maiching
conuributions to the Company’s 401 (k) Profit Sharing Plan for cach NEQ other than Mr. Noble and a U.K. rezirerent benefit for
Mr. Noble and vehicle allowance costs which include lease or depreciation expense, fuel, maintennnce and insurance costs, For fiscal
year 2007, the profit sharing and matching contributions for ¢ach of the NEQs other than Mr. Noble was $37.222 and Mr. Noble's
retirement benelit cost was $69.154. The vehicle allowance costs for each NEO for fiscal year 2007 were as {oltows: Mr. Ridge —
$17,328; Mr. Irwin — $16,890; Mr. Milner — $15,115; Mr. Freeman — $14,927: and Mr. Noble — 319.844.

3 Mr. Noble's Salary, Non-Equity Incentive Plan Compensation and All Other Compensation have heen converted ‘rom pounds sterling at
an average annual exchange mie for fiscal year 2007 of $1.9603 per pound.

& Mr. Noble's Salary, Non-Equity Incentive Plan Compensation and All Other Compensation have been converted irom pounds sterling al
an average annual exchange rate for fiscal year 2006 of $1.8685 per pound.

7 Mr. Noble's Salary, Non-Equity Incentive Plan Compensation and All Other Compensation have been converted (rom pounds sterling at
an average annual exchange rate for fiscal year 2005 of $1.80 per pound.
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In addition to base salary and the Performance Incentive bonus, for fiscal year 2007 the executive officers
received stock options to acquire shares of the Company's common stock. Information concerning the award of
stock options to the executive officers is provided in the Grants of Stock-Based Awards table below. The table
also contains information with respect to the Performance Incentive bonus payouts awarded for fiscal year 2007
as described in the narrative preceding the Summary Compensation Table above. Stock options granted to the
NEOs in fiscal year 2007 may be exercised for cash or in lieu of cash, an option holder may tender shares of the
Company’s common stock previously held by the option holder. In permitting the exchange of stock upon
exercise of options, the 1990 Incentive Stock Option Plan restricts the exercise of options with previously owned
stock to shares held for a minimum of six months,

The following table provides threshold, target and maximum payout information relating to the Company’s fiscal
year 2007 Performance Incentive program and information relating to the awards of stock options for the Named
Executive Officers.

GRANTS OF PLAN-BASED AWARDS
Fiscal Year 2007

All Other
Option
Awards:

Estimated Future Payouts Under Number of Grant Date Fuir

. Securities  Exerciscor B Yatue of $1ock

Noo-Eguity Incentive Flon Awards! Underying mdgp';‘“ ln‘:leOp!h::
Threshold Target Maximum Optlons Awards Awards?

.N_n'mz_ Grant Date [0) ($) %) [£)] {$/5h) 1$)

Garmry O. Ridge Y O717706 $1 $267.750  $535,500 35,0000 $35.99 $270,550
Michael J, rwin L1706 5t $ 79,950 $159.900 10,6007 $35.59 $ 77,300
Graham P. Milner 101706 $1 $ 71610 $143.220 10,0004 $35.99 § 77300
Michael L., Freeman 1O/ 1706 51 $ 79950 $159,900 10,0004 $3599 $ 7300
William B, Noble 10417106 $1 3100470 $200,940 10,0004 $35.99 $ 77,300

I The Estimated Future Payouts Under Non-Equity Incentive Plan Awards represent Threshold, Torget and Maximum payouts under the
Company’s Performance Incentive program for bonuses payable for fiscal year 2007 performance. The Target amount represents that
portion of the bonus apporunity for each NEQ that is based on relative awtainment of identified performance goals (as more fully
discussed in the Compensation Discussion and Analysis section of this proxy statement.) The Maximum amount represents the bonus
oppertunity for each NEO that nssumes receipt of the full Targer amoum by such NEC and altainment by the Compiny of a level of
camings before interest, 1axes, depreciation and amontization computed on a consolidated basis sufficient to maximize such payouts
under the Performance Incentive program formula applicable to al) employees.

3 The grant dote fair value of $7.73 per share for all options has been determined as of the grant date of October 17, 2006 using the Black-
Scholes Option Valuation model, The following assumptions were used in determining the value: (i) a dividend yicld of 2.78%;
(i) expected volatility of 0.2389; (iii) a 4.82-year risk free interest rate of 4.73%:; and (iv) an expected option term/life of 4.82 years,

¥ Mr. Ridge's options are non-qualified stock options with the right to acquire 11,900 shares exercisuble on October 17, 2007: the right 1o
acquire | 1550 shares cxereisable on October 17, 2008; and the right to acquire 11550 shares exercisable on October 17, 2009.

*  Options awarded to Mr. Irwin, Mr. Milner. Mr. Freeman and Mr. Noble are non qualified stock options with the right 10 acquive 3,400
shares exercisable on October 17, 2007, the right to acquire 3,300 shares exercisable on October 17, 2008; and the right 10 acquire 3,300
shares exercisable on Cctober 17, 2009,

23




The following table provides detailed information concerning the unexercised stock option: held as of the end of
the last fiscal year by each of the Named Executive Officers.

OUTSTANDING EQUITY AWARDS

At 2007 Fiscal Year End
Option Awards
Number of Securitles  Nomber Of Sevurities
Undertying Underlying
Unexercised Options Unexercised Upthms  Option Exercise
(L4 5] Price Option Expiration
N2 Exrrcisable Uoexercisable 5 Date
Garry O. Ridge 5319 0 $23.50 9128109
37.600 Q0 20.8'3 9210
30,000 0 27,56 9124112
30.000 0 29.30 912313
8.040 3,960 17.6" 10/19/14
8.160 15,840 7.2 W1i8/1s5
0 35,000 35.90 1717116
119,119 54,800
Michael ). Irwin 120 0 $23.50 9128109
10.000 0 2075 925/11
10,000 0 17,50 924112
10,000 0 29.31) 9723113
6.030 2970 11.67 10719414
3.060 5,940 21.21 10/18/15
0 10,008 3590 11716
39,210 18,910
Graham P. Milner 6.000 0 $23.033 09729108
10,000 0 23.50 92809
17,200 0 20813 92610
10,000 0 20.7% H25111
10,000 0 2753 9/24/12
10,000 0 29.3) 9723113
5.360 2.640 27.67 10/1914
1.060 5940 27.27 10718115
0 10,000 3593 /L7716
71,620 18,580
Michael L. Freeman 10,000 0 $20.75 9251
10,000 0 27.56 9724112
10,000 0 29.30 92313
3.350 1.650 271.67 10/19/14
3.060 5940 27.27 V1815
0 10,000 3599 1011716
3410 17,590
William B. Nobte 5,000 0 $23.50 912809
5.000 0 20.81 9126/10
100 0 2075 925N 1
6,600 0 27.56 9124112
10,000 0 29.30 92313
6,700 3.300 27.€7 10/19/14
3,060 5940 2727 10V18/15
0 10,000 3569 1717116
36,460 19,240
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The following table sets forth the number of shares acquired on exercise of stock options in the Company’s last
fiscal year and the aggregate dollar value realized on exercise of such stock options for the Named Executive
Officers.

OPTION EXERCISES AND STOCK VESTED

Fiscal Year 2007
Opllon Awards
Number of Shares Valoc Reallzed

Acquired on Exervise oo Excrcise!
Nuass [ (8t
Garry O. Ridge 33,081 $301914
Michael ), Irwin 36.784 $497,163
Graham P. Milner 6,000 $ 26,41
Michael L. Freeman 22,000 £210.926
William B. Noble 24,400 $235,145

' The Value Realized on Exercise is calculated by subtracting the aggrepate exercise price for the shares acquired upon exercise of the
options from the fair market value price of such shares as of the date of cxercise. The fair market value price of each share et exercisc is
the actual trade price for the share if sold in a cashless exercise transaction, otherwise it is the closing price for the Company’s shares as
of the date of exercise.

Supplementat Death and Retirement Benefit Plans

The Company maintains Supplemental Death Benefit Plans for certain key employees. Under the Death Benefit
Plan agreements, a participating employee’s designated beneficiary or the employee’s estate will receive a death
benafit equal to the employee’s then current base salary in the event of death prior to retirement from the
Company. No death benefil is payable if retirement benefits become due upon the employee’s retirement under
the Supplemental Retirement Benefit Plan agreement described below.

The Company also maintains Supplemental Retirement Benefit Plans for certain key employees. Under the
Retirement Benefit Plan agreements, participating employecs will receive retirement benefits in the event of the
participant's retirement on or afier a designated retirement date. The annual retirement benefit for participating
employees will be equal to twenty-five percent (25%) of the employee’s then current base salary, payable in
quarterly installments over a period of fifteen years.

All benefits under the plans will be subject to payroll taxes and required withholding for state and federal income
taxes as deferred compensation. The benefits are nol formally funded but the Company has purchased key man
life insurance polices owned by the Company to cover its benefit obligations. The Board of Directors determines
which key employees will participate in the plans and the amount of benefits payable for each participant.
Non-employee directors do not panicipate in the plans.

Based upon current 2008 base salaries, the death benefils and annual retirement benefits 1o be provided under the
plans to the Named Executive Officers are set forth in the following table. The retirement benefit will not be
payable unless the executive officer retires with the Company on or after reaching the specified retirement age. In
such event, the actual amount of the annual benefit will be dependent upon the executive's then current annual
salary.

Annual
Death Retirement  Retirement
Name Bepeflt Benefit Age
Garry O. Ridge $556.400 $139,100 65
Michael ). Irwin $278.493  § 69.623 65
Graham P. Miiner $249,442  § 62,360 65
Michael L. Freeman 3274500 § 68,625 65

William B. Noble — § 88877 65




The following table provides certain actuarial values for the accumulated benefit pertaining 10 each of the
Supplemental Retirement Benefit Plan agreements with the executive officers named in the Summary
Compensation Table above. The actuarial values do not account for the probability that th: executive officer may
not continue in employment with the Company to the specified retirement age, but rather, suci calculations
assume that the executive officer will receive the benefits of the agreement and that the execuive officer will
receive future salary increases. As such, years of credited service with the Company is not a n:levant
consideration. No benefit is payable to the executive officers unless they reach the specified retirement age while
employed by the Company.

SUPPLEMENTAL RETIREMENT BENEFITS
At 2007 Fiscal Year End

Preseal Value of

Accumulatod Beneflt!
Neme % __
Garry O. Ridge $906,336
Michael J. Irwin $381.956
Graham P. Milner $425,338
Michael L. Freeman $487.254
William B. Noble $543.028

' The Present Value of Accumulated Benefit for each NEO represents the actuarial present value of the obligition of the Company with
respect to the Supplemental Retirement Benefit Plan agreements described in the narvative on page 25 of this proxy statement. The
actuarial present valucs as of the fiscal your end were determined using a weighted-average discount rme of 6.5% und a weighted-averuge
rate of compensation increase of 4%. No adjusiment to the calculations has been included 1o sccount for the prolwability that ne payment
obligation will be incurred unless the NEO continues employment with the Company until retiremnent after reacking age 65.

Change of Control Severance Agreements

On February 14, 2006, the Company terminated pre-existing employment agreements with th: Named Executive
Officers. Each executive officer serves in office at the pleasure of the Board of Directors. On February 14, 2006,
the Company entered into Change of Control Severance Agreements (“Severance Agreement:™) with each of the
Named Executive Officers and with one additional executive officer. The new Severance Agreements provide
that each executive officer will receive cenain severance benefits if he is terminated without *'Cause”™ or resigns
for "Good Reason”, as those terms are defined in the Severance Agreements, within 1wo year after a “Change of
Control” as defined in the Severance Agreements and summarized below. If the executive: ofticer’s employment
is terminated during the aforementioned two-year period by the Company without Cause or by the executive
officer for Good Reason, the executive officer will be entitled to a lump sum payment (subject to limits provided
by reference 10 Section 280G of the Interma! Revenue Code which limits the deductibility of ¢ertain payments to
executives upon a change in control) of 1wice the executive officer’s salary, calculated based on the greater of the
executive officer's then current annual salary or a S-year average, plus twice the executive of’icer’s bonus
compensation, calculated based on the greater of the most recent annual bonus compensalion or a 5-year average.
Further, any of the executive officer’s stock options and other equity incentive benefits that ae not then fully
vested will be accelerated and vesied in full following such termination of employment within such two-year
period and the executive officer will be entitled 1o continuation of health and welfare benefits under the
Company's then existing benefit plans or equivalent benefits. No employment rights or benefits other than the
change of control severance benefits are provided by the Severance Agreements.

For purposes of the Severance Agreemenis and subject to the express provisions and limitations contained
therein, Change of Control means a transaction or series of transactions by which a person or persons acting
together acquire more thun 30% of the Company’s outstanding shares; 2 change in a majerity of the incumbent
members of the Company's board of directors as specified in the Severance Agreements, a reorganization,
merger or consolidation as specified in the Severance Agreements or a sale of substantially all of the assels or
complete liguidation of the Company. As specified more particularly in the Severance Agreements, Change of
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Control does not include a reorganization, merger or consolidation or a sale or liquidation where a majority of
incumbent members of the board of directors continue in office and more than 60% of the Company’s
pre-transaction stockholders continue to maintain control of the resulting or successor company.

The Severance Agreements have a term of 1wo years, subject 10 automatic renewal for successive two year
periods unless notice of non-renewal is provided by the Company's board of directors not less than six months
prior to the end of the current term. The term of the Severance Agreements will be automatically extended for a
term of two years followiny any Change of Control.

The following table sets forth amounts payable to each of the NEOs pursuant o their respective Severance
Agreements on the assumption that each NEQ is terminated without Cause or otherwise for Good Reason
effective as of the end of the Company’s fiscal year 2007 following a Change of Control as provided for in the
Severance Agreements.

Severance Pnyand  Accelerated Yesting of
Optlons?

ﬂn_w. Welfare Benellts! Stock

Gary O. Ridge $1.720,677 $146,916
Michael J, rwin $ 750,621 $ 65,637
Graham P, Milner $ 672550 $ 63294
Michasl L. Freeman $ 749421 $ 56,265
William B, Noble $ 911972 $ 67980

' For each NEO, Severance Pay and Welfare Benefits includes 2 times the reponed fiscal year 2007 Salary and 2 times the reported fiscal
year 2006 Non-Equity Plan Compensation from the Summary Compensation Table above plus an estimaie of the Company's cost to
provide 2 years of continuation coverage under the Company's wellare and benefit plans. The estimated 2 year cost for such continuation
coverage is $10,877 for Mr. Ridge; $29.02] for Mr. Irwin and Mr. Freeman; $19,750 for Mr, Milner; and $5,772 for Mr. Noble.

! The value provided for accelerated vesting of stock options equals the value of the in-the-money uncxereisable stock options for each
NED as reported in the Equity Awands Outstanding at Fiscal Year End ble above equal to the difference between the closing price for
the Company’s commen stock as of August 31, 2007, $34.77, and the exercise price for each option.




ITEM NO. 2

APPROVAL OF
THE WD40 COMPANY
2007 STOCK INCENTIVE PLAN

The Board of Directors has adopted the 2007 Stock Incentive Plan (the “2007 Plan™), subject to stockholder
approval at the Annual Mecting. If stockholders approve the 2007 Plan, the 2007 Plan will beccme effective on
December 11, 2007 and will terminate on December 10, 2017. If the 2007 Plan is approved, the Company's 1990
Incentive Stock Option Plan (the “1990 Option Plan™) and the 1999 Non-Employce Director Restricted Stock
Plan (the “Director Stock Plan™) will each terminate on December | 1, 2067, though such termination will not
impact awards previously granied under the 1990 Option Plan or the Director Stock Plan.

2007 Plan Summary

The following is a summary of the principal features of the 2007 Plan. This summary does not purport to be
complete and is subject to, and qualified in its entirety by, the provisions of the 2007 Plan, a copy of which is
attached to this proxy statement as Appendix A. Capitalized terms used but not defined herein shall have the
meanings set forth in the 2007 Plan,

The purposes of the 2007 Plan are to attract and retain the best caliber personnel available for pasitions of
substantial responsibility, to provide additional incentive to employees, directors or consultants of the Company
or its subsidiaries (collectively. the “Participants”) and to optimize the profitability and growth of the Company
through incentives that are consistent with the Company’s goals and that link the goals of the Panticipants in the
2007 Plan to those of the Company’s stockholders. The 2007 Plan permits the grant of the following types of
incentive awards: (1) Options (qualified and non-qualified), (2) Stock Appreciation Rights (“SARs™),

(3) Restricted Stock, () Restricted Stock Units (“RSUs™), (5) Performance Shares, {6) Performance Units and
(7) Other Stock-Based Awards.

The number of shares of the Company’s comman stock (“Shares™} initially reserved for isshance under the 2007
Plan is 2,250,000 Shares, plus any shares available under the 1990 Option Plan and the Directo: Stock Plan (the
“Paor Plans™).

The following table provides information regarding shares of the Company’s common stock authorized for
issuance under the Prior Plans as of August 31, 2007,

Equity Compensation Plan Information

Weighied Avernge Securitics Remalning
Securitles to be ksoed upen Exercise Pric: OF Availabie For Future
Excrcise of Quistanding Outstanding Optiom  Isuanee Under Equity
Options, Warrants & Rights \r\'-rrn:l.ss & Rights Cumpensn'l}ion Plam
L) (%) {

Equity Compensation Plans Approved by Security Holders 1,238,574 $2891 1,037,160
Equity Compensation Plans Not Approved by Security Holders N/A NIA N/A
Total 1,238,574 $2891 1,037,160
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As of August 31, 2007 there were 1,022,638 Shares and 14,976 Shares available under the 1990 Option Pian and
the Director Stock Plan, respectively. On October 16, 2007, the Board of Directors approved the grant of stock
options to purchase 337,340 Shares under the 1990 Option Plan, reducing the number of Shares available under
that plan to 685,298 If the 2007 Plan is approved by the stockholders at the Annual Meeting, 2,949,820 Shares
will be available for future Awards under the 2007 Plan. In addition, the following Shares will also be available
for issuance under the 2007 Plan: Shares that are potentially deliverable under an Award or a Prior Plan award
that expires or is canceled, forfeited, settled in cash or otherwise settled without the delivery of Shares. For
purposes of determining the number of Shares available for Awards under the 2007 Plan, Awards of Options and
SARs are counted as one Share used for each Option or SAR awarded. Awards of Restricted Stock, RSUs,
Performance Shares and Other Stock-Based Awards (referred to as “Full Value Stock Awards™) are counted as
three (3) Shares for each Share 10 be issued with respect to a Fuil Value Stock Award,

The 2007 Plan will be administered by the Board or by the Compensation Committee (the “Commiltee”). Subject
10 the provisions of the 2007 Plan and the authority of the Board, the Committee has the authority 10: (1) select
the persons to whom Awards are (o be granied, (2) determine whether and to what extent Awards are to be
granted, (3) determine the size and type of Awards, (4) approve forms of agreement for use under the 2007 Plan,
(5} determine the terms and conditions applicable to Awards, (6) establish Performance Measures for any
Performance Peried and determine whether such measures were satisfied, (7) amend any outstanding Award in
the event of termination of cmployment or a Change in Control, (8) consirue and interpret the 2007 Plan and any
Award Agreement and apply its provisions and (9} subject to certain limitations, take any other actions deemed
necessary or advisable for the administration of the 2007 Pian. Subject to the power of the Board to administer
the: 2007 Plan, all decisions, interpretations and other actions of the Committee shall be final and binding on ali
holders of Options or rights and on all persons deriving their rights therefrom.

The 2007 Plan provides that Awards may be granted to Participants as identified by the Board or the Committee,
except that Incentive Stock Options may be granted only to Employees. The Company has 278 total employees
eligible to participaie in the 2007 Plan, 83 of which are presently identified as prospective panticipants, having
been awarded stock options under the 1990 Option Plan on October 16, 2007. Upon the election of the nominees
for election as Directors at the Annual Meeting, 8 non-employee directors will be eligible to participate in the
2007 Plan. No Consultants have been identified as prospective participants.

The Company has designed the 2007 Plan 50 that it permits the issuance of Awards that are intended to qualify as
performance-based under Section 162(m} of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code™). See
the discussion below relating to the Federal Tax Aspects of the 2007 Plan for more information relating to Code
Section 162{m).

The 2007 Plan prohibils repricing of Options or SARs, including by way of an exchange for another Award,
unless stockholder approval is obtained.
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Terms and Conditions of Opiions and SARs

Each Option granted under the 2007 Plan will be evidenced by an Award Agreement betwzen the Participant and
the Company and will be subject to the following terms and conditions:

| »  Exercise Price. The Committee sets the Excrcise Price for the Shares subject to each Option, provided

' that the Exercise Price cannot be less than 100% of the Fair Market Value of the Com:pany’s common
stock on the Option grant date. In addition, the Exercise Price of an Incentive Stock Cplion must be at
least 110% of Fair Market Value if, on the grant date, the Participant owns stock possessing more than
10% of the total combined voting power of all classes of stock of the Company o1 anv of its subsidiaries
{a “10% Stockholder™),

+  Form of Consideration. The means of payment for Shares issued upon exercise of an option is specified
in each option agreement. Payment generally may be made by cash, other shares of common stock
owned by the Participant, any other method permitted by the Committee, or by a combination of the
foregoing.

*  Exercise of the Option. Each Award Agreement will specify the term of the Option and the date when
the Option is to become exercisable, provided that except for Options granted to a Director or a

| Consulant, or as specified in an Award Agreement upon a termination of employmer or a Change in

i Control or Subsidiary Disposition, no Optien may be exercisable prior to one (1) vear from the date of

grant, The 2007 Plan provides that in no event shall an Option granted under the 200" Plan be exercised

more than ten (10) years after the date of grant. Moreover, in the case of an Incentive Stock Option

granted to a 109% Siockholder, the term of the Optien shall be for no more than five (:3) years from the

i date of grant.

» Termination of Employmeni. If an option holder’s employment terminates for any reason (including
death or permanent disability}, all Options held by such option holder under the 2007 Plan will expire
upon the earlier of (i) such period of time as is set forth in his or her Award Agrecment or (ii) the
expiration date of the Option. The option holder may exercise all or part of his or her Option at any time
before such expiration to the extent that such Option was exercisable at the time of termination of
employment.

SAR grants may be either freesianding or tandem with Option grants. Each SAR grant shall be: evidenced by an
Award Agreement that will specify the Exercise Price, the lerm of the SAR, the conditions: of exercise, and such
other terms and conditions as the Committee shall determine.

The Exercise Price of SARs may not be less than 100% of the Fair Market Value of the Company’s common
stock on the grant date of the Award. The Committee, subject 10 the provisions of the 2007 Pl.an, shall have the
discretion to determine the terms and conditions of SARs granted under the 2007 Plan. Each Award Agreement
will specify the term of the SAR and the date when the SAR is to become exercisable, provided that except as
specified in an Award Agreement upon a termination of employment or a Change in Control or Subsidiary
Disposition, no SAR may be exercisable prior to one (1) year from the date of grant.

Upon exercise of a SAR, the holder of the SAR will be entitled to receive payment in an amount equal to the
product of (i) the difference between the Fair Market Value of a share on the date of exercise and the Exercise
Price and (ii) the number of Shares for which the SAR is exercised. At the discretion of the Committee, payment
1o the holder of a SAR may be in cash, shares of common stock or a combination thereof, To the extent that an
exercised SAR is settled in cash, the Shares available for issuance under the 2007 Plan shail be reinstated and
available for future Awards Lo the extent of the number of SARs so exercised,

SARs granted under the 2007 Plan will expire as determined by the Committee, but in no event later than ten
(10) years from the date of grant. No SAR may be exercised by any person after its expiration.
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In order that Option and SAR Awards may qualify as performance-based compensation under Section 162(m) of
the Code, no Participant may be granted Options and SARs with respect to more than 250,000 Shares in any one
year period, provided that such limit is increased to 500,000 Shares for a Participant during the year following his
or her date of hire.

Terms and Conditions of Full Value Stock Awards

Each Restricted Stock or RSU grant will be evidenced by an Award Agreement that will specify the purchase
price (if any) and such other terms and conditions as the Committee shall determine.

The Committee will have the discretion to determine (i) the number of Shares subject to a Resiricted Stock or
RSU Award granted to any Participant and (ii) the conditions for vesting that must be satisfied, provided that
there shall be a minimum vesting peried of one (1) year.

Each Performance Share grant will be evidenced by an Award Agreement that shall specify such other terms and
conditions as the Committee, in its sole discretion, shall determine.

The Committee will have complete discretion to determine (i) the number of Shares subject to a Performance
Share Award and (ii) the conditions that must be satisfied for grant or for vesting, provided that there shall be a
minimum vesting period of one (1) year.

The Committee may grant other stock-based Awards that may include, without limitation, grants of Shares based
on attainment of performance goals, payment of shares as a bonus in liev of cash based on performance goals.
and the payment of shares in lieu of cash under other Company incentive or bonus programs. The Committee will
have the discretion to determine the vesting of any such Award, provided that, except as specified in an Award
Agreement upon 2 termination of employment or a Change in Control or Subsidiary Disposition, there shall be a
minimum vesting period of one (1) year, provided that an Award for payment of Shares in tieu of cash under
other Company incentive or bonus programs shall not be subject to a minimum vesting period.

In order that Full Value Awards subject to vesting upon attainment of specified performance goals may qualify
as performance-based compensation under Section 162(m) of the Code, no Participant may be granted Awards of
Restricted Stock, RSUs, Performance Shares or Other Stock-Based Awards with respect to more than 125,000
Shares in any one year peried, provided that such limit is increased to 250,000 Shares for a Panticipant during the
year following his or her date of hire.

Terms and Conditions of Performance Unit Awards

Performance Units are similar to Performance Shares, except that they are cash-based and may be settled in
Shares, cash or a combinatian of the two. The Shares available for issuance under the 2007 Plan will not be
diminished as a result of the settlement of a Performance Unit in cash. Each Performance Unit grant will be
evidenced by an Award Agreement that will specify such terms and conditions as may be determined at the
discretion of the Committee, provided that there shall be a minimum vesting period of one (1) year.

In order that Performance Unit Awards may qualify as performance-based compensation under Section 162(m),
no Participant shall be grantad a Performance Unit Award providing for a payment value of more than
$2,500,000 in any one fiscal year.

Cther 2007 Plan Provisions
Certain Awards under the 2007 Plan will be intended to qualify as “performance-based compensation” for

purposes of deductibility under Section 162(m) of the Code. For any such Award, the Committee will establish
the performance objectives 1o be used within 90 days after the commencement of the Performance Period (being
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at least one (1) year.) The performance objectives to be used shall be selected from the following list of measures
(collectively, the “Performance Measures™): total shareholder return, stock price, net customer :ales, volume,
gross profit, gross margin, operating profit, operating margin, management profit, carnings frora continuing
operations (including derivatives thereof before interest, taxes, depreciation and/or amortization), earnings per
share from continuing operations, net operating profit after tax, net earnings, net earnings par share, brand
contribution to earnings, return on assets, return on investment, return on equity, return on invested capital, cost
of capital, average capital employed, cash value added, economic value added, cash flow, cash flow from
operations, working capital, working capital as a percentage of net customer sales, asset grewik, asset turnover,
market share, customer satisfaction, and employee satisfaction. The targeted level or levels of ferformance with
respect 10 the Performance Measures may be established at such levels and on such terms as the Committee may
determine, in its discretion, on a corporate-wide basis or with respect (o one or more business units, divisions,
subsidiaries, business segments or functions, and in either absolute terms or relative 1o the performance of one or
more comparable companies or an index covering multipie companics. Unless otherwise deterriined by the
Committee, measurement of the Performance Measures above shall exclude the impact of charges for
restructurings, discontinued operations, extraordinary items and other unusual or non-recurring items, as well as
the cumulative effects of tax or accounting changes, each as determined in accordance with ger erally accepted
accounting principles or identified in the Company’s financial statements, notes to the financial statements,
management's discussion and analysis or other filings with the SEC. Awards that are not intensicd to qualify as
“performance-based compensation” under Section 162(m) of the Code may be based on these cr such other
performance 1argets as the Committee may determine.

An Award granted under the 2007 Plan which is an Incentive Stock Option may not be sold, pledged, assigned,
hypothecated, ransferred or disposed of in any manner other than by will or by the laws of descent or

distribution and may be exercised, during the lifetime of the recipient, only by the recipient. Other Awards will
be transferable to the extent provided in the Award, except that no Award may be transferred for consideration,

Uniless otherwise provided for in an Award Agreement for the issuance of Restricted Stock. the Participant holder
of Restricted Stock will be entitled to all dividends paid with respect to such Shares prior to full vesting, The
Award Agreements for other Full Value Stock Awards may include provision for the paymant or accumulation of
the amount of dividends that would otherwise be paid with respect to the number of Shares covered by the Award
as if they were issued and outstanding (“Dividend Equivalents™). Dividend Equivalents may be paid in cash as
and when the dividends are paid with respeci to the Company’s common stock or they may be iccumulated and
paid, with or without interest, at such time as may be provided for in the Award Agreement. Nu Dividend
Equivalents may be paid or accumulated in connection with an Option or SAR Award.

In the event of any merger, reorganization, consolidation, recapitalization, liquidation, stocic dividend, split-up,
spin-off, stock split, reverse stock split, share combination, share exchange, extraordinary divicend, or any
change in the corporate structure affecting the Shares, such adjustment shall be made in the nuinber and kind of
Shares that may be delivered under the 2007 Plan, the individual Award limits set forth in the 2007 Plan, and,
wilh respect to outstanding Awards, in the number and kind of Shares subject to outstanding Awards, the
Exercise Price, grant price or other price of Shares subject to outstanding Awards, any performance conditions
relating to Shares, the murket price of Shares, or per-Share results, and other terms and conditions of cuistanding
Awards, as may be determined 1o be appropriate and equitable by the Committee, in its sole di:.cretion, 10 prevemt
dilution or enlargement of rights; provided, however, that, unless otherwise determined by the Commiutee, the
number of Shares subject to any Award shall always be rounded down to a whole number. Any such adjustment
shall be made by the Committee, whose determination shall be conclusive,

In the event of a Change in Control, if the successor corperation does not assume the Awards or substitute
equivalent Awards, such Awards shall become fully vested and exercisable. In this event, performance-based
Awards will vest on a pro rala monthly basis based on the performance [¢vel atiained on the date of the Change
in Control, if determinable, or target level, if not determinable. In such event, the Commitice shall notify the
Participant that each Award subject to exercise is fully exercisable. The Commitiee may, ir. its sole discretion,
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provide that all outstanding Options and SARs shall be terminated upon the effectiveness of a Change in Control
and provide each Participant an amount equivalent to the excess of the Fair Market Value of a Share immediately
prior 1o the effectiveness of a Change in Control or the Committee may cancel or terminate Options or SARs
without payment if the Fair Market Value of a Share as of the effective date of a Change of Control is less than
the Option or SAR Exercise Price per Share. In the event of a Subsidiary Disposition, the Commitiee may, in its
sole discretion, provide for the automatic full vesting of Awards only with respect to those Participants who are,
at the time of the Subsidiary Disposition, engaged primarily in Continuous Service with the Subsidiary involved
in such Subsidiary Disposition.

The Board of Directors may amend, suspend or terminaie the 2007 Plan at any time; provided, however, that
stockholder approval is required for any amendmem to the extent necessary (o comply with the NASDAQ listing
standards or applicable laws. In addition, no amendment, suspension or termination may adversely impact an
Award previously granted without the consent of the Participant to whom such Award was gronted unless
required by applicable law,

Federal Tax Aspecls

The following paragraphs are a summary of the material U.S. federal income tax consequences associated with
certain Award types to be granted under the 2007 Plan. The summury is based on existing U.S. laws and
regulations, and there can be no assurance that those laws and regulations will not change in the future. The
summary does not purport to be complete and does not discuss the 1ax consequences upon a Participant’s death,
or the provisions of the income tax laws of any municipality, staie or foreign country in which the Participant
may reside. Furthermore, this summary does not address applicable federal tax provisions of Section 409A of the
Code enacted under the American Jobs Creation Act of 2004. To the extent applicable, it is intended that the
2007 Plan and any Awards granted thereunder will comply with the requirements of Section 409A of the Code.
The new rules imposed by Section 409A may impact the way cenain types of deferred compensation are taxed
and certain provisions of Award Agreements may be included to protect against undesired tax consequences.

Incentive Stock Optivns

No taxable income is recognized when an Incentive Stock Option is granted or exercised, although the exercisc is
an adjustment item for alternative minimum tax purposes and may subject the Participant to the alternative
minimum tax. If the Panticipant exercises the Option and then later sells or otherwise disposes of the Shares more
than two years after the grant date and more than one year after the exercise date, the difference between the sale
price and the Exercise Price generally will be taxed as long-term capital gain or loss. If these holding periods are
not satisfied, the Option will generally be treated for tax purposes as a nongualified stock option as described
below. The Participant will recognize ordinary income at the time of sale o other disposition equal to the
differenice between the Exercise Price and the lower of (i) the Fair Market Value of the Shares at the date of the
Option exercise or (ii) the sale price of the Shares. Any gain or loss recognized on such a premature disposition
of the Shares in excess of the amount treated as ordinary income will be treated as long-term or short-term capital
gain or loss, depending on the holding period.

Nongualified Stock Options

No taxable income is recognized when a Nongualified Stock Option is granted to a Participant with an Exercise
Price equal to the Fair Market Value on the date of grant. Upon exercise, the Participant will recognize ordinary
income in an amount equal to the excess of the Fair Market Value of the Shares on the exercise date over the
Exercise Price. Any taxable income recognized in connection with the exercise of a Nonqualified Stock Option
by an Employee is subject 1o tax withholding by the Company. Any additional gain or loss recognized upon later
disposition of the Shares is capital gain or loss, which may be long-term or short-term capital gain or loss
depending on the holding period.
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Stock Appreciation Rights

No taxable income is recognized when a stock appreciation right is granted to a Panticipant. Upon exercise, the
Panicipant will recognize ordinary income in an amount egual to the amount of cash received and the Fair
Market Value of any Shares received. Any additional gain or loss recognized upon later disposition of the Shares
is capital gain or loss, which may be long-term or short-term capita! gain or loss depending on the helding
period.

Full Value Stock Awards and Performance Units

A Participant generally will not have taxable income upon grant of Restricted Stock, RSUs. Pe:formance Shares,
Other Stock-Based Awards or Performance Units that are subject to vesting provisions. Instead, the Participant
will recognize ordinary income at the time of vesting equal to the Fair Market Value (on the vesting date) of the
Shares or cash received minus any amount paid. RSUs setiled in stock may not be taxable until the settlement
date if the award otherwise complies with the requirements for deferral of taxation under applicable tx Jaws. For
Restricted Stock and shares issued pursuant to Other Stock-Based Awards subject to risk of forfeiture, a
Participant instead may elect 10 be taxed at the time of grant.

Company Tax Treatment

The Company generally will be entitled (0 a tax deduction in connection with an Award under -he 2007 Plan in
an amount equai to the ordinary income realized by a Panticipant and at the time the Participant recognizes such
income {for example, the exercise of a Nonqualified Stock Option, early disposition of an Incentive Stock Option
or upon vesting of a Full Value Stock Award.) For Incentive Stock Options, the Company will not be entitled 10 a
tax deduction unless the Participamt makes an early disposition of the Shares acquired upon exercise of the
Option as discussed above. Special rules limit the deductibility of compensation paid to the chi :f executive
officer and to each of the next four most highly compensated executive officers. Under Section 162(m) of the
Code, unless various conditions are met that enable compensation to qualify as “performance-based,” the annual
compensation paid to any of these specified executives will be deductible only (o the extent that it does not
exceed $1,000,000. However, the 2007 Plan has been designed to permit the Committee to grait Awards that
qualify as performance-based for purposes of satisfying the conditions of Section 162(m) of thi: Code, thereby
permitting the Company to receive a federal income tax deduction in connection with such Awards even to the
extent that the income recognized by the executive with respect 10 the Award would cause the cxecutive's
non-exempt income for such year to exceed $1,000,000.
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Prior Plan Option Grants and Prospective Awards Upon Approval of the 2007 Plan

The following table presents information relating to stock options granted under the 1990 Option Plan on
October 16, 2007 to the Named Executive Officers, all current executive officers as a group, all current Directors
who are not executive officers as a group and all employees, including all officers who are not executive officers,
as a group. All of the option: were granted at an exercise price of $36.03. The table also includes information
relating to the prospective award of RSUs to non-employee directors upon approval of the 2007 Plan. It is not
otherwise possible to determine the benefits to be received by the persons or groups referred to in the lable
following stockholder approval of the 2007 Plan.

Fiscal Year 2008 Plan Benefits
WD-40 Company 1990 Option Plan and 2007 Plan

Dollar Velue!  Options Gronted
{

Name and Posltlon $)

Guarry Ridge $ 475800 60,000
Chicf Executive Officer

Michael J. [rwin $ 139.568 17.600
Evecutive Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer

Graham P. Milner $ 100,711 12,700

Exccutive Vice President,
Global Development and Chief Branding Officer

Michael L. Freeman $ 100,711 12.700
Division President, the Americas

William B. Noble $ 158.600 20.000
Managing Directer, Europe

Executive Group $1.133,5990 143,000

Non-Executive Director Group $ 240,000 0

Non-Executive Officer Employee Group 51,541,116 194,340

1 The Dollar Value of §7.93 per share for stock options granted to Company employees has been determined as of the October 16. 2007
grant date using the Black-Scholes Option Valuation model. The following assumptions werc used in determining the fair value: (i) »
dividend yield of 2.78%: {ii) cxpected volatility of 0.2517; {iii) a S-ycar risk frec interest rote of 4.34%: and (iv) an expected option lerm/
life of 5 years. Each stock option has an exercise price of $36.03. the closing price of the Company’s shares on Octaber 16.2007. All of
the stock options are non-qualified stock options vesting over a period of 3 years. Options to acquire 34% of the total shares subject 1o
each stock option are exercisable on October 16, 2008 and opticns 1o acquire 33% of the total shares subject to cach stock option are
exercisable on October 16, 2009 and October 16, 2010.

1 On October 16, 2007 the Boani of Directors approved o compensation policy for non-cmployee direciors elected 1o serve as direciors at
the Annual Meeting of Stackhulders on December 11, 2007. The director compensation policy provides for the award of RSUs an
December 11, 2007 with respest to shares of the Company’s common stock having s fair market vatue as of the date of grant equal to
$30,000. Subject to stockholder approval of the 2007 Plan, the number of RSUs 10 be ranted w cach non-employee dircctor will be
determined as of the date of grant by dividing $30,000 by the closing price for the Company's shares on December 11, 2007. The RSUs
awarded 10 cach director will be fully vested upon gram and will be settled in shares only upon teemination of the director’s service ns o
director.

Vote Required and Board of Directors’ Recommendation

The affirmative vote of a majority of the shares of common stock represented and entitled to vote at the Annual
Meeting is required to approve the 2007 Plan. The persons designated in the enclosed proxy will vote your shares
FOR ratification unless you include instructions to the contrury. The Board of Directors urges stockholders to
vote in favor of approval of the WD-40 Company 2007 Stock Incentive Plan.
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ITEM NO. 3
RATIFICATION OF APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors has appointed PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as the independent
registered public accounting firm for the Company to audit the consolidated financial statements of the Company
for fiscal year 2008. Although rarification by stockholders is not required by law, the Audit Comraittee has
determined that it is desirable to request ratification of this selection by the stockholders, Notwithstanding its
selection, the Audit Committee, in its discretion, may appoint a new independent registered publi.: accounting firm
at any time during the year if the Audit Commitice believes that such a change would be in the best inierests of the
Company and its stockholders. If the stockholders do not ratify the appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP,
the Audit Committee may reconsider its selection,

A majority of the votes of the common stock present or represented at the meeting is requirzd for approval.
Broker non-votes will be voted in favor of approval. PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP acted as the Company’s
independent registered public accounting firm during the past fiscal year and. unless the Audit Committee
appoints new independent accountants, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP will continue to act in such capacity during
the current fiscal year. It is anticipated that a representative of Pricewaterhouse-Coopers LLP will attend the
Annual Meeting of Stockholders, will have an opportunity to make a statement if he or she desires to do so and
will be available to respond 1o appropriate questions.

The Audit Committee’s policy is lo pre-approve alt audit and permissible non-audit products and services
provided by the independent registered public accounting firm, These products and services. may include audit
services, audit-related services, tax services, software and other products or services. Pre-approval is generally
provided for up to one year and any pre-approval is detailed as to the particular service or catepory of services
and is gencrally subject to a specific budget. The independent accountants and management are required to
periodically report to the Audit Committee regarding the extent of services provided by the ind-:pendent
accountants in accordance with this pre-approval, and the fecs for the services performed to dawe. The Audit
Committee may also pre-approve particular services on a case-by-case basis. The possible e¢ffect on the
independence of the accountants is considered by the Audit Committee. There is no disect or indirect
understanding or agreement that places a limit on current or future years’ audit fees.

Audit Fees

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP has provided audit services to the Company for each of the past 1wo fiscal years.
Audit fees consist of fees for professional services rendered for the audit of the Company's consolidated annual
financial statements and review of the interim consolidated financial statements included in quarterly reporis and
services that are normally provided by PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP in connection with statutory and regulatory
filings or engagements. Audit fees also include fees for professional services rendered for the adit of the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting. The aggregate fees billed to the
Company by PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP for audit services performed for the Company for the past two fiscal
years were $869.000 for the year ended August 31, 2006 and $860,000 for the year ended August 31, 2007,

Audit-Related Fees

Audit-related services consist of assurance and related services that are reasonably related to the performance of
the audit or review of the Company’s consolidated financial statements and are not reported under *Audit Fees.”
No audit-related services were provided during the fiscal years ending on Augusi 31, 2006 and August 31, 2007.
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Tax Fees

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP provided tax compliance, tax advice, and tax planning services to the Company for
the fiscal year ended Augurt 31, 2006. The tax services provided to the Company by the auditors during the fiscal
year ended August 31, 2006 consisted of tax return preparation, tax payment-planning services and assistance
with tax audits and appeals (to the extent permitted.) The aggregate fees billed to the Company by
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP for tax services performed for the Company for the past two fiscal years were
$15,000 for the year ended August 31, 2006 and $0 for the year ended August 31, 2007.

All Other Fees

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP provided access to online research reference matenals for the fiscal year ending
August 31, 2006 and August 31, 2007. The aggregate fees billed to the Company by PricewaterhouseCoopers
LLP for other services performed for the Company for the past two fiscal years were $3,000 for the year ended
August 31, 2006 and $3,000 for the year ended August 31, 2007.

STOCKHOLDER PROPOSALS

Stockholder proposals must be received by the Company no sooner than May 10, 2008 and not later than July 10,
2008 1o be included in the Proxy Statement and form of Proxy for the next annual meeting.

By Order of the Board of Directors
Maria M. Mitchell

Secretary

Dated: November 8, 2007
IT IS IMPORTANT THAT PROXIES BE RETURNED PROMPTLY. THEREFORE, STOCKHOLDERS

ARE URGED TO FILL IN, SIGN AND RETURN THE ACCOMPANYING FORM OR FORMS OF
PROXY IN THE ENCLOSED ENVELOPE.

37




[THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]




UNITED STATES

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D. C. 20549

FORM 10-K

ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 or 15(d}
OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the Fiscal Year Ended August 31, 2007

Fhramr

Commission File No. 000-06936

WD-40 COMPANY

(Exart Name of Registrani as specified In Charter)

Delaware 95-1797918
(State or other juriwdiction of {L.LR.S. Employer
lncorporation or arganizatlon) ldentificatlon No.)
1061 Cudahy Place, San Diego, California 92110
(Add ress of principat executlve offices) (Zip Code)

Registrant’s telephone number, including area code (619) 275-1400

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) of the Act: f
Title of Class: None
Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) of the Act:

Title of Class: Common Stock, $.001 par value f

Indicate by check mark if the Registrant is a well-known seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405 of the Securities
Act: Yes [ No

Indicate by check mark if the Registrant is not required to file reports pursuant to Section 13 or Section 15(d) of
the Act: Yes [J No [X.

Indicate by check mark whether the Registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d)
of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the
Registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90
days: Yes No [0

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K is not contained
herein, and will not be contained, 10 the best of Registran’s knowledge, in definitive proxy or information
statements incorporated by reference in Pant 111 of this Form 10-K or any amendment to this Form 10-K: M

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, or a
non-accelerated filer, See definition of “accelerated filer and large accelerated filer” in Rule 12b-2 of the

Exchange Act:
Large accelerated filer [[]  Accelerated filer Non-accelerated filer []

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange
Act): Yes ] No

The aggregate market value (closing price) of the voting stock held by non-affiliates of the Registrant as of
February 28, 2007 was $513,928,000.

As of October 17, 2007 the Registrant had 16,853,906 shares of Common Stock outstanding.
DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

The Proxy Statement for the annual meeting of stockholders on December 11, 2007 is incorporated by reference
into PART 111, ltems 10, 11, 12 and 14.




PARTI
ITEM 1 - Business
(a) General Development of Business.

For more than four decades, WD-40 Company (the Company) sold only one product, WD-40%. WD-40 is a
multi-purpose product, which acts as a lubricant, rust preventative, penetrant, cleaner and moisture displacer. In
December 1995, the Company acquired the 3.IN-ONE® 0il brand of general purpose and specialty lubricants. In
April 1999, the Company acquired the Lava® brand heavy-duty hand cleaner and in October 2000, acquired the
Solvol® brand heavy-duty hand cleaner. In April 2001, the Company acquired three additional brands of
houschold cleaning products, 2000 Flushes®, X- 14® and Carpet Fresh®, The Company added to its fortress of
brands through the acquisition in May 2002 of the Spot Shot® brand, a leading brand in the carpet stain remover
category. [n April 2004, the Company again added to its brands with its purchase of the 1001% line of carpet and
household cleaners.

The acquisition of the 3-IN-ONE Oil brand provided the Company with an existing network of distribution in 17
countries, including several markets in which the WD-40 brand had not been sold. The Company used this
distribution network to introduce the WD-40 brand 1o these markets and to add distribution channels in some of
the markets that had been previously established.

The Lava brand is more than 100 years old and is well recognized by U.S. consumers. When the Lava brand was
acquired, the Company identified that the Lava consumer and the WD-40 consumer shared similar characteristics
and belicved the distribution network developed through the WD-40 brand could effectively promote growth in
the U.S. With the Lava acquisition, the Company concluded that it would benefit by an increased position in the
U.S. grocery channel. This was a catalyst for the Global Houschold Brands acquisition.

In fiscal 2001, the Company acquired the business, brand trademarks, patents and other tangible and intangible
assets known as Global Household Brands. The acquisition included three principal brand trademarks, 2000
Flushes avtomatic toilet bow! cleaners, X-14 automatic toilet bow! cleaners and hard surface cleaners and Carpet
Fresh rug and room deodorizers. The acquisition was made to move the Company forward in its fortress of
brands strategy. while also providing cconomies of scale in sales, manufacturing, and administration, and to
strengthen the Company’s position in the grocery trade channel. The Global Household Brands® broker network
and grocery business, combined with the WD-40 Company’s do-it-yourself (DIY} distribution, gave the
Company growth potential for all brands across new trade channels.

In fiscal 2001, the Company also acquired the Solvol brand of heavy-duty hand cleaners in Australia. The
Company extended the brand by introducing liquid products, a benefit from the technology obtained in the
acquisition of the Lava brand. These liquid products have contributed to the growth of the Solvol brand.

In fiscal 2002, the Company completed the acguisition of the business, worldwide brand trademarks and othcr
intangible assets of Heartland Corporation. The principal brand acquired by the Company was the Spot Shot
brand, whose primary product was a carpet stain remover. The acquisition of this brand expanded the Company’s
product offerings in the household-cleaning category. The acquisition also included related Spot Shot products
and a group of developing brands, which were subsequently sold to former employees of Heartland.

In fiscal 2004, the Company purchased the 1001 line of carpet and household cleaners in the United Kingdom
{U.K.). The Company acquired this line of products to gain a presence in the U.K. market and to facilitate an
introduction of the Company’s Spot Shot and Carpet Fresh brand formulations through the use of an existing
brand currently recognized by market consumers.




As a result of the Solvol and 100) acquisitions, the Company was able to introduce existing preducts 1o new
markels. The Company is also focused on expanding ils current brands in existing markets with new product
development. In fiscal year 2003, a new product development cam, known as Team Tomorrow, was ¢reated to
support new product development and current product improvement for all of the Company’s brands.

(b) Financial Information About Industry Segments.

The Company’s operating segments are determined consistent with the way management organizes and evaluates
financial information internally for making operating decisions and assessing performance. The Company is
organized on the basis of geographical area into the following segmems: the Americas, Eurpe and Asia-Pacific,
In addition, management reviews product performance on the basis of revenue. The financial information
required by this item is included in Note 12 -~ Business Segments and Foreign Operations of the: Company’s
consolidated financial statements, which have been included in ITEM 15, Exhibits and Financiul Statement
Schedule.

The Company's revenue comes from three product categories-—multi-purpose lubricants, heavy-duty hand
cleaners and household products. The first two are marketed primarily through retail chain stores, hardware
stores, automolive parts outlets, mass retail and industrial distributors and suppliers, while the bousehold
products are mainly sold in grocery and mass retail.

{c) Narrative Description of Business,

Products

The Company, headquancred in San Diego, California, markets two lubricant brands known as WD-40 and
3-IN-ONE Qil, two heavy-duty hand cleaner brands known as Lava and Solvol, and six househald product
brands known as X-14 hard surface cleaners and automatic toilet bowl cleaners, 2000 Flushes automatic toilet
bowl cleaner, Carpet Fresh and No Vac® rug and rcom deodorizers, Spot Shot acrosol and liquid carpet stain
removers and 1001 carpet and household cleaners and rug and room deodorizers.

The Company's brands are sold in various locations around the world. Lubricant brands are sold worldwide in
markets such as North, Central and Scuth America, Asia, Australia and the Pacific Rim, Europe:, the Middle East
and Africa. Household product brands are currently sold primarily in North America, the U.K., Australia and the
Pacific Rim. Heavy-duty hand cleaner brands are sold primarily in the U.S. and Australia.

WD-40 is the market leader among multi-purpose lubricants and is sold in aerosol cans and in Jiquid form
through retail chain stores, hardware stores, warehduse club stores, automolive parts outlets and industrial
distributors and supplicrs. WD-40 is sold worldwide in markets such as North, Central and South America, Asia,
Australia and the Pacific Rim, Europe, the Middle East and Africa. It has o wide variety of consumer uses in, for
example, houschold, marine, automotive, construction, repair, sporting goods and gardening applications. The
product also has numerous industrial applications.

The 3-IN-ONE Oil brand is sold primarily through the same distribution channels as the WiD-41) brand. The
brand consists of drip oil and spray lubricant preducts. The drip oil is an entry-level lubricant with unique spout
options thal allow precise applications for small mechanisms and assemblies, tool maintenance and threads on
screws and bolts. 3-TN-ONE Qil is the market share leader among drip otls for household consvmers. It also has
wide industrial applications in such areas as locksmithing, HVAC, marine, farming, constructicn and jewelry
manufacturing. In addition to the drip oil line of products, the 3-IN-ONE brand also includes a professional line
of spray lubricant products known as 3-IN-ONE Professional, which is a line of high quality, great value
maintenance products. The high quality and the established distribution network have enabled these products to
gain international acceptance. 3-IN-ONE products are sold primarily in Europe, the U.S., Canaila, Latin America,
Australia and Asia.




The Lava brand is more than 100 years old and has strong awareness among American consumers. At the time of
acquisition, the brand consisted of two sizes of bar soap and one size of liquid cleaner. Prior to the Company’s
acquisition, the brand had been sold in a limited number of domesiic trade channels, notably supermarkets and
drug stores. Because of its heavy-duty characteristics, the Lava brand alse has appeal to consumers who shop in
other channels such as mass, hardware and automotive. The Lava brand is sold primarily in the U.S.

Solvol, Australia’s leading brand of heavy duty hand cleaner, was sold as a bar soap at the time of acquisition.
Shortly after acquiring the Solvol brand, the Company increased the product offering of the brand by adding a
liquid cleaner. Solvol is sold through hardware, grocery, industrial, automative and mass retail channels in
Australia.

X-14, which has recently been resiaged as “The Bathroom Expertpy,,” is a line of quality products designed for
the unique cleaning needs of the bathreom, from quick touch-ups to deep ¢leaning. X-14 is sold as an aerosol and
liquid all- purpose bathraom cleaner, a liquid mold and mildew stain remover, a liquid daily shewer cleaner and
an awtomatic 1oilet bowl cleaner. X-14 is sold primarily in the U.S. through grocery, drug and mass retail
channels.

2000 Flushes is a pioneering line of long-duration automatic toilet bowl cleaners that include in-bowl and drop in
products. 2000 Flushes is sold primarily in the U.S, and Canada through grocery, drug and mass retail channels.

Carpet Fresh initiated the rug and room deodorizer category upon its introduction in 1978. The Carpet Fresh
powder is sprinkled on carpets and vacuumed. Carpet Frash is also sold as an aerosol foam, which does not
require vacuuming. Carpet Fresh is sold primarily through grocery, drug and mass retail channels in the U.S,,
U.K. and Australia. In the U K., Carpet Fresh is sold under the 1001 brand name. In Australia, Carpet Fresh is
sold under the No Vac brand name.

The Spot Shot brand is currently an aerosol and liquid trigger carpet stain remover. The brand’s products are sold
primarily through grocery, mass retail, club stores, hardware and home center stores in the U.S. and Canada. Spot
Shot products are also sold in the U.K. under the 100] brand name.

The 1001 brand includes carpet and household cleaners and is sold pnimarily through mass retait, grocery and
home center stores in the U.K. The brand was acquired with the expectation that the Company would be able to
successfully introduce its other household product formulations under the 1001 brand in order (0 ¢xpand the
Company's household products business into the U.K. market. During fiscal year 2004, the Carpet Fresh and
Spot Shot brands were introduced under the 1001 brand in the U.K. The Carpet Fresh No Vac formula is onc of
the first aerosol rug and roomn deodorizers in the U.K. market.

The Company continues to be focused and committed 10 innovation and new product development. The
Company sees innovation as an importam factor 1o the long-term growth of its brands and intends to continue to
work on future product, packaging and promotional innovations.

Financial information about segment operations and produci lines appears in Note 12 — Business Segments and
Foreign Operations of the Company’s consolidated financial statements, which have been included in ITEM 135,
Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedule.

Sources and Availability of Raw Maserials

The Company relies on multiple suppliers for the primary components for its products. The Company's primary
components include aerosol cans and petroleum-based products, which are manufactured from commeodities that
are subject to volatile price changes. The availability of these components is affected by a variety of supply and
demand factors, including global market trends, plant capacity decisions and natural disasters. The Company
expects these components to continue (o be readily available in the future, although the Company is exposed to
volatile commodity prices.




Research and Development

The Company recognizes the importance of innavation to its long-term success and is focused on and committed
10 research and new product development activities. The Company has a new-product development team known
as Team Tomorrow. This team engages in consumer research, product development, current product
improvement and esting activitics, and also leverages its development capabilities by partnering with a network
of outside resources including the Company’s current and prospective outsource suppliers. The: Company
incurred research and development expenses of $3.8 million in each of fiscal years 2007 and 206, and $2.5
million in fiscal year 2005. None of this research activity was customer-sponsored.

Seasonality

Historically, the Company has achieved its highest quarterly sales levels during its fourth fiscal quarter. These
patterns are largely reflective of the customers’ seasonal purchasing patterns, as well as the timing of the
Company’s promotional activities. However, due to new product introductions and internaion:l sales growth,
these patierns may not continue in future years.

Manufacturing

The Company outsources the manufacturing of its finished products to various suppliers (contract
manufacturers). The Company uses contract manufacturers in the United States, Canada, Brazil, Argentina,
United Kingdom, Australia, China, South Korea and India. Although the Company does nat h;.ve any definitive
minimum purchase obligations included in the contrac! terms with contract manufacturers, supply needs are
communicated, and the Company is committed to purchase the products produced based on orders and short-term
projections provided to the contract manufacturers. In addition, the Company has cxpanded its manufacturer
sourcing outside of its traditional contract manufacturing and distribution model in order to support recent
product introductions.

Significant Customer

Wal-Man Stores, Inc. is a significant U.S. mass retail customer and offers a variety of the Company’s products.
Sales to U.S. Wal-Man stores accounted for approximately 9 percent of the Company’s consolidated net sates
during each of fiscal years 2007, 2006 and 2005. Excluding sales to U.S. Wal-Man stores, sales to affiliaies of
Wal-Man worldwide accounted for approximately 4 percent during each of fisca) years 2007, 2006 and 2005.

Order Backlog
Order backlog is not a significant factor in the Company’s business.
Competition

The market for the Company’s products, especially its household products, is highly competitive and is expected
to be increasingly competitive in the future. The Company's products compete both within their own product
classes as well as within product distribution channels, competing with many other products fcr store placement
and shelf space. Competition in international markets varies by country. The Company is aware of many
competing products, some of which sell for lower prices or are produced and marketed by zom panies with
greater financial resources than those of the Company. The Company relies on the awareness of its brands among
consumers, the value offered by those brands as perceived by consumers, product innovation and its multiple
channel distribution as its primary strategies. New products typically encounter intense cotnpe:ition, which may
require substantial advenising and promotional support. When or if a new product achieves consumer
acceptance, ongoing advertising and promotional support may be required to maintain its rzlat.ve market
position.




Trademarks and Patents

The Company owns numerous patents, but relies primarily upon its established rademarks, brand names and
marketing efforts, including advertising and sales promotion, to compete effectively. The WD-40, 3-IN-ONE,
Lava, Solvol, X-14, 2000 Flushes, Carpet Fresh and No Vac, Spot Shot and 1001 trademarks are registered in
various countries throughout the world,

Employees

At August 31, 2007, the Company employed 278 people worldwide: 136 by the United States parent corporation,
6 of whom are based in the Malaysian regional office; 9 by the Company’s Canadian subsidiary; 95 by the
United Kingdom subsidiary, including 16 in Germany, 14 in France, 10 in Spain and 7 in ltaly; 13 by the
Australian subsidiary; 23 by the Chinese subsidiary; and 2 by WD-40 Manufacturing Company, the Company’s
manufacturing subsidiary. The majority of the Company’s employees are engaged in sales and/or marketing
activities.

{d) Financial Information About Foreign and Domestic Operations and Export Sales.

The information required by this item is included in Note 12—Business Segments and Foreign Operations, of the
Company's consolidated financial statements, which have been included in ITEM 15, Exhibits and Financial
Statement Schedule. The Company is subject to a variety of risks due to its foreign operations, including
currency risk and credit risk. The Company attempts to minimize ils exposure to foreign currency exchange
fluctuations by the use of forward contracts on non-functional currency cash and accounts receivable balances.
With the continuing expansion of the Company’s business in Asia, Latin America, Eastern Europe, the Middle
East and various states in the former Soviet Union, the Company is subject to increased credit risk for products
sold to customers in these areas,

(e) Access to SEC Filings

Interested readers can access the Company’s annual reports on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q,
current reports on Form 8-K and any amendments to those reports filed or furnished pursuant to Section 13(a) or
15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, through the Investor Relations section of the
Company’s website at www.wd40.com. These reports can be accessed free of charge from the Company’s
website as soon as reasonably practicable after the Company electronically files such materials with, or furnishes
them to, the Commission. Note that nothing on the Company’s website has been incorporated into this document.

Interested readers may also read and copy any materials that the Company files at the SEC Public Reference
Room at 100 F Street, N.E., Washington D.C. 20549. Readers may obtain information on the operation of the
Public Reference Room by calling the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330. The SEC also maintains an intcrnet site
{www.sec.gov) that contains the Company's reports.

ITEM 1A . Risk Factors

The following risks and uncertainties, as well as other factors described elsewhere in this report or in other filings
of the Company with the SEC, could adversely affect the Company’s business, financia) condition and results of
operations. Additional risks and uncertainties that are not presently known to the Company, or that are not
currently believed by the Company to be material, may also harm the Company’s business operations and
financial results.

Component Supply Risk

The Company depends upon its suppliers for the supply of the primary components for its produets. Such
components are subject to significant price volatility beyond the control or influence of the Company. Petroleum-
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based products, from which WD-40 and 3-IN-ONE are manufactured, have had significant price volatility in the
past, and may in the future. Rising oil prices also impact the Company’s cost of transporting its products. As
component and raw material costs are the main contribution to cost of goods sold for all of the Company's
products, any significant fluctuation in the costs of components could also have a material impact on the gross
margins realized on the Company's products. Specifically, future can prices are exposed to fluctuations resulting
from changes in 1ariffs on steel as well as general supply and demand economics; therefore, any significant
increase or decrease in steel lariffs and/or the supply and demand of steel could have a significant impact on the
costs of purchasing cans and the Company's cost of goods. In the event there is significant prize volatility or
component costs increases, the Company may not be able to maintain, or may choose not 1o maintain, its gross
margins by raising its product prices. Should the Company choose to increase product prices, ;uch increases may
adversely affect demand and unit sales. Increases in the prices for the components could have a material adverse
cffect on the Company’s business, operating results, financial position and cash flows.

Reliance on Supply Chain

The Company relies on third party contract manufacturers for the production of its finished gcods. The Company
does not have direct control over the management or business of the primary contract manufacturers utilized in
the manufacturing of the Company’s products, except indirectly through terms as negotiatad in contracts with
those manufacturers. Should the terms of doing business with the Company’s primary contract manufacturers
change, the Company’s cost structure may be affected, which could have a direct impact on the Company's profit

margins,

The Company's contract manufacturers rely upon two key vendors for the supply of empty cans used in the
production of WD-40, Carpet Fresh, 3-IN-ONE, Spot Shot, X-14 and 100] products. Additionally, the Company
relies on single manufacturers for the preduction of 2000 Flushes and X- 14 automatic toilet bowl cleaners, X-14
hard surface cleaners, Carpet Fresh powder and Lava bar soup. The loss of any of these suppliers or
manufacturers could disrupt or interrupt the production of the Company’s products. Although the Company has a
business continuity plan to help mitigate the poteatial loss of suppliers or manufacturers, the i1ability to replace
lost suppliers or manufacturers in a reasonable amount of time could have a material adverse cffect on the
Company’s business, operating results, financial position and cash flows.

The Company also relies on third party logistics providers for the distribution of its products 10 customers, The
Company does not have direct control over the management or business of the logistics proviclers, except
indirectly through terms as negotiated in contracts. Should the terms of doing business with the Company’s
logistics providers change, the distribution of products 1o customers may be disrupted, which zould have a direct
impact on the Company's profitability. The inability to replace lost logistics providers in a reasonable amount of
time could also have a material adverse effect on the Company's business, operating results, financial position
and cash flows.

Additionally, as the Company continues to focus on innovation, there is an increasing need for global and
multiple sourcing strategies. The inability of the Company to find adequate sourcing to suppo:1 innovation
initiatives could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s business, operating results, financial position
and cash flows,

Competition

The market for the Company's products is highly competitive and is expected to be increasingly competitive in
the future. The Company’s products compete both within their own product classes as well as within product
distribution channels, competing with many other products for store placement and shelf spacs. Competition in
international markets varies by country. The Company is aware of many competing products, some of which sell
for lower prices. In addition, many of the Company’s competitors have significantly greater financial, technical,
product development, marketing and other resources.




These considerations as well as increased competition generally could result in price reductions, reduced gross
margins, and a loss of market share, any of which could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s
business, operating results, financial position and cash flows. There can be no assurance that the Company will
be able 10 compete successfully against current and future competitors or that competitive pressures faced by the
Company will not materially adversely affect its business, operating results, financial position and cash flows.

Volume Growth

A large percentage of the Company’s revenue comes from mature markets that are subject to increased
competition, During fiscal year 2007, approximately 52% of the Company's sales were generated in U.S.
markets. In the U.S., the markets for lubricants, household products and hand cleaners are considered mature and
are generally characterized by high household penetration, The Company's ability to achieve volume growth is
dependent on its ability to drive growth through innovation and investment in its established brands and its
ability to capture market share from compeititors. During fiscal year 2006, the Company increased prices on a
majority of its product portfolio. Price increases may slow volume growth or create declines in volume in the
short term as customers adjust to price increases. If the Company is unable to increase market share in existing
product lines, or bring innovation to grow its product categories, or develop, acquire or successfully launch new
products, or successfully penetrate new and developing markets, the Company may not achieve its volume
growlh objectives.

Political and Economic Risks

The Company's domestic and international operations are exposed to the risk of political and economic
uncertainties. Changes in political and economic conditions may affect product cost, availability, distribution,
pricing, purchasing, and consumption patterns. While the Company seeks to manage its business in consideration
of these risks, there can be no assurance that the Company will be successful in doing so.

As the Company's sales extend to various countries around the globe, financial results in affected areas are
exposed to a higher degree of risk. Examples of regions currently exposed 1o such types of risk include Latin
America, the Middle East and parts of Asia. There can be no assurance that the Company will be able to
successfully mitigate against current and future risks associated with political and economic uncertainties, or that
the risks faced by the Company will not materially adversely affect its business, operating results, financial
position and cash flows. As sales grow within various regions around the world, the Company’s exposure to this
risk will increase.

International Operations

The Company's sales outside of the U.S. were approximately 48% of net sales in fiscal year 2007. The Company
has faced and will continve (o face substantial risks associated with having foreign operations, including
restrictions on repatriating foreign profits back to the U.S. and the imposition of tariffs or trade restrictions,
These nisks could have a significant impact on the Company’s ability to sell its products on a compelitive basis in
international markets and may have a material adverse effect on the Company’s results of operations or financial
posihion.

Also, the Company's operations outside of the U.S. are subject to the risk of new and different legal and
regulatory requirements in local jurisdictions, potential difficulties in staffing and managing local operations,
potentially higher incidence of fraud or corruption, credit risk of local customers or distributors and potentially
adverse tax conscquences,

The Company is also exposed to foreign currency exchange rate risk with respect to its sales, profits, and assets
and liabilities denominated in currencies other than the U.S. dollar. Although the Company uses instruments to !
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hedge certain foreign currency risks, it is not fully protected against foreign currency fluctuations and, therefore,
the Company’s reported earnings will be affected by changes in foreign currency exchange. rates,

Business Risks

With the trend toward consolidation in the retail marketplace, the Company's customer base is shiftuing toward
fewer, but larger, customers who purchase in larger volumes. A large percentage of the Compiny's sales are 10
mass retail customers. Sales to one of these customers (Wal-Mart and affiliates) accounted for approximately
13% of the Company’s net sales in fiscal year 2007. Additionally, each of the Company’s individual brands may
be subjected to customer sales concentration. The loss of, or reduction in, orders from any of the Company’s
most significant customers could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s brand values, business and
financial results.

Large customers also seek price reducticns, added support or promotional concessions, which may negatively
impact the Company's ability to maintain existing profit margins.

The Company does not typically enter into long-terim contracts with its customers. Accordingly, these customers
could reduce their purchasing levels or cease buying products from the Company at any time and for any reason.
In addition, the Company is subject to changes in customer purchasing patterns. These types of changes may
result from changes in the manner in which customers purchase and manage inventory levels, ar display and
promote products within their stores. Other potential factors such as customer disputes regarding shipmeats, fees,
merchandise condition or related matters may alsc impact operating results.

The Company also faces the risk of diminishing product categories or shifts within these categories. Currently,
the Company faces challenges related to its household products brands. Household products have shon
differentiated life cycles and ofien need continuous innovation to address consumers’ changin;? needs and tastes.
As a resuli of the dynamic nature of these product categories, the ability to understand consumer preferences and
innovate is key to the Company’s ongoing success. In the event that the Company is unablz to meet consumer
preferences through innovation, its brands and product offerings may be at risk of impairment.

Goodwill and Intangible Assets Impairment Risk

The Company carries goodwill and intangible assets resulting from the Company’s acquisitior.s. Changes in
market conditions or changes in the Company's results could subject these assets to risks of impairment.

The following items could trigger impairment:
+ Significan underperformance relative to historical or projected future operating results

« Significant changes in the manner of cur use of the acquired assets or the strategy for our overall
business

» Significant negative industry or economic trends

« Significant decline in our stock price for a sustained period

» Decreased market capitalization relative to net book value

» Unanticipated technological change or competitive activities

» Loss of key distribution




+ Loss of key personnel
*  Acts by government and courts

In fiscal year 2007, the Company's U.S. sales of household products declined versus the prior fiscal year. If the
Company’s sales of household products continue to decline and are determined to be other than temporary, the
Company’s imangible assets associated with these brands could be subject 10 impairment.

New Product Development Risks

The Company's long-term growth is reliant, in part, on the success of new product introductions and product
renovations. The Company competes in several product categories where there are frequent iniroductions of new
products and line extensions. The ability 10 understand consumer preferences and identify technological rends is
key lo maintaining and improving the competitiveness of its product offerings. The development and
introduction of new products, as well as the renovation of current products and product lines, requires significant
research and development, marketing and manufacturing expenditures, which the Company may not recoup if the
new or renovated products do not gain market acceptance. There are inherent risks associated with new product
development, including product launch delays, which could result in the Company not being first to market,
higher inventory costs if managed ineffectively, product design failures, product defects and the failure of new
products 1o achieve expected levels of consumer acceptance. As the Company continues to focus on irnovation,
the Company’s financial condition, results of operations or cash flows could be adversely affected in the event
that the Company is not able to effectively develop and introduce new or renovated products and line extensions.

Operating Results and Net Earnings May Not Meet Expectations
The Company cannot be sure that its operating results and net eamnings will meet expectations. If the Company’s
assumptions and estimates are incorrect or do not come to fruition, or if the Company does not achieve all of its
key goals, then the Company’s actual performance could vary materially from its expectations. The Company’s
operating results and net earnings may be influenced by a number of factors, including the following:

= The introduction of new products and line extensions by the Company or its compelitors

« The mix of products with varying profitability sold in a given quarter

» The mix of products sold within channels and different countries with varying profitability in a given
quarter

+ The Company's ability to control its internal costs and the cost of raw materials

¢ The effectiveness of the Company’s advertising, marketing and promotional programs
= Changes in product pricing policies by the Company or its competitors

» Consumer and cusiomer reaction to price increases

» The ability of the Company 10 execute its strategies and to maintain and enhance profits in the face of a
consolidating retail environment

» Changes in accounting policies and accounting standards

* The ability of the Company to achieve business plans, including volume growth and pricing plans, as a
result of high levels of competitive activity




The ability to maintain key customer relationships
The ability of major customers and other debtors to meet their obligations as they come due

The failure of parties contracting with the Company to perform their obligations and the loss of or
inability to renew contracts of importance to the Company's performance

The Company’s reliance on brokers to maintain and grow distribution in the grocery channel

The ability to successfully manage regulatory, tax and legal malters, including resolution of pending
matters within current estimates

Substantial costs associated with regulatory compliance
The ability of the Company to auract and retain qualified personnel
The ability of the Company to maintain the value of its brands

Expenses for impairment of goodwill, trademarks and other intangible assets and squ.ty investments in
excess of projections

Expenses for impairment and obsolescence of property, plant and equipment

The ability to maintain the overall quality of new and existing products

The ability of the Company to penetrate and grow markets and distribution channzls

The ability of the Company to manage the impact of foreign currency fluctuations.

The impact of foreign import and export restrictions or other trade regulations

The availability and cost of debt financing

Changes to cash flow resulting from tax payments, tax settlements and share repurchises

The ability of the Company to manage inventory at appropriate levels, including decisions regarding
obsclescence

The impact of any litigation or product liability claims
Fluctuations in federal, state, local and foreign taxes

The impact of general economic conditions in the United States and in other countries in which the
Company currently does business

[n addition, sales volume growth, whether due to acquisitions or to internal growth, can pluce burdens on
management resources and financial controls that, in turn, can have a negative impact on operating results. To
some extent, the Company plans its expense levels in anticipation of future revenues. If actual revenue falls short
of these expectations, operating resuits and net earnings are likely to be adversely affected.

Regulatory Risks

The Company is subject to numerous environmental laws and regulations that impose various environmental
controls on its business operations, including, among other things, the discharge of pollutants into the air and
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water, the handling, use, treatment, storage and clean-up of solid and hazardous wastes and the investigation and
remediation of soil and groundwater affected by hazardous substances. Such laws and regulations may otherwise
relate to various health and safety matters that impose burdens upon the Company's operations. These laws and
regulations govern actions that may have adverse environmental effects and also require compliance with certain
practices when handling and disposing of hazardous wastes. These laws and regulations also impose strict,
retroactive and joint and several liability for the costs of, and damages resulting from, cleaning up current sites,
past spills, disposals and other releases of hazardous substances. The Company believes that its expenditures
related to environmental matters have not had, and are not currently expected to have, a material adverse effect
on its financial condition, results of operations or cash flows. However, the environmental laws under which the
Company operates are complicated and often increasingly more stringent, and may be applied retroactively.
Accordingly, there can be no assurance that the Company will not be required to make additional expenditures to
remain in or to achieve compliance with environmental laws in the future or that any such additional
expenditures will not have a material adverse effect on the Company’s financial condition, results of operations
or cash flows.

Some of the Company’s products have chemical compositions that are controlled by various state, federa) and
international laws and regulations. The Company is required to comply with these laws and regulations and seeks
to anticipate regulatory developments that could impact the Company’s ability to continue to produce and market
its products, The Company invests in rescarch and development to maintain product formutations that comply
with such laws and regulations. There can be no assurance that the Company will not be required to alter the
chemical composition of one or more of the Company’s products in a way that will have an adverse effect upon
the product’s efficacy or marketability. A delay or other inability of the Company to complete product research
and development in response to any such regulatory requirements could have a material adverse effect on the
Company’s financial condition and results of operations.

A focus on environmental regulations relating to Volatile Organic Compounds (VOCs) resulted in a change in
1996 in the formulation of the WD-40 product in the majority of countries where the product is sold, whereby
CO, was chosen as the acrosol propellant. This change increased the cost of manufacturing WD-40, and the
Company increased its selling prices to partially offset the additional cost. In the cvent of future increases in
product cost, the Company may not be in a position to raise selling prices, and therefore an increase in costs
couid have an adverse effect on the Company’s profitability.

In California, VOCs are regulated by the California Air Resources Board (CARB), one of the most influential
state environmental regulatory agencies in the United States. In the past, CARB regulations have required a
reformulation of the Company’s multi-purpose lubricants. The Company successfully reformulated its rulti-
purpose lubricants to be in full compliance with CARB regulations. The reformulation resulied in increased
product costs. CARB continually reviews its allowable levels of VOCs in products and product categories in
which the Company’s products compete. In the event that CARB regulations require further reformulations of
any of the Company’s products, the impact of reformulation could have an adverse effect on product
performance and the Company’s profitability.

In conjunction with the review of the state budget, California authorized CARB to enforce a fee-based system,
which would allow it to collect “fees” from those it governs on the VOC issues. These fees go into CARB's
operating budget and help cover shortfalls, and are said 1o be based on the amount of VOCs 2 company’s product
puts into the state’s atmosphere. If a similar VOC policy is adopted by other states, the potential impact of fees
churged could be material to the Company.

Generally, the manufacturing, packaging, storage, distribution and labeling of the Company’s products and the
Company’s business operations all must comply with extensive federal, state, and foreign laws and regulations. It
is possible that the government will increase regulation of the transportation, storage or use of certain chemicals,
to enhance homeland security or protect the environment and that such regulation could negatively impact raw
material supply or costs.
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Resolution of Tax Disputes

Significant judgment is required in determining the Company’s effective tax rate and in evaluating tax positions.
The Company establishes accruals for certain tax contingencies when, despite the belief that it«. tax return
positions are fully supported, the Company believes that certain positions may not be fully sustained upon
challenge by relevant 1ax authorities. The tax contingency accruals are adjusted in light of charging facts and
circumstances, such as progress of tax audits, case taw development and emerging legislation. The Company’s
effective tax rate includes the impact of tax contingency accruals and changes to the accruals, including related
interest and penalties, as considered appropriate by management. With respect to tax contingencies, when
particular matters arise, a number of years may clapse before such matters are audited and finally resolved.
Favorable resolution of such maiters could be recognized as a reduction to the Company’s effe:tive tax rate in
the year of resolution. Unfavorable settlement of any particular issue could increase the effective tax rate.
Resolution of a tax issue may require the adjustment of tax assets or tax liabilities or the use of cash in the year of
resolution.

Acgquisition Risk

Since 2001, the Company has acquired the houschold product brands: Spot Shot, 2000 Flushes. X-14, Carpet
Fresh and 1001. The Company believes that its acquisitions provide opportunities for growih for all of the
Company’s brands as well as increased efficiencies and cost savings in management, operations and marketing.
However, if the Company is not able to successfully integrate acquired products, the Company may not be able
to maximize these opponunities. Rather, the failure to integrate these acquired businesses because of difficulties
in the assimilation of operations and products, the diversion of management’s attention from other business
concemns, the loss of key employees or other factors could materially adversely affect the Company's financial
results.

One of the Company's strategies is 10 increase its sales volumes, earnings and the markets it serves through
acquisitions of other businesses in the United States and internationally, There can be no assurince that the
Company will be able to identify, acquire, or profitably manage additional companies or operalions or that it will
be able to successfully integrate future acquisitions into its operations. In addition, there can be no assurance that
companies or operations acquired will be profitable at their inception or that they will achieve nales levels and
profitability that justify the investments made.

Future acquisitions could also result in the incurrence of debi, potentially dilutive issuances of cquity securities,
contingent liabilities, amortization expenses related to certain intangible assets and/or increased operating
expenses, which could adversely affect the Company’s results of operations and financial condition. In addition,
to the extent that the economic benefits associated with any of the Company’s acquisitions diminish in the future,
the Company may be required to record write-downs of goodwill, intangible assets or other asszts associated with
such acquisitions, which could also adversely affect the Company’s operating results,

Debt Financing Risk

The Company has historically paid out a large part of its eamings to stockholders in the form of regular quarterly
dividends. The past acquisitions have been funded to a large extent by debt. In order to service the debt, the
Company is required to use its income from operations to make interest and principal payments required by the
terms of the loan agreements. In addition, the Company is required by covenants within the loan agreements to
maintain certain financial ratios and compliance with other financial terms.

In fiscal years 2005 and 2007, the Company announced increases to its regular quarterly dividend from $0.20 to
$0.22 per share in April 2005 and from $0.22 to $0.25 in December 2006 (increasing the annual dividend since
April 2005 from $0.80 to $1.00). However, if operating income is not sufficient to properly service the debt or
otherwise allow the Company to maintain compliance with the terms of its loans, the Company could be required
10 seek additional financing through the issuance of more debt or the sale of equity securities, or the Company
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might be required to reduce dividends. An increase in the Company’s debt service obligations could result in
lower earnings if anticipated gross and net margins are not maintained.

The Company may also incur substantial additional debt in the future for other reasons, including acquisitions. If
new debt is added to current debt levels, the Company's related risks could intensify.

Protection of Intellectual Property

The Company relies on trademark, trade secrel, patent and copyright laws to protect its intellectual property. The
Company cannot be sure that these intellectual property rights will be successfully asserted in the future or that
they will not be invalidated or circumvented. In addition, laws of some of the foreign countries in which the
Company's products are or may be sold do not protect the Company’s intellectual property rights to the same
extent as the laws of the United States. The failure of the Company to protect its proprietary information and any
successful intellectual property challenges or infringement proceedings against the Company could make it less
competitive and could have i material adverse effect on the Company’s business, operating results and financial
condition,

Intellectual Property Infringement

It is possible that the Company could be found to have violated the trademark, trade secret, copyright, patent or
other intellectual property rights of others. Such a finding could result in the need to cease the use of a trademark,
trade secret, copyrighted work or patented invention in the Company's business and 1o pay a substantial amount
for past infringement. It could also be necessary to pay a substantial amount in the future if the rights holder is
willing to permit the Company to continue to use the intellectual property rights. Either having to cease use or to
pay such amounts could make the Company less competitive and could have a material adverse impact on its
business, operating results and financial condition.

Volatility in the Insurance Market

The Company re-evaluates its insurance coverage annually. From time to time, insurance contracts may be much
more expensive, less prolective or even unavailable. In such a case the Company may decide to increase levels of
self-insurance, thereby undenaking additional risk.

Product Liability and Other Litigation Risks

While the Company exerts every effort to ensure that the products it develops and markets are safe for
consumers, the use of the Company's products may expose the Company 1o liability claims resulting from such
use. Claims could be based on allegations that, among other things, the Company's products contain
contaminants, provide inadequate instructions regarding their use or inadequate warnings concerning interactions
with other substances. Product liability claims could result in negative publicity that could harm the Company’s
sales and operating results. In addition, if one of the Company’s products were found to be defective, the
Company would be required to recall the product, which could result in adverse publicity and significant
expenses. The Company maintains product liability insurance that it believes will be adequate to protect the
Company from material loss atributable to such claims but the extent of such loss could exceed available limits
of insurance or could arise ont of circumstances under which such insurance coverage would be unavailable.
Other business activities of the Company may also expose the Company to litigation risks, including risks that
may not be covered by insuriince, If successful claims are asserted by third parties against the Company for
uninsured liabilities or liabilities in excess of applicable insured limits of coverage, the Company’s business,
financial condition and results of operations may be adversely affected.

Additionally, the Company’s products may be associated with competitor products or other products in the same
category, which may be alleged 10 have caused harm to consumers. As a result of this association, the Company
may be named in unwarranted legal actions. The potential costs of defense may materially affect the Company's
results of operations and cash flows in future periods.
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Marketing Distributor Relationships

The Company distributes its products throughout the world in one of two ways: the Direct Distribution model,
where products are sold directly by the Company to wholesalers and retailers in the U.S., U.K., Canada,
Australia, China and a number of other countries, and the Marketing Distributor mode), where products are sold
10 exclusive marketing distributors who in turn sell 1o wholesalers and retailers. The marketing distributor model
is used in certain countries where the Company does not have direct company-owned operations. Instead, the
Company partners with local companies who perform the sales, marketing and distribution fur,ction. The
Company invests time and resources in these relationships. Should key personnel change and/or the relationship
change or terminate, the Company could be at risk until such time as a suitable replacement can be found and the
Company’s key markeling strategies implemented. There is a risk that changes in such market:ng distributor
relationships that are not managed successfully could result in a disruption in one or more of the affected markets
and that such disruption could have an adverse material effect on the Company’s business, operaling results,
financial position and cash flows. Additionally, in some countries, local laws may require substantial payments to
terminate existing relationships, which could also have an adverse material effect on the Company’s business,
operating results, financial position and cash flows.

Natural Disasters and Terrorist Attacks

The occurrences of natural disasters, pandemics, adverse weather events or terrorist attacks may result in the loss
of customers, short-term losses in distribution to customers, supply chain disruptions and increased costs of raw
materials. Therefore, the occurrence of natural disasters, pandemics, adverse weather events or terrorist attacks
could have an adverse material effect on the Company’s business, operating results, financial position and cash
flows.

Market Expectations

The market price of the Company's stock is based, in part, on market expectations for the Conipany’s sales
growth, earnings per share and cash flow. Failure to meet or exceed these expectations could cause the market
price of the Company's stock 1o decline.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

The management of WD-40 Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequat: internal control
over financial reporting. Internal control over financial reporting is a process 1o provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting for external purposes in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States. Internal control over financial reporting includes rnairtaining records in
reasonable detail that accurately and fairly reflect the Company’s transactions, providing reasonable assurance
that receipts and expenditures are made in accordance with management's authorization, and providing
reasonable assurance that the unauthorized acquisition, use or disposition of the Company's a:sets that could
have a material effect on the financial statements would be prevented or detected on a timcly basis, Because of its
inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting is not intended to provide absoluie assurance that a
misstatement in the Company’s financial statements would be prevented or detected, The Conipany’s continuing
growth and expansion in global markets will place additional significant pressure on the Company’s system of
internal control over financial reporting. Any failure 10 maintain an effective system of intzrnz) control over
financial reponting could limit the Company's abilily to report its financial results accurately and timely or to
detect and prevent fraud,

ITEM 1B - Unresolved Staff Comments

None.
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ITEM 2 - Properties
The Americas

The Company owns and occupies an office and plant facility at 1061 Cudahy Place, San Diego, California 921 10.
The building consists of office, plant and storage space. The Company leases additional office and storage space
in San Diego. The Company leases a regional sales office in Miami, Florida and a research and developmem
office in Springfield, New Jersey. The Company also leases office space in Toronto, Ontario, Canada.

In addition, the Company owns a warehouse facility in Memphis, Tennessee. The Company rents this facility to
VML Company L.L.C. (VML.}, who serves as the Company’s contract manufacturer for certain household
products and acts as a warehouse distributor for other product lines of the Company.

Europe

The Company owns and occupies an office and plant facility in Milion Keynes, Uniled Kingdom. The building
consists of office, plant and storage space. In addition, the Company leases space for the branch offices in
Germany, France, Spain and ltaly.

Asia-Pacific

The Company leases office space in Epping, New South Wales, Australia and Shanghai, China. The Company
also leases office space for a regional office in Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia.

With minor adjustments, the Company believes that these properties should be sufficient to meet its needs for
office and plant facilities for the near future. Increased growth may cause the Company to acquire and/or modify
its space in future years.

ITEM 3 - Legal Proceedings

The Company is party lo various claims, legal actions and complaims, including product liability litigation,
arising in the ordinary course of business.

On April 19, 2006, a legal action was filed against the Company in the United States District Coun, Southern
District of California (Drimmer v. WD-40 Company). After several of the plaintiff’s factual claims were
dismissed by way of motion, the plaintiff filed an amended complaint on September 20, 2006, seeking class
action status and alleging that the Company misrepresented that its 2000 Flushes Bleach and 2000 Flushes Blue
Pius Bleach automatic toilet bowl cleaners {ATBCs) are safe for plumbing systems and unlawfully omitted to
advise consumers regarding the allegedly damaging effect the use of the ATBCs has on toilet parts made of
plastic and rubber. On Augusi 24, 2007 the Company successfully defeated the plaintiff’s attempt to have the
case centified as a class action. The plaintiff has petitioned for permission to appeal the District Court’s decision
and the Company has opposed the petition. [f the plaintiff is successful in an appeal and class action certification
is granted in this aforememioned legal action, it is reasonably possible that the outcome could have a material
adverse effect on the operating results, financial position and cash flows of the Company. There is not sufficient
information to estimate the Company’s exposure at this time,

The Company has been named as a defendant in an increasing number of lawsuits brought by a growing group of
attorneys on behalf of individual plaintiffs who assert that exposure to products that allegedly contain benzene is
a cause of certain cancers, The Company is one of many defendants in these legal proceedings whose products
are alleged to contain benzene. However, the Company specifies that its suppliers provide constitvent ingredients
free of benzene, and the Company believes its products have always been formulated without containing
benzene. Except for self-insured retention amounts applicable to each separately filed lawsuit, the Company
expects that the benzene lawsuits will be adequately covered by insurance and will not have a material impaci on
the Company’s financial condition or results of operations. The Company is vigorously defending these lawsuits
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in an effort to demonstrate conclusively that its products do not contain benzene, and that they have not
contained benzene in prior years. The Company is unable to assess the expected cost of defense of these lawsuits
in future periods. If the number of benzene lawsuits filed against the Company continues to inzrease, it is
reasonably possible that such costs of defense may materially affect the Company’s results of operations and
cash flows in future periods.

ITEM 4 - Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

Not applicable.

Executive Officers of the Registrant

The following table sets forth the names and ages of, and the positions and offices held by, all executive officers

within the Company:

Name
Garry O. Ridge

Michael 1. Irwin

Graham P, Milner

Michael L. Freeman

Geoffrey 1. Holdsworth

Willtam B. Noble

Age
51

53

54

45

49

Position

President and Chief Executive Officer. Mr, Ridge joined the: Company’s
Australian subsidiary, WD-40 Company (Australia) Pty, Limited, in 1987 as
Managing Director and has held several senior managernen: positions prior to
his election as CEQ in 1997,

Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer, and Trezsurer. Mr. Irwin
joined the Company in May 1995 as Director of U.S. Marketing, and later
served as Director of Marketing for The Americas. In April 1998 he was
promoted to Vice President, Marketing for The Americas, vas named Senior
Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer in May 2001, and in
September 2002 was named Executive Vice President.

Executive Vice President, Global Development and Chief Eiranding Officer.
Mr. Milner joined the Company in 1992 as International Director, was
appointed Vice President, Sales and Marketing, The Americas, in March 1997,
became Senior Vice President, The Americas, in April 1994, and was named
Executive Vice President, Global Developmeni and Chief Eranding Officer in
September of 2002.

Division President, The Americas. Mr, Freeman joined the Company in 1990
as Director of Marketing and was named Director of Operations in 1994. He
became Vice President, Administration and Chief Information Officer in
December 1996, was promoted to Senior Vice President, Qperations in
September 2001, and was named Division President, The Americas, in
September 2002.

Managing Director, WD-40 Company (Australia} Pty. Limited and Shanghai
Wu Di Trading Company Limited. Mr. Holdsworth joined the Company’s
Australian subsidiary, WD-40 Company (Australia) Pty. Limited, in 1996 as
General Manager. Prior to joining WD-40 Company, Mr. Eoldsworth held
sales management positions at Columbia Pelikan Pty. Ltd., Australia.

Managing Director, WD-40 Company Ltd. (U.K.). Mr. Noble joined the
Company’s Australian subsidiary, WD-40 Company (Australia) Pty. Limited,
in 1993 as International Marketing Manager for the Asia R:gion. He was
appointed Managing Director, Europe in December 1996,

All executive officers hold office at the pleasure of the Board of Directors.
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PART 11

ITEM § - Market For Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of
Equity Securities

The Company’s common stock is traded on The Nasdaq Stock Market (National Market System). As of
August 31, 2007, the approximate number of holders of record of the Company's common stock was 1,459. The
following table sets forth the range of high and low sales prices on The Nasdaq Stock Market of the Company's
common stock for the periods indicated, as reported by Nasdaqg.

SELECTED STOCK INFORMATION

FISCAL 2007 FISCAL 2006

HIGH LOW DIVIDEND HIGH  LOW  DIVIDEND
First Quarter $37.59 53056  $022 $29.72 82535 0.2
Second Quarter $35.63 53165 3025  §31.85 $2600  S0.22
Third Quarter $37.86 $30.79  $0.25  §33.70 S$29.41 $0.22
Fourth Quarter $39.31  $31.90  $0.25 33540 §29.91 50.22

The Company has historically paid regular quarterly cash dividends on its common stock. The Board of Directors
of the Company presently intends to continue the payment of regular quarterly cash dividends on the common
stock. The Company’s ability to pay dividends could be affected by future business performance, liquidity,
capital needs, alternative investment opportunities and loan covenants.

Issuance of Unregistered Sccurities

On March 1, 2007, the Company issued a total of 3,896 shares of its common stock to four of its non-employce
directors pursuant to the Company's Amended and Restated WD-40 Company 1999 Non-Employee Director
Restricted Stock Plan (the Plan). The shares were issued in lieu of cash compensation for all or part of each
electing director’s annual fee for services as a director. The number of shares issued was determined according to
a formula set forth in the Plan equal to the total compensation to be paid in shares divided by 90% of the closing
price of the Company’s shares on the first business day of March 2007. On March 1, 2007, the Company issued
shares to directors under the Plan with an aggregate market value of $125,000 in licu of cash compensation in the
amount of $113,000. The issuance of the shares of the Company's common stock to the directors was exempt
from registration under the Securities Act of 1933 (the “Act™) pursuant to Section 4(2) of the Actas a transaction
by an issuer not involving a public offering. The shares issued to directors are subject to certain restrictions upon
transfer.

Repurchase of Company Svcurities

On March 27, 2007, the Company's Board of Directors approved a share buy-back plan. Under the plan, which is
in effect for up to twelve months, the Company is authorized to acquire up to $35.0 million of the Company's
outstanding shares. As of August 31, 2007, the Company has acquired 500,000 shares at a total cost of $17.3
million under the plan.

The following table presents the total number of shares repurchased during the last quarter of fiscal year 2007:
(r) Total Numb () Mat
of Shares

Dollar Value of
{o) Total Purchased es Part Shares that May
Number of {b) Avernge of Publlcty Yet Be Purchased
Shares Price Pald per  Announced Ptars  Under the Plans or
Perlod Furchased Share or Frograms Programs
June 1 - June 30 — $ - — $35.000,000
July 1 - July 31 360,600 $34.37 360,600 $22,593,447
August 1 - August 31 139,400 $35.21 139,400 $17.679.718
Total 500,000 $34.60 500.000

Administrative costs, such as commissions and handling fees, related to the stock repurchase program totaled
approximately $20,000 in the last quarter of fiscal year 2007. If these costs were included in the average price
paid per share, the average price would equal $34.64.
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ITEM 6 - Selected Financial Data

| The following data has been derived from the Company's audited consolidated financial stitements. The data
should be read in conjunction with such consolidated financial statements and other financial information
| appearing elsewhere herein,

Yeor coded fugust 31,

| {in thousands, except per share amounts) 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
Net sales’ 3307816 3286916 5263227 $242467 5238140
Cost of products sold 158,954 148,516 133,333 116,944 115,928
Gross profit 148,862 138400 129,394 125523 122212
Operating expenses 99,846 92,378 81,974 80.074 72.460
Income from operations 49.016 46,022 47,420 45,449 49,752
Interest and other (expense) income, net (1,341 (3.164) (4.,355) (6.596) (6.357)
Income before income 1axes 47,175 42,858 42,365 38,853 43,395
Provision for income taxes 15,641 14,746 15067 13,210 14,754
Net income $ 31,534 $28112 $ 27198 § 25,643 § 2B.641

Eamings per common sharc

Basic $ 185 § 167 § 167 $ 152 § 173
Diluted S 183 S 166 S 165 5 150 3 L7l '
Dividends per share $ 097 S 088 5 084 § 080 S 080
Total assets $283,186 S268475 5254153 $236,775 $236658
Long-term obligations? S 61057 § 69077 § 77087 S 81822 § B678I

! The Company completed the acquisition of the 1001 business (1001) during fiscal year 2004. Sales of the
1001 brand added $11.2 million, $9.4 million, $8.9 million and $3.2 million in household products sales in
fiscal years 2007, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

1 Long-term obligations include long-term debt, deferred employee benefits and other long-term liabilities
and long-term deferred tax liabilities, net.
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ITEM 7 - Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

The following Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) is intended to help the reader understand the
WD-40 Company. MD&A is presented in ten sections: Overview, Summary Statement of Operations, Highlights,
Results of Operations, Liquidity and Capital Resources, Stock-Based Compensation, Critical Accounting
Policies, Recent Accounting Pronouncements, Transactions with Related Parties and Quantitative and Qualitative
Disclosures about Market Risk. MD&A is provided as a supplement to, and should be read in conjunction with,
the Company’s consolidated financial statements and the accompanying notes contained in ltem 15.

In MD&A, “we,” “our,” “us’" and “thc Company” refer to WD-40 Company and its wholly-owned subsidiaries,
unless the context requires otherwise. Amounts and percents in tables and discussions may not total due to
rounding,

OVERVIEW

The Company markets two lubricant brands known as WD-40 and 3-IN-ONE Oil, two heavy-duty hand cleaner
brands known as Lava and Solvol, and six household product brands known as X-14 hard surface cleaners and
antomatic toilet bowl cleaners, 2000 Flushes automatic toilet bowl cleaner, Carpet Fresh and No Vac rug and
room deodorizers, Spot Shot acroso! and liquid carpet stain removers and 1001 carpet and houschold cleaners
and rug and room deodorizers. These brands are sold in various locations around the world. Lubricant brands are
sold worldwide in markets such as North, Central and South America, Asia, Australia and the Pacific Rim,
Europe, the Middle East and Africa. Household product brands are currently sold primarily in North America, the
U.K., Australia and the Pacific Rim. Heavy-duty hand cleaner brands are sold primarily in the U.S. and Australia.

SUMMARY STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS
(dollars in thousands, excepi per share amounts)

Fhcal Year Ended August 31, Flsca! Year Ended August 31,
007 2006 % Change 1008 2008 % Change
Net sales $£307,816  $2B6,916 T% $286916  $263.227 9%
Gross profit $148862  $138.400 B% $138400  $129.3%4 1%
Income from operations $ 49016  $ 46,022 1% $ 46,022 $ 47,420 3%
Net income $ 31,5 3 28,112 12% $ 28,112 $ 27,798 1%
Eamings per common share (diluted) $ 183 3 166 10% $ 166 $ 165 1%

Highlights

e Infiscal year 2007, sales in Europe and Asia-Pacific increased 22% and 15%, respectively, compared
to the prior fiscal year. Sales in the Americas were essentially flat compared 1o the prior fiscal year,

s Infiscal year 2007, lubricant sales were up 14%, household product sales were down 5%, and hand
cleaner sales were down 3% versus fiscal year 2000.

* Changes in foreign currency exchange rates contributed to the increase in our sales as well as the
increase in our expenses. Fiscal year 2007 results translated at last fiscal year's exchange rates would
have produced sales of $298.5 million and net income of $30.4 million. The impact of the change in
foreign currency exchange rates year over year positively affected sales and net income Sor fiscal year
2007 by $9.3 million and $1.1 million, respectively.

»  The categories in which the Company's household products are sold are very competitive by nature. For
the fiscal year ended August 31, 2007, sales of the Company's household products in the U.S. were
down 10% versus the prior fiscal year as a result of temporary decreases in distribution, lost
distribution, category declines, promotional timing and customer purchasing patterns. The decreases in
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the U.S. were partially offset by increases in the U.K. and Australia of 20% and 64%, respectively.
These increases were primarily driven by growth of Carpet Fresh No Vac sales, which is sold under the
1001 brand name in the U.K. and under the No Vac brand name in Australia.

We continue to be concerned about rising costs of components and raw materials. In recent years, we
have incurred continuing cost increases. To combat the rise in costs, the Company implemented price
increases on certain producis during the third quarter of fiscal years 2006 and 2005. In addition, the

Company has created a cost reduction team to focus on cost saving initiatives as well as supply chain
opportunities.

We continue to be focused and committed to new product development under our brand names. We see
innovation and renovation as important factors 1o the long-term success of our brands, and we intend 1o
continue our commitmeni io work on future product, packaging and promotional inncvarions and
renovations.

Selling, general and administrative (SG&A) expenses were up 9% during fiscal year 2007 compared to
the prior fiscal year due to increased employee-related costs, legal expenses, commis.iions, the impact of
Joreign currency exchange rate changes and other miscellaneous expenses.

During fiscal year 2007, the Company began direct operations in China. For the jiscal year ended
Aungust 31, 2007, SG&A costs related to the direct operations in China totaled $1.4 million, which
represenis 219 of the Company’s 3$6.8 million increase in SG&A expenses over the prior fiscal year.

Advertising and sales promotion expenses were up 3% in fiscal year 2007 compared 1o the prior fiscal
year. Advertising and sales promotion expenses were up due o increased consumer broadeasr, print
media and other advertising activities in the U.5., Europe and Australia.

On March 27, 2007, the Company’s Board of Directors approved a share buy-back plan. Under the
plan, which is in effect for up to nwelve months, the Company is authorized to acquire up to $35 mitlion
of the Company's outstanding shares. As of August 31, 2007, the Company has acquired 500,000 shares
at a total cost of $17.3 million under the plan.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Year Ended August 31, 2007 Compared with the Year Ended August 31, 2006
Net Sales
Net Sales by Segiment Flscal Year Ended Augusi 31,
{in thousands) 2007 2036 $ Chenge % Change
Americas $187.146 $186.769 $ 2377 0%
Europe 96485  79.101 17384 22%
Asla-Pacific 24,185 21.046 3.139 15%

Total el sales $307.816 3286916 $20900 7%




Please refer to the discussion under “Segment Results” included later in this section for further detailed results by
segment. Changes in foreign currency exchange rates compared to the prior fiscal year contributed to the increase
in the Company’s sales. The current fiscal year results transiated at last fiscal year's exchange rates would have
produced sales of $298.5 million, thus, the impact of the change in foreign currency exchange rates year over
year positively affected fiscal year 2007 sales by $9.3 million, or 3%.

Net Sales by Produrct Line Flscal Year Ended August 31,

(in thousands) 2007 2006 $ Change % (hange
Lubricants $216,300 $190468 $25832 14%
Household products 85,106 89,822 (4.716) ()%
Hand cleaners 6,410 6,626 (216) M%
Total net sales $307,816 3286916 $20,900 7%

By product line, sales of lubricants include WD-40 and 3-IN-ONE; sales of household producis include Carpet
Fresh, No Vac, X-14, 2000 Flushes, Spot Shot and 1001; and hand cleaner sales include Lava and Solvol.

Gross Profit

Gross profit was $148.9 million, or 48.4% of sales in fiscal year 2007, compared to $138.4 million, or 48.2% of
sales in fiscal year 2006. Alihough gross margin percentage was slighily up, the Company continued to
experience increases in costs of products, which have negatively affected gross margins in all of the Company’s
regions. The rise in costs of products has been due to the significant increase in costs for components and raw
materials, including aerosol cans and petroleum-based products, as well as a change in product mix. The mix of
products sold in fiscat year 2007 included an increased amount of higher cost promotional offerings. As a result
of the general upward trend of costs in the market, we remain concemed about the possibility of continued rising
costs of components, raw materials and finished goods.

The increase in pricing of certain products worldwide, which occurred during last fiscal year's third quarter,
pantially offset the rise in costs of products and added approximately 1.3% to gross margin percentage in fiscal
year 2007 compared to fiscal year 2006. Although the price increases helped to mitigate the impact of rising
costs on gross margin percentage, the benefit from the price increases was partially offset by the continued cost
increases, as well as changes in product mix. In an effort to further reduce the impact of increased costs on gross
margin percentage, the Company has begun to implement several cost savings projects. These projects were
identified by a cost reduction team that is focused on gross margin improvement, which includes supply chain
cost savings initiatives. Additionally, the Company believes that innovation will be a key factor in improving
gross margin percentage in the long term.

The rise in costs of products was also partially offset by a decrease in advertising, promotional and other
discounts, which are recorded as a reduction to sales. The decrease in advertising, promotional and other
discounts positively impacted gross margin percentage by 0.5%. This decrease resulted from both timing and
reductions in discounts offered during the fiscal year. Examples of advertising, promotional and other discounts
include coupon redemptions, consideration and allowances given to retailers for space in their stores,
consideration and allowances given to obtain favorable display positions in retailers’ stores, co-operative
advertising and promotional activity, volume discounts and other one-lime or ongoing incentjves. The timing of
these activities, as well as shifis in product mix, may cause fluctuations in gross margin percentage from period
to period.

Note that the Company's gross margins may not be comparable to those of other reporting entities, since some
entities include all costs related to distribution of their products in cost of products sold, whereas we exclude the
portion associated with amounts paid to third parties for distribution to our customers from our contract
packagers, and include these costs in selling, general and administrative expenses.
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Selling, General and Administrative Expenses

Selling, general and administrative expenses (SG&A) in fiscal year 2007 increased to $78.5 million, or 25.9% of
sales, from $71.8 million, or 25.0% of sales, in the prior fiscal year. The increase in SG&A was largely
attnbutable to increases in employee-related costs, professional services costs, miscellancous xpenses and the
impact of foreign currency translation. Certain employee-related costs, which include salaries, profit sharing and
other fringe benefits, increased $3.0 million versus the prior fiscal year as a result of annual compensation
increases, relocation expenses and additional staffing to suppont global sourcing and inventory management,
direct operations in China and product introductions, The increase in the above employee-relared costs was
partially offset by a $0.8 million decrease in bonus expense as several regions did not achizve profit and
performance targets that had been met in the prior fiscal year. Costs for professional services increased $0.9
million primarily as a result of increased legal costs. Miscellaneous expenses increased $1.4 million, which
included increased commissions, meeting expenses, travel costs and bad debt expense. Also contnbuting to the
increase in SG&A was $2.4 million related to foreign currency exchange rates. Fiscal year 20007 SG&A expenses
translated at last fiscal year's exchange rates would have produced total SG&A expenses of $76.1 million.

The Company continued its research and development investment in support of its focus on innovation and
renovation. Research and development costs were $3.8 million in each of fiscal years 2007 and 2006. The
Company’'s new-product development team, known as Team Tomorrow, engages in consumer research, product
development, current product improvement and testing activities, This team leverages its development
capabilities by partnering with a network of outside resources including the Company’s current and prospective
outsource suppliers,

Advertising and Sales Promotion Expenses

Advertising and sales promotion expenses increased to $20.7 million in fiscal year 2007, up from $20.1 million
in fiscal year 2006 and, as a percemtage of sales, decreased to 6.7% in fiscal year 2007 fror 7.3% in fiscal year
2006. The increase was related to increased consumer broadcast, print media and other advertising activities in
the U.S., Europe and Australia.

As a percentage of sales, advertising and sales promotion expenses may fluctuate period to period based upon the
type of marketing activities employed by the Company and the pericd in which the costs are incurred. The costs
of certain promotional activities are required to be recorded as reductions 1o sales, while other: remain in
adventising and sales promotion expenses. In fiscal year 2007, the total promotional costs tecorded as reductions
1o sales were $16.7 million versus $15.6 millicn in fiscal year 2006. Therefore, the Company’!: tota) investment
in advertising and sales promotion activities totaled $37.4 million in fiscal year 2007 versus $55.7 million in
fiscal year 2006.

Amortization of Intangible Asset Expense

Amortization of intangible asset expense was $583,000 in fiscal year 2007, compared to $532,000 in the prior
fiscal year. The amortization relates to the non-contractual customer relationships intangible asset acquired in the
1001 acquisition, which was completed in April 2004. This intangible asset is being amontized on a straight-line
basis over its estimated eight-year life.

Income from Operations

Income from operations was $49.0 million, or 15.9% of sales in fiscal year 2007, compared to $46.0 million, or
16.0% of sales in fiscal year 2006. The increase in income from operations was due to the items discussed above.

Lnterest Expense, net

Interest expense, net was $2.0 million compared to $3.5 million during the fiscal years ended Auvgust 31, 2007
and 2006, respectively. The change in interest expense, net was primarily due to the reduced pincipal balance on
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long-term borrowings resulting from the annual $10.7 million principal payments made in October 2006 and
October 2005, as well as to increased interest income resulting from higher cash balances in fiscal year 2007
versus the prior Nscal year.

Other Income, net

Other income, net was $177,000 in fiscal year 2007 compared to $339,000 in the prior fiscal year, a decrease of
$162,000, which was due to foreign currency exchange losses in fiscal year 2007 compared to foreign currency
exchange gains in the prior fiscal year. Other income, net also includes rental income from VML Company
L.L.C. The Company owns and rents a warehouse facility to VML in Memphis, Tennessee. VML serves as the
Company’s contract manufacturer for certain household products and acts as a warehouse distributor for other
product lines of the Company.

Provision for Income Taxes

The provision for income taxes was 33.16% of income before income taxes in fiscal year 2007, a decrease from
34.41% in fiscal year 2006. The decrease in tax rate was primarily due to favorable rulings on foreign tax
matters, a one-time benefit from the extraterritorial income (ETI) deduction from prior years and the impact of
the expiration of federal statutes of limitations. These items created one-time benefits that totaled approximately
$0.9 million in tax benefits. The Company does not anticipate tax benefits of this nature to be ongoing.
Additionally, the tax benefit from municipal bond interest also contributed to the decrease in the fiscal year 2007
1ax rate. The overall decrease in 1ax rate was partially offset by the impact of reduced low income housing credits
and the phase out of the ETY deduction in the current fiscal year.

Net Income

Net income was $31.5 million, or $1.83 per common share on a fully diluted basis for the fiscal year ended
August 31, 2007, compared 10 $28.1 million, or $1.66 per common share for the prior fiscal year. The change in
foreign currency exchange rates year over year had a positive impact of $1.1 million on fiscal year 2007 net
income. Fiscal year 2007 results translated at last fiscal year's foreign currency exchange rates would have
produced net income of $30.4 million.

Segment Results

Following is a discussion of sales by region for the fiscal years ended August 31, 2007 and 2006.

Americas

Net Sules Fiscal Year Ended August 31,

{in thousands) 00t 2006 $ Change % Change

Lubricants $111,077  $102,732 $8345 8%

Household products 70,775 78,553 (7.778) (0%

Hand cleaners 5,294 5484 (190) (3%
Sub-total $187.146 $186,769 § 377 0%
% of consolidated 61% 65%

In the Americas, changes in foreign currency exchange rates compared to the prior fiscal year did not
significantly impact fiscal year 2007 sales. The fiscal year 2007 results translated at last fiscal year's exchange
rates would have produced sales of $186.8 million in this region. Thus, the impact of the change in foreign
currency exchange rates year over year positively affected sales in fiscal year 2007 by approximately $0.3
million.

The increase in lubricant sales in the Americas during fiscal year 2007 compared to the prior fiscal year was the
result of WD-40 sales growth in the U.S., Latin America and Canada where sales increased by 10%, 7% and 6%,
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respectively. The WD-40 sales increase in the U.S. was the result of increased promotional activity and the
growth of the WD-40 Smart Straw, The WD-40 sales increase in Latin America was primarily the result of
increased distribution, as well as increased promotions. The increase of WD-40 sales in Canacla was the result of
the growth of the WD-40 Smart Straw. Price increases implemented on certain products during the third quarter
of fiscal year 2006 also contributed to the overall lubricant sales growth in the Americas in fiscal year 2007, The
increase in WD-40 sales was partially offset by a decrease in 3-IN-ONE sales in the U.S., which was the result of
lost distribution to a key customer.

Household product sales in fiscal year 2007 were down $7.8 million, or 10%, compared (¢ fis:al year 2006
primarily due to declines in the U.S. Sales in the U.S. decreased by $7.5 million, or 10%, due to lower sales of
Spot Shot, X- 14, 2000 Flushes and Carpet Fresh. These declines were the result of several factors, including
temporarily lost or decreased distribution compared to fiscal year 2006, declining categories and the effect of
competitive factors within and among their product categories that are further described below,

Spot Shot sales declined 7% in the U.S. during fiscal year 2007 compared to the prior fiscal year due to reduced
sales to key customers, declines in the aerosol spot and stain category, significant competitor activity and reduced
promotional activity. During the first quarter of the current fiscal year, a key customer temporarily replaced Spot
Shot with seasonal items, which had not occurred in the prior fiscal year first guarter. The Company regained
distribution with this cusiomer during the second quarter of the current fiscal year. Additionaliy, certain
promotional activity during the prior fiscal year was not repeated in fiscal year 2007. The declines in the aerosol
category are due to retailers reducing shelf space for acrosol spot and stain removers. This decrease was partially
offset by expanded distribution of the Spot Shot tnigger product with a key customer and increased distribution in
the grocery trade channel versus the prior fiscal year. The Spot Shot trigger product compe:tes in the non-aerosol
spot and stain category, which is larger than the aerosol spot and stain category. The Company has also
committed both marketing and research and development resources to support and to creale innovation for the
Spot Shot brand to take advantage of key trends in the marketplace and expand its distribution base.

U.S. sales of the X-14 hard surface cleaners decreased 28% in fiscal year 2007 versus the prior fiscal year due
primarily to lost distribution. In an effort to offset these losses and generate growth, the Company has invested
significant time and resources researching and renovating the X-14 brand by repositioning the brand as the
“bathroom expert” and repackaging the preduct line to better communicate and deliver product performance.
This repositioning and repackaging was launched during the second quarter of fiscal year 2007 and will continue
into the Company’s fiscal year 2008. The Company continues to commit additional marketing and research and
development resources to support and 1o create innovation around the “bathroom expert” posizioning.

U.S. sales of 2000 Flushes/X- 14 automatic toilet bowl cleaners were down 11% in fiscal year 2007 compared to
fiscal year 2006 due to reduced distribution with a key customer, promotional timing and competitive innovation.
The reduced distribution with a key customer was the result of the decline in sales velocity of in-bowl products,
as consumer tastes have shified toward the drop-in and manual cleaning categories. As a result, the Company has
shifted its product line focus loward the drop-in category. Overatl, sales in the entire toilet bowl cleaning
category have declined in the grocery trade channel. To generate growth for the brand, the Company has also
committed both marketing and research and development resources 1o support and to creale ncext generation
innovation around the automatic toilet bow! cleaner category,

Sales of Carpet Fresh in the U.S. declined 6% in fiscal year 2007 compared to the prior fiscal year due to
competitor activity, category declines in the mass retail and grocery trade channels, promectional timing and the
timing of sales to a key customer versus the prior fiscal year. This decline was partially offset by expanded
distribution with a key customer during the second quarter of the current fiscal year. In recent years, retailers
have reduced shelf space for traditional rug and roomn deodorizers for reallocation to other air care products. As a
result, the rug and room deodorizer category as a whole has declined in the mass retail and grocery trade
channels. The Company continues to refine its marketing, promotions and pricing strategics, and has committed
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research and development resources to create innovation for the Carpet Fresh brand, including new fragrances
and packaging enhancements that were introduced throughout fiscal year 2007.

The Company's U.S. household products compete in a highly competitive market and currently face diminishing
product categories or shifts within these categories, as well as significant competitor activity. The Company is
addressing these challenges through its focus on innovation and the continued renovation of its household brands.
The Company's innovation and renovation efforts are focused in the areas of new product offerings, packaging
enhancements and promotional strategies.

Sales of heavy-duty hand cleaners for the Americas decreased 3% in fiscal year 2007 compared to fiscal year
2006 as a result of decreased promotional activity. This decreasc was partially offset by increased distribution 1o
a key customer during the third quarter of fiscal year 2007. Although sales of hcavy-duty hand cleaners
decreased in fiscal year 2007, distribution remains consistent through the grocery trade and other classes of trade.

For the Americas, 86% of sales came from the U.S., and 14% came from Canada and Latin America in fiscal
year 2007, compared to the distribution in fiscal year 2006, when 87% of sales came from the U.S..and 13%
came from Canada and Latin America.

Europe

Net Sales Fiscal Year Ended August 31,

{In thousands) 2007 2006  $Change % Change

Lubricants $85299 $69,742 315,557 2%

Household products 11,186 9,359 1.827 0%
Sub-total $96.485 579,101 $17.384 2%
% of consolidated % 28%

For the fiscal year ended August 31, 2007, sales in Europe grew to $96.5 million, up $17 .4 million, or 22%, over
sales in the prior fiscal year. Changes in foreign currency exchange rates compared to the prior fiscal year
partially contributed to the increasc in sales. Fiscal year 2007 results translated at last fiscal year's exchange rates
would have produced sales of $88.1 million in this region. Thus, the impact of the change in foreign currency
exchange rates year over year positively affected fiscal year 2007 sales by approximately $8.4 million, or 10%.

The countries where the Company sells through a direct sales force include the U.K., Spain, Portugal, lialy,
France, Germany, the Netherlands, Denmark and Austria. Sales from these countries increased 22% in fiscul year
2007 versus fiscal year 2006. Sales from these countries also accounted for 70% of the region's sales in fiscal
year 2007, down from 71% in the prior fiscal year. Percentage increases in sales in U.S. dollars across the various
parts of the region over the prior fiscal year are as follows: the U.K., 15%; France, 23%; the German sales region,
30%; Spain/Portugal, 28%; and Italy, 26%. These direct sales markets are expected (o continue to be important
contributors to the region's growth. In the long term, the number of countries where the Company selis through a
direct sales force is expected to increase.

The U.K. market benefited from sales growth of the 1001 brand and 3-IN-ONE. The increase in 1001 brand sales
was the result of increased distribution and awareness of 1001 No Vac, as well as increased media support for the
brand. The increase in 3-IN-ONE sales was due 10 the increased distribution of the 3-IN-ONE Professional line
of products. The sales growth in France was the result of increased distribution of the WD-40 brand, including
the WD-40 Smart Straw. Also contributing to the sales growth in France was increased distribution of the
3-IN-ONE Professional line of products. The sales growth in the German sales region, which includes Germany,
the Netherlands, Denmark and Austria, was the result of increased awareness and penetration of the WD-40
brand, the continued growth of the WD-40 Smant Straw and the further development of direct sales into the
Netherlands. Sales in Spain/Portugal were up as a result of increased distribution of the WD-40 brand, as well as
the continued development of the WD-40 Smart Straw. Sales of 3-IN-ONE also contributed to the growth in
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SpainfPortugal as a result of increased distribution of the 3-IN-ONE Professional line of products. The sales
growth in ltaly was also the result of increased awareness and penctration of the WD-40 brand and the continued
growth of the WD-40 Smart Straw.

In the countries in which the Company sells through local distributors, sales increased 23% in fiscal year 2007
versus the prior fiscal year. The sales growth in the distributor markets was the result of the continued growth in
Eastern and Northem Europe and the Middle East. The distributor market accounted for approcimately 30% of
the total Europe segment sales in fiscal year 2007, up from 29% in fiscal year 2006. These markets continue 1o
experience growth in distribution and usage resulting {from increased market penetration and brand awareness,

Asia-Pacific

N_.ﬂs'_b Fiscal Year Inded August 31,

{ln thousands) 007 2006 $Change % Change

Lubricants $19.924 517994  §1.930 1%

Houschold products 3.145 1.910 1,235 65%

Hand cleaners 1L116 1,142 (26) (2)%
Sub-total $24,185 521046 $3.139 15%
% of consolidated 8% %

In the Asia-Pacific region, which includes Australia and Asia, total sales in fiscal year 2007 were $24.2 million,
up $3.1 million, or 15%., compared to Rscal year 2006. Changes in foreign cumrency exchange rates compared to
the prior fiscal year contributed to the increase in sales. Fiscal year 2007 results translated at last fiscal year's
exchange rates would have produced sales of $23.6 million in this region. Thus, the impact of t1e change in
foreign currency exchange rates year over year positively affected sales in fiscal year 2007 by pproximately
$0.6 million, or 3%.

Sales in Australia were up 29% in fiscal year 2007 compared to fiscal year 2006 due to sales growth of No Vac
as a result of new product introductions, increased distribution and a television media campaigr.. No Vac
continues 1o gain market share in Australia. Lubricant sales also contributed to the growth in Australia as a result
of increased promotional activity and the continued launch of the WD-40 Sman Suraw.

Sales in Asia were up 8% in fiscal year 2007 compared to the prior fiscal year primarily due to .ncreased WD-40
sales in China and increased promotional activity. Sales in China benefited from the development of direct sales
activity. Historically, the Company has sold to Asia through third party marketing distributcrs. However, {0 help
accelerate the growth in this region, the Company began direct operations in China in the current fiscal year.
Sales across other panis of the Asian region were also up, including in the Philippines, Indonesia, Malaysia and
Thailand. This region represents long-term growth potential for the Company.

Year Ended August 31, 2006 Compared with the Year Ended August 31, 2003

Net Sales

Nrt Sales by Segment Fiscal Yesr Emcled Augus 1,

(in thousands) 2006 2004 $Change % Change
Americas $186,769 $176,106 $10.663 6%
Europe 79,101 68,353 10,748 16%
Asin-Pacific 21,046 18,768 2278 12%

Total net sales 3286916 $263.227 $23.689 9%




Please refer to the discussion under “Segment Results” included later in this section for further detailed results by
segment. Changes in foreign currency exchange rates compared to fiscal year 2005 negatively impacied the
growth of the Company’s sales. Fiscal year 2006 results translated at fiscal year 2005 exchange rates would have
produced sales of $289.0 million, thus, the impact of the change in foreign currency exchange rates year over
year negatively affected fiscal year 2006 sales by $2.1 million, or 1%.

Net Sales by Product Line Fiscal Year Ended August 31,

(in thousands) 2006 2005 $ Change % Change
Lubricants $190468 $174,084 $16,284 9%
Household products §9.822 £2,237 7,585 9%
Hand cleaners 6.626 6.906 (280} (4%
Total nel sales $286,916 $263,227 $21,689 9%

By product line, sales of lubricants include WD-40 and 3-IN-ONE; sales of household products include Carpet
Fresh, No Vac, X-14, 2000 Flushes, Spot Shot and 1001; and hand clezner sales include Lava and Sotvol.

Gross Profit

Gross profit was $138.4 million, or 48.2% of sales in fiscal year 2006, compared to $129.4 million, or 49.2% of
sales in fiscal year 2005. The decrease in the gross margin percentage was primarily attributable 1o the increase
in cost of products sold. The increase in cost of products negatively affected gross margins in all of the
Company’s regions. This increase was primarily due to the significant rise in costs for components and raw
materials, including aerosol cans and petroleum-based products. Gross margin percentage was also negatively
impacted during fiscal year 2006 as the Company incurred costs associated with impaired, slow-moving and
reworked inventory. As a result, the Company focused on reducing excess inventory of certain products and
offered significant discounts, which reduced the gross margin percentage. The discounts and costs associated
with the impaired, slow-moving and reworked inventory negaiively impacted the gross margin percentage by
0.4% in fiscal year 2006, The increase in cost of products sold and the costs associated with impaired, slow-
moving and reworked inventory were partially offset by a decrease in advertising, promotional and other
discounts, which positively impacted gross margin percentage by 0.3%. This decrease resulted from both timing
and reductions in certain traditional advertising and promotional activities that had experienced declines in
consumer response. Advertising, promotional and other discounts, which are recorded as a reduction to sales,
include coupon redemptions, consideration and allowances given to relailers for space in their stores,
consideration and allowances given to obtain favorable display positions in retailers’ stores, co-operative
advertising and promotional activity, volume discounts and other one-time or ongoing incentives. The timing of
these aclivities, as well as shifts in product mix, may cause fluctuations in gross margin percentage from penod
to period.

As the result of the continued trend of rising costs, the Company implemented price increases on certain
products. The Company began to experience rising costs during the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2004 and has
continued to experience further cost increases. To reduce the impact of these cost increases, the Company
implemented price increases on certain products during the third quanter of fiscal year 2005. However, costs of
components, raw materials and finished goods continued 10 rise since the third quarter of fiscal year 2005. As a
result, the Company implemented additional price increases during the third quarter of fiscal year 2006. The
increase in pricing of certain products worldwide added approximately 1.6% to gross margin percentage in fiscal
year 2006 compared to fiscal year 2005,

Note that the Company’s gross margins may not be comparable to those of other reporting entities, since some
entities include all costs related to distribution of their products in cost of products sold, whereas we exclude the
portion associated with amounts paid to third parties for distribution to our customers from our contract
packagers, and include these costs in selling, general and administrative expenses.
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Selting, General and Administrative Expenses

Selling, general and administrative expenses (SG&A) increased to $71.8 million in fiscal year 2006, up from
$63.5 million in fiscal year 2005 and, as a percentage of sales, increased to 25.0% in fiscal yea: 2006 from 24.1%
in fiscal year 2005. The increase in SG& A was largely atiributable to increases in bonus expense, employee-
related costs, stock-based compensation expense due to the adoption of a new accounting pronouncement,
research and development costs, freight costs and professional services. Bonus expense increased $2.8 million
versus fiscal year 2005, as many regions did not achieve profit and other performance expectat.ons in fiscal year
2005, which resulted in a lower fiscal year 2005 bonus expense. Employee-related costs, which include salaries,
profit sharing and other fringe benefits, increased $1.9 million versus fiscal year 2005 as a result of annual
compensation increases and additional staffing. Beginning in fiscal year 2006, the Company adopted SFAS

No. 123R, “Share-Based Payment,” which requires the expensing of stock options. The adepticn of this new
accounting pronouncement resulted in a $1.8 million incremental increase in compensation expense during fiscal
year 2006. Research and development costs increased $1.3 million due to increased new product development
activity. Freight costs increased $0.6 miltion due to sales growth and increased fuel surcharges. The $0.7 million
increase in professional services costs related to information technology, marketing, legal and tax-related
consulting.

Also contributing to the increase in SG&A was $1.2 million of increased miscellaneous expens:s such as
depreciation and amontization, overhead expenses, insurance expenses, travel expenses and mecting expenses.
These increases were panially offset by $1.0 million of decreased bad debt expense primarily related to
recoveries of bad debt, including a preference claim, $0.4 million of decreased sales commissions and $0.)
million of decreased investor relations costs, as well as $0.5 million of foreign currency transtation impact. Fiscal
year 2006 SG&A expenses ranslated at fiscal year 2005 exchange rates would have produced total SG&A
expenses of $72.3 million.

The Company continued its research and development investment in support of its focus on innovation. Research
and development costs were $3.8 million in fiscal year 2006 compared to $2.5 million in fiscal vear 2005. The
Company’s new-product development team, known as Team Tomorrow, engages in consumer rzsearch, product
development, current product improvement and testing activities. This team leverages its develcpment
capabilities by partnering with a network of outside resources including the Company’s current and prospective
outsource suppliers.

Advertising and Sales Promotion Expenses

Advertising and sales promotion expenses increased (o $20.1 million in fiscal year 2006, up frora $17.9 million
in fiscal year 2005 and, as a percentage of sales, increased to 7.0% in fiscal year 2006 from 6.8% in fiscal year
2005. In fiscal year 2005, marketing invesiment was concentrated in the first quarter. However, marketing
investment in the U.S. was reduced during the remainder of fiscal year 2005 as the Company reevaluated the
market dynamics and its strategies to determine which programs would be the most effective. In fiscal year 2006,
the Company began to increase marketing investment in the second quarter and continued during; the remainder
of fiscal year 2006, as the Company aligned its advertising and sales promotion activities with tke distribution of
its current and new products,

As a percentage of sales, advertising and sales promotion expenses may fluctuate period to pzriod based upon the
type of marketing activities employed by the Company, as the costs of certain promotional activities are required
1o be recorded as reductions to sales, and others remain in adventising and sales promotion expenses. In fiscal
year 2006, the total promotional costs recorded as reductions 10 sales were $15.6 million vertus $18.8 mitlion in
fiscal year 2005. Therefore, the Company’s total investment in advertising and sales promotion activities totaled
$35.7 million in fiscal year 2006 versus $36.7 million in fiscal year 2005.
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Amortization of Intangible Asset Expense

Amonization of intangible asset expense was $532,000 in fiscal year 2006, compared to $552,000 in fiscal year
2005. The amortization relates to the non-contractual customer relationships intangible asset acquired in the (001
acquisition, which was completed in April 2004. This intangible asset is being amortized over its estimated eight-
year life.

Income from Operations

Income from operations was $46.0 million, or 16.0% of sales in fiscal year 2006, compared 1o $47.4 million, or
18.0% of sales in fiscal year 2005. The decrease in income from operations as a percentage of sales was due to
the items discussed above.

Interest Expense, net

Interest expense, net was $3.5 million compared to $5.1 million for the fiscal years ended August 31, 2006 and
2005, respectively. The change in interest expense, net was primarily due to reduced principal balance on long-
term borrowings resulting from a $10 million principal payment made in May 2005 and a $10.7 million principal
payment made in October 2005.

Other Income, net

Other income, net was $339,000 in fiscal year 2006, compared to $578,000 in fiscal year 2005, a decreasc of
$239.000, which was due to raduced foreign cutrency exchange gains. Other income, net also includes rental
income from VML Company, L.L.C. The Company owns and rents a warehouse facility to VML in Memphis,
Tennessee. VML serves as the Company’s contract manufacturer for certain household products and acts as a
warchouse distributor for other product lines of the Company.

Provision for Income Taxes

The provision for income taxes was 34.41% of income before income taxes for fiscal 2006, a decrease from
35.15% in fiscal year 2005. The decrease in tax rate was due to the benefits of L.R.C. Section 199 related to
qualified production activitics provided by the American Jobs Creation Act of 2004, as well as foreign tax credits
and the tax benefit of municipal bond interest. These tax benefits were partially offset by the impact of reduced
low income housing credits, the growth of worldwide income and non-deductible stock-based compensation
cxpense related to stock options granted to some non-U.S. taxpayers.

Net Income

Net income was $28.1 million, or $1.66 per common share on a fully diluted basis for the fiscal year ended
August 31, 2006, compared to $27.8 million, or $1.65 per common share for the fiscal year ended August 31,
2005. The change in foreign currency exchange raies year over year had a negative impact of $0.2 million on
fiscal year 2006 net income.
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Segment Results

Following is a discussion of sales by region for the fiscal years ended August 31, 2006 and 2205,

Americas

Net Sales Fisca!l Yem Ended August 32,

(ia thousands) 2006 1005 $ Change % Change

Laubricants $102,732 § 99259 § 3473 3%

Household products 78,533 71.276 121 10%

Hand cleaners 5484 5571 &N %
Sub-total 3186769 §176.136 $10.663 6%
% of consolidated 65% 7%

Changes in foreign currency exchange rates compared to fiscal year 2005 positively impacted the growth of
sales. The fiscal year 2006 results wanslated at fiscal year 2005 exchange rates would have produced sales of
$185.8 million in this region. Thus, the impact of the change in foreign currency exchange rates year over year
positively affected sales in fiscal year 2006 by approximately $1.0 million.

The increase in lubricant sales in the Americas during fiscal year 2006 compared to fiscal year 2005 was the
result of WD-40 sales growth in Canada and Latin America as sales increased by 12% and 25%, respectively.
Growth in Canada was due to the launch of the WD-40 Smart Straw and the WD-40 No-Mess Pen. The WD-40
Smart Straw and the WD-40 No-Mess Pen were intraduced in the third and fourth quarters of fiscal year 2005,
respectively. Growth in Latin America was primarily due to increased promotional activity and new distribution.
Price increases implemented during the fiscal year 2005 third quarter on certain products. as well as additional
price increases implemented during the fisca! year 2006 third quarter, also contributed to the sales growth in the
Americas in fiscal year 2006, in the U.S., WD-40 sales increased 1%. as sales growth from the launch of the
WD-40 Smart Straw and price increases were largely offset by decreased sales as a result of it large promotion in
fiscal year 2005 not repeated in fiscal year 2006.

Despite the significant competition within the household brands category, the Company's, household products
were still able to achieve sales growth. Household product sales in fiscal year 2006 were up by $7.3 million, or
10%, compared to fiscal year 2005 due primarily to increases in the U.S. Sales in the U.S. increased by $6.8
million, or 10%. The increases in household product sales resulied from a variety of reasons, including increased
promotional activity, increased distribution and new products that were introduced throughout fiscal year 2005.

Spot Shot sales increased 11% in the U.S. during fiscal year 2006 as compared to fiscal year 2005 due to
increased promotional activities with key customers and sales from new products, Spot Shot Pro and Spot Shot
with a trigger format. Additionally, during most of fiscal year 2005, Spot Shot experienced decreased sales as a
result of a key U.S. customer temporarily replacing Spot Shot with competitor products as it yerformed
competitor sales testing. Although Spot Shot was successful and maintained distribution, these tests caused sales
to be lower in fiscal year 20085.

In recent years, retailers have reduced shelf space for traditional rug and room deodorizers far reallocation to
other air care products. As a result, the rug and room deodorizer category as a whole has declined in the mass
retail and grocery trade channels. Despite the declines in the rug and room deodcerizer catego:y, Carpet Fresh was
able to achieve sales growth in the U.S. of | 1% in fiscal year 2006 versus fiscal vear 2003 due to increased
promotional activities and expanded distribution, which included new trade channels.

U.S. sales of the X-14 hard surface cleaners increased 32% in fiscal year 2006 versus fiscal year 2005 due
primarily to increased promotional activities, growth in non-grocery trade channels and the full year benefit from
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the launch of two new innovative products. During the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2004 and first quarter of fiscal
year 2005, the Company introduced two new products, X-14 Orange Aerosol and X-14 Oxy Citrus.

U.S. sales of 2000 Flushes/X-14 automatic toitet bowl cleaners were up 4% in fiscal year 2006 compared to
fiscal year 2005 due to increased promotional activities performed by the Company, as well as promotional
activities performed by a key customer.

Sales of heavy-duty hand cleaners for the Americas decreased 2% in fiscal year 2006 compared to fiscal year
2005. Although sales of heavy-duty hand cleancrs decreased slightly, distribution remained consistent through
the grocery trade and other classes of trade,

For this region, 87% of sales came from the U.S., and 13% came from Canada and Latin America in fiscal year
2006, compared to the distribution in fiscal year 2005, when 88% of sales came from the U.S., and 12% came
from Canada and Latin America.

Europe

Ned Sales Fiscol Yesr Ended Angust 3,

{in thousands) 2006 2008 $ Chonge % Change

Lubricants $65.742 $59.427 $10.315 17%

Household products 9.359 8.908 451 5%

Hand cleaners — 18 [§%:3] (100)%
Sub-total $79.101  $68,35) $10,748 16%
% of consolidated 289 26%

For the fiscal year ended August 31, 2006, sales in Europe grew to $79.1 million, up $10.7 million, or 16%, over
sales in fiscal year 2005. Changes in foreign currency exchange rates compared to fisea) year 2005 partially
offsct the growth of sales. Fiscal year 2006 results translated at fiscal year 2005 exchange rates would have
produced sales of $82.0 million in this region. Thus, the impact of the change in foreign currency exchange rates’
year over year negatively affected the fiscal year 2006 sales by approximately $2.9 million, or 4%.

The countries where the Company sells through a direct sales force include the U.K., Spain, Portugal, ltaly,
France, Germany, the Netherlunds, Denmark, Austria and Switzerland. Sales from these countries increased 15%
in fiscal year 2006 versus fiscul year 2005, Sules from these countries also accounted for 71% of the region’s
sales in both fiscal year 2006 and 2005. Percentage increases in sales in U.S. dollars across the various parts of
the region over fiscal year 2005 were as follows: the U.K., 11%: France, 16%; the German sales region, 23%;
Spain/Portugal, 7%; and Italy, 21%.

The U.K. market benefited from sales growth of WD-40, 3-IN-ONE and 1001 Carpet Fresh No Vac. WD-40
sales were up 15% in fiscal year 2006 compared to fiscal year 2005 due to increased promotional activities,
increased distribution and the Jaunch of the WD-40 Sman Straw and the WD-40 No-Mess Pen, as well as price
increases on certain products during fiscal year 2006, Sales of 3-IN-ONE increased 14% as a result of the growth
of the 3-IN-ONE Professional line of products, introduction of 3-IN-ONE aerosol and promotions with key
customers. 1001 Carpet Fresh No Vac was able to achieve sales growth of 38% versus fiscal year 2005 as a result
of increased distribution and awareness, as weli as media investment. The sales growth in France was the result
of the introduction of the WD-40 Smart Straw and the WD-40 No-Mess Pen and increased sales of 3-IN-ONE.
The increase in 3-IN-ONE sales in France was due to increased distribution and penetration of the 3-IN-ONE
Professional products. The sales growth in the German sales region, which includes Germany, the Netherlands,
Denmark, Austria and Switzerland, was the result of increased awareness and penetration of the WD-40 brand.
the introduction of the WD-40 Smart Straw and the further development of direct sales into the Netherlands.
Sales in Spain/Portugal were up as a result of the launch of the WD-40 Smant Straw and the No-Mess Pen, which
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was {aunched under the 3-IN-ONE brand. The sales growth in ltaly was also the result of increased awareness
and penetration of the WD-40 brand and the launch of the WD-40 Smant Straw and the WD-40 No-Mess Pen.

In the countries in which the Company sells through local distributors, sales increased 18% ir. fiscal year 2006
versus fiscal year 2005. The sales growth in the distributor markets was the resull. of the continued growth in
Eastern Europe and the Middle East. The distributor market accounted for approximately 29% of the total Europe
segment sales in both fiscal year 2006 and 2005.

Asia-Pacific

Net Sales Fisca! Yeor Ended August 31,

{in thousandy) 006 2005 $ Change % Change

Lubricans $17994  S15308  $2.596 17%

Household products 1,910 2,053 (143) (%

Hand cleaners 1.142 1,317 {175) {(IH%
Sub-total $21.046 SIB708 32,278 12%
% of conselidated *® %

In the Asia-Pacific region, which includes Australia and Asia, total sales in fiscal year 2006 were $21.0 million,
up $2.3 million, or 12%, compared 10 fiscal year 2005. Changes in foreign currency exchange rates compared (o
fiscal year 2005 did not significantly impact fiscal year 2006 sales. Asia-Pacific sales benefited primarily from
increased lubricant sales across the region.

Sales in Australia were up 3% fiscal year 2006 as compared to fiscal year 2005 due to increased sales of WD-40,
3-IN-ONE and No Vac. WD-40 sales were up due to increased promotional activities and the launch of the
WD-40 No-Mess Pen. 3-IN-ONE sales were up due to the launch of new products. No Vac seles increased as it
continued to gain market share in Australia. These increases were partially offset by decreased sales of Solvol,
Solvol sales were down 14% in fiscal year 2006 versus fiscal year 2005 as a result of reduced distribution to a
key customer.

Sales in Asia were up 17% in fiscal year 2006 compared to fiscal year 2005 due to increased WD-40 sales to
customers across the Asian region, including Taiwan, China, Indonesia, Japan, Singapore, Hong Kong and India, :
as the Company continued to expand into this region. Sales of 3-IN-ONE also contributed to -he increase in Asia
as a result of the launch of a new product in some markets. The increase in lubricant sales was partially offfset by
a decrease in sales of No Vac due 10 slower sales velocity in Japan.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

As of August 31, 2007, the Company had $53.6 million remaining on an original $75 million 7.28% fixed-rate
term loan. The loan matures in 2011, with the third principal payment of $10.7 mitlion haviny been made after
the close of the fiscal year on October 18, 2007, and subsequent payments in similar amounts due each
October 18th for four years thereafter.

Under the fixed-rate term loan, the Company is required to maintain minimum consolidaied ret worth greater
than the sum of $57 million plus 25% of consolidated net income for each fiscal quarter beginning with the first
fiscal quarter of 2002, plus proceeds of all equity securities other than those issued under the Company’s stock
option plan.

A consolidated fixed charge coverage ratio greater than 1.20:1.00 on the last day of any fiscal quarter must be
maintained. The Company is also limited to a maximum ratio of funded debt to ecamings before interest, taxes,
depreciation and amortization (EBITDA) of 2.25 to 1.00.

The term loan agreement also limits the Company’s ability, without prior approval from the (Company’s lenders,
to incur additional unsecured indebtedness, sell, lease or transfer assets, place liens on properties, complete
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certain acquisitions, mergers or consolidations, enter into guarantee obligations, enter into related party
transactions and make certain loan advances and investments.

The events of default under the fixed-rate term loan include the following:
» Failure to pay principal or interest when due

+  Failure to comply with covenants, representations or warranties, terms or conditions under the credit
agreements

» Commencing any proceeding for bankrupicy, insolvency, reorganization, dissolution or liquidation

¢+ The sale, transfer, abandonment, forfeiture or disposal of the WD-40 trademark or any other trademark
used in a material product line

On March 27, 2007, the Company’s Board of Directors approved a share buy-back plan. As a result of the share
buy-back plan, the Company’s debt covenants related to its fixed-rate term loan have been revised. Under the
revised debt covenants, the aggregate payments for dividends and share repurchases by the Company are limited
to $35 million, plus 75% of consolidated net income for cach quarter beginning March 1, 2007.

The Company is in compliance with all debt covenants as required by the term loan agreement.

The Company’s cash balance has not been used to prepay the term loan due to certain prepayment penalties
under the loan agreements.

The Company's primary source of funds is cash flow from operations, which is expected to provide sufficient
funds to meet both short and long-term operating needs, as well as future dividends, which are determined on a
quarterly basis.

For the fiscal year ended August 31, 2007, cash and cash equivalents increased by $15.9 million, from $45.2
million at the end of fiscal year 2006 to $61.1 million at August 31, 2007. Operating cash flow of $51.7 million
was offset by cash used in investing activities of $2.2 million and cash used in financing activities of $34.1
million.

Current assets increased by $15.0 million to $130.6 million at August 31,2007, up from $115.5 million at
August 31, 2006. Accounts receivable increased to $47.2 million, up $2.7 million from $44.5 million at

August 31, 20086, as a result of the timing of sales. Inventory decreased to £13.2 million, down $2.1 million from
$15.3 million at August 31, 2006 due to timing. Other current assets decreased by $1.4 million to $3.5 millicn at
August 31, 2007, down from $4.9 million at August 31, 2006 due to the timing of prepaid expenses and the
reduction of federal income 1axes receivable as the Company received tax refunds for amended returns from prior
years.

Current liabilities were $53.9 million at August 31, 2007, up from $43.7 million a1 August 31, 2006. Accounts
payable and accrued liabilities increased by $12.7 million due to timing of payments and higher sales levels in
the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2007 compared 1o the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2006. Accrued payroll and
related expenses were down 30.6 million primarily due to a decreased bonus accrual as several regions did not
achieve profit and performance targets that had been met in the prior fiscal year. Income taxes payable was down
$1.9 miltion due to the timing of payments for federal income taxes.

At August 31, 2007, working capital increased to $76.7 million, up $4.8 million from $71 .9 million at the end of
fiscal year 2006, The current ratio was 2.4 at August 31, 2007, down from 2.6 at August 31, 2006.

Net cash provided by operating activities for the fiscal year ended August 31, 2007 was $51.7 million. This
amaunt consisted of $31.5 million from net income with an additiona! $7.1 million of adjustments for non-cash
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items, including depreciation and amortization, gains on sales of equipment, deferred incorae tax expense, €xcess
tax benefits from exercises of stock options, distributions received and equity earnings fror VML Company
L.L.C. (VML) and stock-based compensation, along with $13.0 million related to changes in the working capital
as described above and changes in other long-term liabilities,

Nei cash used in investing activities for the fisca) year ended August 31, 2007 was $2.2 million. The Company
purchased and sold $224.7 million of short-term investments, which consisted of investment grade auction rate
securities with an active resale market to ensure liquidity and the ability to be readily converted into cash. Capital
expenditures of $2.6 million were primarily in the areas of computer hardware apd sofiware, buildings and
improvements, furniture and fixtures and vehicle replacements.

For fiscal year 2007, net cash used in financing activities included a $10.7 million principal payment on debt in
October 2006, $16.6 million of dividend payments and $17.3 million for purchases of 500,000 shares of common
stock held in treasury, partially offset by $9.8 million in proceeds from the exercise of common stock options and
$0.7 million of excess 1ax benefits from exercises of stock options, The $10.7 million payment on debt was the
second principal payment on the Company's original $75 million, 7.28% fixed-rate term Ican.

Under the share buy-back plan approved by the Company’s Board of Directors on March 27, 2007, the Company
is authorized to acquire up to $35.0 million of the Company’s cutstanding shares. As of August 31, 2007, the
Company has acquired 500,000 shares at a total cost of $17.3 millicn under the plan. Further disclosures
associated with stock repurchased during fiscal year 2007 are included under Nate 4 of the Consolidated
Financial Statements and in Pant 11, [tem 5 of this repon.

Management believes the Company has access to sufficient capital through the combination of available cash
balances and internally generated funds. Management considers various faclors when reviewing liquidity needs
and plans for available cash on hand including; future debt principal and interest payments, carly debt repayment
penalties, future capital expenditure requirements, future dividend payments (which are determined on a
quarterly basis by the Company’s Board of Directors), alternative investment opportunities., loin covenants and
any other relevant considerations currently facing the business.

On October 4, 2007, the Company’s Board of Directors declared a cash dividend of $0.25 per share payable on
October 31, 2007 1o shareholders of record on October 18, 2007. The Company’s ability 1o pav dividends could
be affected by future business performance, liquidity, capital needs, allernative investment opportunities and loan
covenants.

The following schedule summarizes the Company's contractual obligations and commitments to make future
payments as of August 31, 2007:

Contractual Obligations: PeyTucnls Due by Pertod
Total 1 year 2.3 yesrs 5 years After 5 years

Total debt $53.571.000 310,714,000 $21.428.000 $21429.000 § —
Interest payments on debt 8.775,000 3.315,000 4,290,000 1,170,000 -
Operating leases 3,095,000 1.461,000 1,386,000 238,000 10,000
Marketing and other commitments 2,039,000 1,163,000 876,000 — —
Capital expenditure commitments 2,019,000 2.019.000 — — —
Tota) contractual cash obligations 369,499,000 $18,672,000 $27.980,000 $22.837.000  $10.000

The following summarizes other commercial commitments as of August 31, 2007:

» The Company has relationships with various suppliers (contract manufacturers) who manufacture the
Company's products. Although the Company does not have any definilive minimum purchase
obligations included in the contract terms with contract manufacturers, supply ne:ds are communicated
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and the Company is committed to purchase the products produced based on sales forecasts provided to
the contract manufacturers, ranging from two to five months.

+ In addition to the commitments to purchase products from contract manufacturers described above, the
Company has also entered into commitments with other manufacturers to purchase finished goods and
components of $1.1 million in fiscal year 2008,

» The Company provides fixed retirement benefits to certain of its key executives under a supplemental
employee retirement plan. Under the plan, the Company is committed to pay benefits to current retirces
of $141,000 in fiscal year 2008 and $84,000 in each of fiscal years 2009 through 2012. Benefits payable
to current employees vest upon retirement. As a result, the timing of payments and the total annual
benefit payment amounts beyond fiscal year 2012 are uncertain. However, the Company has actuarially
determined the present value of all future benefit payments to be $2.0 million as of August 31, 2007.

STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION

Effective September 1, 2005, the Company began recording compensation expense associated with stock options in
accordance with SFAS No. 123R, “Share-Based Payment.” Prior to September 1, 2005, the Company accounted for
stock-based compensation related to stock options under the recognition and measurement principles of Accounting
Principles Board Opinion No. 25; therefore, the Company measured compensation expense for its stock option plan
using the intinsic value method, that is, as the excess, if any, of the fair market value of the Company’s stock at the
grant date over the amount required to be paid to acquire the stock, and provided the disclosures required by SFAS
Nos. 123 and 148. The Company adopted the modified prospective transition method provided under SFAS

No. 123R. and as a result, did not retroactively adjust results from prior periods. Under this transition method,
compensation expense associated with stock options recognized in fiscal years 2607 and 2006 includes: 1) expense
related to the remaining unvested portion of all stock option awards granted prior to September 1, 2005, based on
the grant date fair value estimated in accordance with the original provisions of SFAS No. 123; and 2) expense
related to all stock option awards granted subsequent to September 1, 2005, based on the grant date fair value
estimated in accordance with the provisions of SFAS No. 123R.

The adoption of SFAS No. 123R also resulted in certain changes to the Company’s accounting for its restricted
stock awards, which is discussed in more detail in Note 10—Stock-based Compensation, included in the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements under Part 1V—Iiem 15,

As a result of the adoption of SFAS No. 123R, the Company’s net income included $1.8 million of compensation
expense for cach of the fiscal years ended August 31, 2007 and 2006; and $0.6 million and $0.5 million of
income tax benefits in fiscal years ended August 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively, related to the Company'’s stock
options. For the fiscal year ended August 31, 2005, there was no compensation expense or corresponding income
tax benefits related 1o stock options included in net income.

As of August 31, 2007, there was $1.8 million and $0.3 million of unamortized compensation costs related to
non-vested stock option awards and non-vested restricted stock awards, respectively. These costs are expected to
be recognized over weighted-average periods of 1.8 years and 3.0 years, respectively.

The Company estimates the fair value of each option award on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option
valuation model with the assumptions described in Note 10 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.




For fiscal year 2008, the Company will continue to grant stock options to employees. The Company has also
evaluated the use of other forms of long-term stock-based compensation arrangements. The Board of Directors
has approved a policy for compensation of non-employee directors effective in calendar vear 2008 that, subject
to stockholder approval, includes the award of restricted stock units. As with all compensaticn arrangements, the
award of stock-based compensation is subject to periodic review.

Readers are also directed to refer to Note 10 - Stock-based Compensation, included in the Netes to Consolidated
Financial Statements under Part IV - Item 15.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Company’s resulls of operations and financial condition, as reflected in the Company’s consolidated
financial statements, have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America. Preparation of financial statements requires management to muke estimates and
assumptions affecting the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses and the disclosures of
contingent assets and liabilities. Management uses historical experience and other relevant f; ctors when
developing estimates and assumptions. These estimates and assumptions are continually =valuated. Note | 1o the
Company’s consolidated financial statements includes a discussion of significant accounsing policics. The
accounting policies discussed below are the ones management considers critical to an understanding of the
Company's consolidated financial statements because their application places the most signi‘icant demands on
our judgment, The Company’s financial results may have been different if different assumptions had been used
or other conditions had prevailed. The Company’s critical accounting policies have been rev.ewed with the Audit
Committee of the Board of Directors.

Revenue Recognition

Sales are recognized as revenue at the time of delivery 1o the customer when risk of loss and title pass.
Management must make judgments and certain assumptions in the determination of when delivery occurs,
Through an analysis of end-of-period shipments, the Company determines an average time of transit that is used
to estimate the time of delivery. Differences in judgments or estimates, such as the lengithening or shortening of
the estimated delivery time used, could result in material differences in the timing of revenue recognition. Sales
are recorded net of allowances for damaged goods and other sales returns, sales incentives, brade promotions and
cash discounts.

Accounting for Sales Incentives

The Company records sales incentives as a reduction of sales in its consolidated statements of operations, The
Company offers on-going trade promotion programs with customers, and consumer coupon programs that require
the Company to estimate and accrue the expected costs of such programs. Programs include cooperative
marketing programs, shelf price reductions, coupons, rebates, consideration and allowances ziven to retailers for
space in their stores, consideration and allowances given to obtain favorable display positions in the retailers’
stores and other promotional activity. Costs related to rebates, co-operative advertising and olher promotional
activity are recorded upon delivery of products to customers. Costs related to coupon offers are based upon
historical redemption rates and are recorded as incurred, when coupons are circutated.

Estimated sales incentives are calculated and recorded at the time related sales are made and are based primarily
on historical rates and consideration of recent promotional activities. The determination of siles incentive
liabilities requires the Company 1o use judgment for estimates that include current and past irade-promotion
spending patterns, status of trade-promotional activities and the interpretation of historical spending trends by
customer and category. We review our assumptions and adjust our reserves quarterly. Onr financial stalements
could be materially impacted if the actual promotion rates fluctuate from the estimated rate. If the Company’s
accrual estimates for sales incentives at August 31, 2007 were to differ by 10%, the impict on net sales would be
approximately $0.5 million.
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Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

The preparation of financial statements requires our managemem to make cstimates and assumptions relating to
the collectibility of our accounts receivable. Management specifically analyzes historical bad debts, cusiomer
credit worthiness, current economic trends and changes in our customer payment terms when evaluating the
adequacy of the allowance for doubtful accounts.

Accounting for Income Taxes

Current income tax expense is the amount of income taxes expected te be payable for the current year. A
deferred income tax liability or asset is established for the expected future tax consequences resulting from the
differences in financial reporting and tax bases of assets and liabilities. A valuation allowance is provided if it is
more likely than not that some or ail of the deferred tax assets will not be realized.

The Company establishes accruals for certain tax contingencies when, despite the belief that the Company’s tax
return positions are fully supported, the Company believes that certain positions may not be fully sustained upon
challenge by relevant tax authoritics, The tax contingency accruals are adjusted in light of changing facts and
circumstances, such as the progress of tax audits, case law and emerging legislation. The Company's tax
contingency accruals are reflected as a component of income taxes payable.

U.S. income tax expense is provided on remittances of forcign earnings and on unremitted foreign earnings that
are not indefinitely reinvested. U.S. income taxes and foreign withholding taxes are not provided when foreign
eamnings are indefinitely reinvesied in accordance with APB Opinion No. 23, “Accounting for Income Taxes,
Special Arcas.” The Company determines whether its foreign subsidiaries will invest their undistributed earnings
indefinitely and reassesses this determination on a periodic basis. Change to the Company's determination may
be warranted based on the Company's experience as well as plans regarding future international operations and
expecied remittances.

Valuation of Long-lived Assets, Intangible Assets and Goodwill

The Company assesses the potential impairment of long-lived assets, identifiable intangibles and related goodwill
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable. For
goodwill and intangibles determined to have indefinite lives, impairment is tested at least annually under the
guidance of SFAS No. 342, during our second fiscal quarter of each year unless there are indicators during an
interim period that assets may have become impaired. The Company's impairment test is based on a discounted
cash flow approach that requires significant management judgment and estimates, such as {orecasted revenue,
advertising and promotional expenses, cost of products sold, gross margins, operating margins, the success of
product innovations and introductions, customer retention and the selection of appropriate discount and royalty
rates. Management judgments and estimates are based on assumptions that are most reasonably likely to occur.
For goodwill, impairment occurs when the carrying value of a reporting unit exceeds the fair value of that
reporting unit. For intangible assets, impairment occurs when the carrying value of an asset exceeds its fair value.
In addition, intangible assets with indefinite lives are evaluated guarterly 10 determine whether events and

. circumstances continue to suppon an indefinite useful life.

| Events and circumstances that we consider important which could trigger impairment include the following:
+  Significant underperformance relative to historical or projected future operating resuls

= Significant changes in the manner of our use of the acquired assets or the strategy for our overall
business

< Significant negative industry or cconomic trends
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« Significam decline in our stock price for a sustained period

» Decreased market capitalization relative to net book value

* Unanticipated technological change or competitive activities
* Loss of key distribution

» Loss of key personnel

»  Acts by government and courts

When there is indication that the carrying value of intangibles or long-lived assets may no: be recoverable based
upon the existence of one or more of the above indicators, an impairment loss would be recogized if the
carrying amount of the asset exceeds its fair value. When there is an indication of impairment of goodwill, an
impairment loss would be recognized to the extent that the carrying amount of the goodwill exceeds its implied
fair valve.

During the second quanter of fiscal year 2007, the Company tested its goodwill and indefinite- lived intangible
assets for impairment based on future discounted cash flows compared to related bock values. Based on this
review, the Company determined that there were no instances of impairment. If the fair values of the Company’s
goodwill and intangible assets, as calculated during the annual impairment test, were reduzed by 10%, there
would still be no instances of impairment.

RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

In February 2007, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued SFAS No. 159, * The Fair Value
Option for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities—Including an amendment of FASB Staiement No. 115.”
This Stalement permits entilies to choose to measure many financial instruments and certain other items at fair
value. This Statement is effective as of the beginning of an entity’s first fiscal year thal begins after

November 15, 2007, Early adoption is permitted as of the beginning of a fiscal year that begins on or before
November 15, 2007, provided the entity also elects 1o apply the provisions of SFAS No. 157, * Fair Value
Measurements.”” Management is currently evaluating the impact that the implementation of SFAS No. 159 may
have on the Company’s consolidated results of operations and financial position.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, “Fair Value Measurements.” SFAS No. 157 defines fair
value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value and expands disclosures about fair value measurements,
This statement is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007,
and interim periods within those fiscal years. Management is currently evaluating SFAS No. 157 to determine the
impact, if any, on the Company’s consolidated financial statements.

In June 2006, the FASB issued Interpretation No, 48 (FIN 48), “Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes —
an interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109.” FIN 48 seeks to reduce the significant diversity in practice
associated with recognition and measurement in the accounting for income taxes. It applivs to all tax positions
accounted for in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards Ne. 109, “Aczounting for Income
Taxes.” FIN 48 is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2006. The Companyy will adopt this
interpretation as required beginning September 1, 2007. Management is currently evaluating the impact that the
implementation of FIN 48 may have on the Company’s consolidated results of operations and financial position.
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TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

VML Company L.L.C. (VML.), a Delawarse Limited Liability Company, was formed in April 2001, at which time
the Company acquired a 30% membership interest. Since formation, VML has served as the Company’s contract
manufacturer for certain household products and acts as a warehouse distributor for other product lines of the
Company. Although VML has begun to expand its business to other customers. the Company continues to be its
largest customer. VML makes profit distributions to the Company and the 70% owner on a discretionary basis in
proportion to each party’s respective interest.

The Company has a put option to sell its interest in VML 1o the 70% owner, and the 70% owner has a call option
to purchase the Company's interest. The sale price in each case is established pursuant to formulas based on
VML 's operating results.

Under Financial Interpretation No. 46, “Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities, an interpretation of
Accounting Research Bulletin No. 51,” VML qualifies as a variable interest entity. and it has been determined
that the Company is not the primary beneficiary. The Company's investment in VML is accounted for using the
equity method of accounting, and its equity in VML earnings or losses is recorded as a component of cost of
products sold, as VML acts primarily as a contract manufacturer to the Company. The Company recorded equity
eamnings related to its investment in VML of $0.1 million for the fiscal year ended August 31, 2007, equity losses
of $0.1 million for the fiscal year ended August 31, 2006 and equity eamings of $0.4 million for the fiscal year
ended August 31, 2005.

The Company’s maximum exposure 10 loss as a result of its involvement with VML was $1.0 million as of
August 31, 2007. This amount represens the balance of the Company's equity investment in VML, which is
presented as investment in related party on the Company's consolidated balance sheets. The Company’s
investment in VML as of Auvgust 31, 2006 was $1.0 million.

Cost of products sold which were purchased from VML, net of rebates and equity earnings or losses, was
approximately $19.1 million, $41.0 million and $38.4 million during the fiscal years ended August 31, 2007,
2006 and 2005, respectively. The Company had product payables to VML of $1.5 million and $0.5 million at
August 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. Additionally, the Company receives rental income from VML, which is
recorded as a component of other (expense) income, net. Rental income from VML was $0.2 million for each of
the fiscal years ended August 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005.

During the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2006, the Company acquired $2.0 million of inventory from VML. The
inventory purchased from VML consisted of certain finished goods that had been acquired from other
manufacturers on behalf of the Company. As the Company transitioned to direct acquisition of these finished
goods, it acquired the remaining inventory at VML.

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

The Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 provides a “safe harbor” for certain forward-looking
statements. This report contains forward-looking statements, which reflect the Company’s current views with
respect to future events and financial performance.

These forward-looking statements are subject to certain risks and uncertainties. The words “aim,” “believe,”
“expect,” “anticipate,” “intend,” “estimate™ and other expressions that indicate future events and trends identify
forwird-looking statements.

Actual future results and trends may differ materially from historical results or those anticipated depending upon

factors including, but not limited to, the near-term growth expectations for lubricants, household products and
heavy-duty hand cleaners in the Americas, the impact of changes in preduct distribution, competition for shelfl

39




space, plans for product and promotional innovation, the impact of new produci introductions on the growth of
sales, the impact of customer mix and raw material, component and finished goods costs on gross margins, the
impact of promotions on sales, the rate of sales growth in the Asia-Pacific region, direct European countries and
Eastern Europe, the impact of changes in inventory management, the effect of future income iax provisions and
audit outcomes on tax rates, the amount of future capital expenditures, foreign currency exchunge rates and
fluctuations in those rates, the effects of, and changes in, worldwide cconomic conditions. legal proceedings and
the other risk factors identified in ltem 1A,

Readers also should be aware that while the Company does, from time to time, communicate with securities
analysts, it is against the Company’s policy to disclose to them any materia! non-public infer:nation or other
confidentia) commercial information, Accordingly, shareholders or readers should not assum: that the Company
agrees with any statement or report issued by any analyst irrespective of the content of the statement or report.
Further, the Company has a policy against confirming financial forecasts or projections jzsued by others.
Accordingly, to the extent that reports issued by securities analysts contain any projections, farecasts or opinions,
such reports are not the responsibility of the Company.

ITEM 7A - Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk
Foreign Currency Risk

The Company is exposed (0 a variety of risks, including foreign currency fluctuations. In the normal course of its
business, the Company employs esiablished policies and procedures 1o manage its exposure 1o fluctuations in
foreign currency values and changes in the market value of its invesiments.

The Company’s objective in managing its exposure to foreign currency exchange rate fluctuitions is to reduce
the impact of adverse fluctuations in eamings and cash flows associated with foreign currency exchange rate
changes. Accordingly, the Company's U.K. subsidiary utilizes foreign currency forward con'racts in accordance
with SFAS No. 52, “Foreign Currency Translation,” to limit its exposure on converting cash and accounts
receivable balances maintained in non-functional currencies. The Company regularly meniters its foreign
exchange exposures {0 ensure the overall effectiveness of its foreign currency hedge positions. However, there
can be no assurance the Company’s foreign currency hedging activities will substantially offset the impact of
fluctuations in currency exchange rates on its results of operations and financial position. While the Company
engages in foreign currency hedging activity to reduce its risk, for accounting purposes. none: of the foreign
currency forward contracts are designated as hedges.

Interest Rate Risk

As of August 31, 2007, the Company had $53.6 million remaining on an original $75 million, 7.28% fixed-rate
term loan. As a result of the fixed interest rate on the term loan, the Company is not currenily exposed (o interest
rate risk.

ITEM 8 - Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

The Company’s consolidated financial statements at August 31, 2007 and 2006 and for each of the three years in
the period ended August 31. 2007, and the Report of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, Independem Registered
Public Accounting Firm, are included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K in Item 15.
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QUARTERLY FINANCIAL INFORMATION (UNAUDITED)

The following table sets forth certain unaudited quarterly consolidated financial information for each of the two
years in the period ended August 31, 2007. Amounts are presented in thousands, except for earnings per share
data.

DILUTED
NET GROSS NET EARNINGS PER
QUAHRTER ENDED: SALES PROFIT INCOME  COMMON SHARE
November 30, 2005 $ 67215 § 32314 § 7510 $0.45
February 28, 2006 71,480 34,276 7.231 043
May 31, 2006 73,052 35419 1.046 0.42
August 31, 2006 75,169 36,391 6,322 037
$286,916 §138400 528,112 $1.66%
November 30, 2006 $ 71956 § 3473 S 569 $0.33
February 28, 2007 79,331 39,038 8.93% 0.52
May 31, 2007 77.581 36,867 7.644 0.44
August 31, 2007 78,943 38.483 9,257 0.54
5307816 $148.862 $31.534 $1.83

} Amounts in table may not total duc: to rounding.
ITEM 9 - Changes in and Disagreements With Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure
Nol appticable.

ITEM 9A - Controls and Procedures

Evaluation of Disclosure Contrels and Procedures

The term * disclosure controls and procedures” is defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) promulgated under
the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934 (Exchange Act). The term disclosure controls and procedurcs means
controls and other procedures of a Company that are designed to ensure the information required to be disclosed
by the Company in the reports that it files or submits under the Act is recorded, processed, summarized and
reported, within the time periods specified in the Commission’s rules and forms. Disclosure controls and
procedures include, without limitation, controls and procedures designed to ensure that information required to
be disclosed by a Company in the reports that it files or submits under the Act is accumulated and communicated
to the Company’s management, including its principal executive and principal financial officers, or persons
performing similar functions, as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosures. The
Company's chief executive officer and chief financial officer have evaluated the effectiveness of the Company’s
disclosure controls and procedures as of August 31, 2007, the end of the period covered by this repon (the
Evaluation Date), and they have concluded that, as of the Evaluation Date, such controls and procedures were
effective at ensuring that required information will be disclosed on a timely basis in the Company’s reports filed
under the Exchange Act. Although management believes the Company’s existing disclosure controls and
procedures are adequate to enable the Company to comply with its disclosure obligations, management continues
(o review and update such controls and procedures. The Company has a disclosure committee, which consists of
certain members of the Company’s senior management.

Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporiing,. as
such term is defined in Exchange Act rule 13a-15(f). Under the supervision and with the participation of our
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Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, our management conducted an evaluation of the
effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting based upon the framework in Iniermal Controf —
Integrated Framewark issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission,
Based on that evaluation, our management concluded that our internal control over financial reporting is effective
as of August 31, 2007.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that
controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of comgliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

For the quarter ended August 31, 2007, there were no significant changes 10 the Company’s internal control over
financial reporting that materially affected, or would be reasonably likely to materially affect, its internal control
over financial reporting. 0

ITEM 9B - Other Information
Not applicable,

PART III
[TEM 10 - Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant

Certain information required by this item is set forth under the captions “Security Ownership of Directors and
Executive Officers,” “Nominees for Election as Directors,” “Compensation Committee Interlacks and Insider
Participation,” “Audit Committee™” and “Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance™ in the
Company’s Proxy Statement to be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission in connection with the
2007 Annual Meeting of Stockholders on December 11, 2007 (the Proxy Statement), which information is
incorporated by reference herein, Additional information concerning executive officers of the Registrant required
by this item is included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K under the heading, “Executive Cfficers of the
Registrant” following [tem 4 of Part I,

The registrant has a financial reporting code of ethics applicable to iis principal executive officer, principal
financial officer, principal accounting officer or controller and persons performing similar functions. A copy of
the code of ethics applicable to such persons may be found on the Registrant's internet websiie on the Officers &
Directors link from the Investor Relations page at www.wdd40.com.

ITEM 11 - Executive Compensation

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference 1o the Proxy Statement unJer the headings
“Board of Directors Compensation”, “Compensation Discussion & Analysis,” "Compensatioa Committee
Report,” “Executive Compensation,” “Supplemental Death and Retirement Benefit Plans” and “Change of
Control Severance Agreements.”

ITEM 12 - Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder
Matters

Certain information required by this item is incorporated by reference to the Proxy Statemeni under the headings
“Principal Security Holders” and “Security Ownership of Directors and Execuiive Officers.”
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The following table provides information regarding shares of the Company’s common stock authorized for
issuance under equity compensation plans as of August 31, 2007:

Equity Compensation Plan Information

Number of securliles
remaining svailable for future
Number of securitles to be Lssuance under equity
tssued upon exercise of Weighted-ore, exercise compensation plans
autstanding aptions, warrants  price of oulstonding options,  (excluding vecurities reflected
Ph.nn_tcgury and rights (m ) warrants and rights (b ) incolumn {n))(c)
Equity compensation plans approved by security
holders 1,238,574 $28.91 1.037,160<0
Equity compensation plans not approved by security
holders nfa na nfa
Total 1,238,574 $28.91 1,037,160

M Includes 14,493 shares available pursuant to the Company's 1999 Non-Employee Director Restricted Stock
Plan.

Non-Employee Director Restricted Stock Plan

On October 28, 2003, the Board of Directors adopted the Third Amended and Restated WD-40 Company 1999
Non-Employee Director Restricted Stock Plan. The plan was approved by the Company’s stockholders at the
annual meeting of stockholders held on December 16, 2003. Pursuant to the plan and the director compensation
policy in effect for 2007, shares were issued to non-employee directors of the Company in liev of cash
compensation of up to $32,000 according to an election to be made by the director by November 30 of the prior
year. A director who held shares of the Company having a value of at least $50,000 may have elected to receive
his or her annual director’s fee entirely in cash. Otherwise, directors would have elected to receive restricted
stock in lieu of cash in the amount of $5,500, $1t,000, $16,500, $22,000, $27,500 or $32,000. The restricted
shares were issued in accordance with a director’s election as soon as practicable after the first day of March. The
number of shares issued was equal to the amount of compensation to be paid in shares divided by 90% of the
closing price of the Company’s shares as of the first business day of March or other date of issuance of such
shares. Restricted shares issued (o a director do not become vested for resale for a period of five years or until the
director's retirement from the Board following the director’s 65th birthday. Unless a director has reached age 65,
the shares are subject to forfeiture if, during the five-year vesting period, the director resigns from service as a
director,

ITEM 13 - Certain Relationships and Related Transactions
Not Applicable.
ITEM 14 — Principal Accounting Fees and Services

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference to the Proxy Statement under the heading
“Ratification of Appointment of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.”
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PART 1V

ITEM 15 - Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedule

Poge
() Documents filed as part of this report
(1) Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm i
Consolidated Balance Sheets at August 31, 2007 and 2006 it

Consolidated Statements of Operations for the Fiscal Years Ended August 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005 iii
Consolidated Statements of Sharcholders’ Equity and Comprehensive Income for th2 Fiscal Years

Ended August 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005 iv
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the Fiscal Years Ended August 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005 v
Notes to Consolidated Financia! Statements vi

All other schedules are omined because they are not applicable or the required information is shown in the
consolidated financial statements or notes thereto.

(2) Exhibits
Exhibit
.N;.. Description

Anrticles of Incorporation and Bylaws,
3(a)  Centificate of Incorporation.

3(b)  Bylaws, incorporated by reference from the Registrant’s Form 8-K filed Gctober 220, 2005, Exhibit 3
thereto,

Material Contracts.

Executive Compensation Plans and Armangements (Exhibits 10(a) through 1001} are management
contracts and compensatory plans or arrangements required to be filed as exhibits pursuant to
ITEM 15(b)).

10(a) Form of WD-40 Company Supplemental Death Benefit Plan applicable to cenain executive officers
of the Registrant.

10(b) Form of Amended and Restated WD-40 Company Supplemental Retirement Benefit Plan applicable
to certain executive officers of the Registrant, incorporated by reference from the Registrant’s Form
10-Q filed January 9, 2007, Exhibit 1{{a) thereto.

10(c)  Fourth Amendment and Restatement, WD-40 Company 1990 Incentive Stock Oprion Plan,
incorporated by reference from the Registrant’s Proxy Statement filed on November 4, 2003
(appendix thereto).

10(d) Form of Indemnity Agreement between the Registrant and its executive officers and directors.

10(e)  Third Amended and Restated WD-40 Company 1999 Non-Emptoyee Director Restricted Stock Plan
incorporated by reference from the Registrant’s Proxy Statement filed on November 4, 2003
{appendix thereto). |

! 10(f)  Change of Control Severance Agreement between WD-40 Company and Ganry Q. Ridge dated
' February 14, 2006, incorporated by reference from the Registrant’s Form 10-Q) filed April 10, 2006,
: Exhibit 10(a) thereto.
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Exhibit
No.

10(g)

10(h)

10()

10G)

10¢k)

10(0)

21
23
31(a)
31(b)
32a)
32(b)

Description

Change of Control Severance Agreement between WD-40 Company and Michael J. Irwin dated
February 14, 2006, incorporated by reference from the Registrant's Form 10-Q filed April 10, 2006,
Exhibit 10(b) thercto.

Change of Contro) Severance Agreement between WD-40 Company and Michael L. Freeman dated
February 14, 2006, incorporated by seference from the Registrant’s Form 10-Q filed April 10, 2006,
Exhibit 10(c) thereto.

Change of Control Severance Agreement between WD-40 Company and Geoffrey J. Holdsworth
dated February 14, 2006, incorporated by reference from the Registrant’s Form 10-Q filed April 10,
2006, Exhibit 10{d) thereto.

Change of Control Severance Agreement between WD-40 Company and Graham P. Milner dated
February 14, 2006, incorporated by reference from the Registrant's Form 10-Q filed April 10, 2006,
Exhibit 10{e) thereto.

Change of Control Severance Agreement between WD-40 Company and William B. Noble dated
February 14, 2006. incorporated by reference from the Registrant’s Form 10-Q filed April 10, 2006,
Exhibit 10(f) thereto.

Amended and Restated Compensation Agreement between WD-40 Company and Geoff Holdsworth
dated March 27, 2007, incorporated by reference from the Registrant's Form 10-Q filed April 9, 2007,
Exhibit 10(a) thereto.

Subsidizries of the Registrant.

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.

Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002,
Centification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002,

Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

Centification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.




SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has
duly cauvsed this annual report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

WD-40 COMPANY
Registrant

/s MICHAEL J. IRWIN

MICHAEL J. IRWIN
Executive Vice President
Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)
Date 10/25/07

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the
following persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

/st JAY REMBOLT

JAY REMBOLT

Vice President of Finance, Controller
(Principal Accounting Officer)

Date 10/25/07

/st GARRY O.RIDGE

GARRY 0. RIDGE

Chief Executive Officer and Dircctor
{Principal Executive Officer}

Date 10/25/07

/s/ JOHN C. ADAMS

JOHN C. ADAMS, JR., Director
Date 10/22/07

fs/ GILES H. BATEMAN

GILES H, BATEMAN, Director
Date 1022/07

/s/ PETER D. BEWLEY

PETER D. BEWLEY, Director
Date 10/22/07

/s! RICHARD A. COLLATQO

RICHARD A. COLLATO. Dire:tor
Date 10/22/07

fsf MARIO L. CRIVELLO

MARIO L. CRIVELLO, Director
Date  10/22/07




/s LINDA A. LANG

LINDA A. LANG, Director
Date 10/22/07

/s/ GARY L. LUICK

GARY L. LUICK, Director
Date 10/22/07

{s/ KENNETH E. OLSON

KENNETH E. OLSON, Director
Date 10/22/07

s/ NEAL E. SCHMALE

NEAL E. SCHMALE, Director
Dae 102207
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of WD-40 Company:

[n our opinion, the consolidated financial statements listed in the index appearing under 15(a)(1) present
fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of WD-40 Company and its subsidiaries at August 31, 2007
and August 31, 2006, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the
period ended August 31, 2007 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America. Also in our opinion, the Company mainained, in all material respects, effective internal control over
financial reporting as of August 31, 2007, based on criteria established in Internal Control—integrated
Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO). The
Company’s management is responsible for these financial statements, for maintaining effective internal control
over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal conirol over financial reporting,
included in Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting appearing under liem 9A. Our
responsibilily is to express opinions on these financial statements and on the Company’s internal control over
financial reporting based on our integrated audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of
the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance aboul whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement and whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material
respects. Our audits of the financial statements included examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. Our audit of internal
control over financial reporting inctuded obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a matenal weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. Our audits also included performing such other
procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audits provide a reascnable
basis for our opinions.

As discussed in Note 1 of the consolidated financial statements, the Company changed its method of
accounting for share-based payments during the year ended Auvgusi 31, 2006.

A company’s internal contro! over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting
includes those policies and procedures that (i} pertain to the mainienance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (ii) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial stalements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (iii) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthonzed acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that
controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

fsf PRICEWATERHOUSECOOPERS LLP

San Diego, California
October 24, 2007




WD-40 Company

Consolidated Balarce Sheets
Aupust 31, 2007 and 2006
August M, 2007 Aust 3, 2006
Assets
Currenl asscts:
Cosh and cash equivalents $ 61078000 § 15.206,000
Trade accounts receivable, less allowance for doubtful accounts of $369,000 and
$762,000 47,204,000 14,491,000
Product held at contract packagers 1,447,000 1.385,000
Inventories 13,208,000 15,269,000
Current deferred 1ax assets, net 4,145,000 4,331,000
Other current assels 3,489,000 4,858,000

Total current assets

Property, plant and equipment, nct
Goodwill

Other intangibles, net

Investment in related pany

Onher assets

Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity
Current liabilities:
Current portion of long-term debt
Accounts payable
Accounts payable to related pany
Accrued liabilities
Accrued payroll and related expenses
{ntome laxes payable

Total current liabilities

Long-term debt
Deferred employee benefits and other long-term liabilities
Long-term deferred tax liabilities, net

Total liabilities

Commitments and contingencics (Notes 6, 7. 8 and 13)
Sharcholders’ equity:
Common stock, $.001 par value, 36,000,000 shares authorized — 17,883,299 and
17.510,668 shares issued; and 16,848,601 and 16,975,970 shares outstanding
Paig-in capital
Retained camings
Accumulated other comprehensive income
Commen slock held in treasury, at cost (1,034,698 and 534,698 shares)

Total shareholders® equity

130,521,000 115,540,000

8.811.000 8,940,000
96,409,000 36,118,000
42,543,000 12,722.000

1.015,000 972.000

3.837.000 4,183,000

$283,186,000 3258,475,000

$ 10714000  § 10.714,000
21,854,000 11.287.000
1.506,000 463,000
12,780,000 11,678,000
6,906,000 7.485.000
97.000 2,040,000

51,857,000 43,667,000

42,857,000 53,571,000
2,195,000 1,893,000
16,005,000 13,611,000

114.914.000 112,744,000

18.000 17,000
74,836,000 62,322,000
118,260,000 103,335,000
7,504,000 5,083.000
(32,346,000  115,026,000)

168,272,000 155,731,000
$283.186,000 $:68.475,000

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.




WD-40 Company
Consolidated Statements of Qperations
For the Fiscal Years Ended August 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005

Net sales
Cost of products sold (including cost of products acquired from retated party of

$19,067.000, $41.004,000 and $3%,384.000 for fiscal years 2007, 2006 and 2005,

respectively)

Gross profit
Operating expenses:
Selling. general and administrative

Advertising and sales promotion
Amortization of intangible assel

Income from operations

Other (expense) income:

Interest expense, net of interest yncome of $2,093,000, $1.394.000 and $1.034,000 in

fiscal years 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively
iber income, net

Income before income taxes
Provision for income taxes

Net income

Eamings per common share:
Rasic

Diluted
Weighted average common shares outstanding. basic

Weighted average common shares outstanding, diluled

007

2006

1005

$307.816,000 $286,916,000 $263.227,000

158954000 148516000  133.833.000
148,862,000 138,400,000  129.394,000
78,520,000 71,767,000 63,529,000
20,743,000 20,079,000 17,892,000
583,000 532000 552,000
99,846,000 92,378,000 81,974,000
49,016,000 46,022,000 47,420,000
(2.018.000) (3.503,000) (5.133,000)
177,000 339,000 578,000
47,175,000 42,858,000 42.865,000
15.641,000 14,746,000 15,067,000
$ 31,534,000 $ 28,112,000 § 27.798.000
5 18 § 1.67 % 1.67
$ 183 3§ 166 § 1.65
17,077.870 16,784473 16.629.057
17,271,242 16,912,355 16,807,359

|

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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WD-40 Company
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

For the Fiscal Years Ended August 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005

Caush flows from operating activities:
Net income

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization

Gains on sales and disposals of propenty and equipment
Deferred income tax expense

Tax benefit from exercise of stock options

Excess tax benefits from exercise of stock options

Distributions reccived and cquity (carmings) losses from related party, net

Stock-bascd compensation

Changes in assets and liabilities:
Trade accounts receivable
Product held ot contract packagers
Inventaries
Other assets
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Accounis payable to related party
Income taxcs payable

Deferred employee benefits and other long-term liabilities

Net cash provided by operating aclivitics

Cash Nows from investing activities:
Purchases of shon-tetm investrnents
Sales of short-term investments
Proceeds from coflections on nole receivable
Capital expenditures
Proceeds from sales of property and equipment

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing aciivitics:
Repayments of long-term debt
Proceeds from issuance of common stock
Excess tax benefits from exercise of stock options
Treasury stock purchases
Dividends paid

Net cash used in financing activities
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents
Increase in cash and cush equivalen!s
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalems ai end of year
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:

Cash paid for interest and bank fees
Cash paid for income taxes, net of tax refunds received

2007 2006 2005
$ 31,534,000 $28,112,000 § 27,798,000
3.649,000 3,467,000 3,007,000
(23,000) (38.000) (24.000)
2,336,000 1.396.000 3,474,000
- — 377.000
(741,000) (503,000) -
(43.000) 140.000 (180.000)
1,919,000 1,836,000 12,000
(1.365,000) 1,146,000 (3.635.000)
(62.000) 429,000 161,000
2.392,000 (6.889.000)  (1,655.000)
1,362,000 1.976.000 (970.000)
10,388,000 (1.621.04X)) 3,262,000
1,043,000 (1.481.000) 14.000
{984.000) 147,000 {125,000y
246,000 £0.000 38,000
51,651,000 28,197,000 31,564,000
(224,675,000)  (31,675.000) —
224,675,000 31,675,000 —
25,000 125,000 50.000
{2,561,000)  (2,947.000) (3,101,000
315,000 267,000 162,000
(2,217,000 (2555000 (2.889.000)
10,714,000}  (10,714,000)  (10.000.000)
9,754,000 7.018,000 2,839,000
741,000 503.000 —
(17,320,000} — -
(16,609.000) (14,760,000) (13,967,000
(34,148,000  (17.953.000)  (21,128,000)
586,000 397.000 140,000
15,872,000 8,086,000 7.687.000
45,206,000 37.120.000 29.433,000
$ 61,078,000 $ 45,206,000 $ 37.120,000
$ 4118000 § 4813000 § 5993.000
$ 13501000 $ 11016000 § 10,366,000

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

v




WD-40 Company
Notes to Cansolidated Financial Statements
August 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005

1.  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
The Company

WD-40 Company (the Company), headquartered in San Diego, California, markels two lubricant brands known
as WD-40® and 3-IN-ONE Oil®, two heavy-duty hand cleaner brands known as Lava® and Scdvol®, and six
household product brands known as X-14® hard surface cleaners and automatic toilet bow| cleaners, 2000
Flushes ® automatic toilet bowl cleaner, Carpet Fresh® and No Vac® rug and room deodorizers, Spot Shot®
aerosol and liquid carpet stain removers and 1001® carpet and household cleaners and rug and room deodorizers, .

The Company's brands are sold in various locaticns around the world. Lubricant brands are scld worldwide in
markets such as North, Central and South America, Asia, Australia and the Pacific Rim, Europe, the Middle Eas
and Africa. Household product brands are currently sold primarily in North America, the UJ.K , Australia and the
Pacific Rim. Heavy-duty hand cleaner brands are sold primarily in the U.S. and Australia,

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its wholly-owned subsidiaries.
All intercompany transactions and balances have been eliminated.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepied in the United
States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and habilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and '
the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results covld differ from those \
estimates.

Sales Concentration

Wal-Mart Stores, Inc. is a significant U.S. mass retail customer and offers a variety of the Company's products.
Sales 10 U.S. Wal-Mart stores accounted for approximately 9 percent of the Company’s consclidated net sales
during each of fiscal years 2007, 2006 and 2005. Excluding sales to U.S. Wal-Mart siores, sales to affiliates of
Wal-Man werldwide accounted for approximately 4 percent during each of fiscal years 2007, 2006 and 2005.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash equivalents are highly liquid investments purchased with an original maturity of three mronths or less.
Short-term Investments

Periodicalty, the Company invests in short-term investments. These shont-term investments consist of investment
grade auction rate securities classified as available-for-sale and reported at fair value with maturities that could
range from 13 months to 30 years. The interest rates are resel through an auction bidding process at
predetermined periods ranging from 7 1o 35 days. Due to the frequent nature of the resei featvre, the realized or
unrealized gains or losses associated with these securities are not significant; therefore, aucticn rate securities are
stated at cost, which approximates fair value. Purchase and sale activity of shori-term investmients is presented as
cash flows from investing activities in the consolidated statements of cash flows. As of Augu:t 31, 2007 and
2006, the Compaany did not carry any short-term investiments.
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WD-40 Company
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
August 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005

Trade Accounts Receivable and Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

Trade accounts receivable are recorded at the invoiced amount and do not bear interest. The allowance for
doubtful accounts is the Company’s best estimate of the amount of probable credit losses in existing accounts
receivable. The Company determines the allowance based on historical write off experience and by industry and
regional economic data. Account balances are charged off against the allowance when the Company feels it is
probable that the receivable will not be recovered. The Company does not have any off-balance sheet credit
exposure related 1o its customers.

The following are the changes in the allowance for doubtful accounts during the fiscal years ended August 31,
2007, 2006 and 2005.

Additlons

Balance Charpged to Balance
nt Beginning Costs and ut End of
Alowance for doubtful accounls of Year Expenses Deductions® Year
Yearended August 31,2005 ... ... $842,000 $588,000 $654,000  $776,000
Yearended August 31,2000 ......... .. o $776,000 $601,000 $615,000 $762,000
Yearended August 31,2007 ... o $762,000 $585,000 $978,000 $369.000

* Write off (recoveries) of doubtful accounts

Product Held at Contract Packagers

The manufacturing of the Company's products is outsourced to contract packagers. These contract packagers
package products to rigid specifications, and upon order from WD-40 Company, ship ready-to-sell inventory to
the Company's customers. The Company transfers certain raw materials and product components (o these
contract packagers for use in the manufacturing process. Packagers are obligated to pay the Company for the raw
materials and components upon receipt. Amounts receivable as of the balance sheet date are reported as product
held at contract packagers in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost (as determined based on the average cost method) or market. When
necessary, the Company provides allowances to adjust the carrying value of its inventory to the lower of cost or
market, including any costs to sell or dispose. Appropriate consideration is given to obsolescence, excessive
inventory levels, product deterioration and other factors in evaluating net realizable value for the purposes of
determining the lower of cost or market.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost. Depreciation has been computed using the straight-line method
based upon estimated useful lives of 1en to thinty years for buildings and improvements, three to fifieen years for
machinery and equipment, five years for vehicles, three to ten years for fumiture and fixtures and three to five
years for software and computer equipment. Depreciation expense totaled $2.6 million, $2.3 million and $2.0
million in fiscal years 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively. These amounts include factory depreciation expense
recognized as cost of products sold totaling $0.8 million, $0.7 million and $0.5 million in fiscal years 2007, 2006
and 2005, respectively.
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WD-40 Company
Notes 1o Consolidated Financial Statements
August 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005

Software Development Costs

The Company capitalizes qualifying software costs, which are incurred during the application development stage,
and amortizes them over their estimated useful lives of three to five years. The Company capitalized $0.2 million
during cach of the fiscal years ended. August 31, 2007 and 2006 and $0.3 million during the fiscal year ended
August 31, 2005. Capitalized software costs are included in property, plant and equipment in the accompanying
consolidated balance sheets. Amortization expense totaled $0.4 million for each of the fiscal vears ended

August 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005.

Goodwill and Other Intangibles

Goodwill and other intangibles principally relate 1o the excess of the purchase price over the fair value of
tangible assets acquired. Goodwill and intangible assets that have indefinite useful lives are tested at least
annually for impairment during the Company’s second fiscal quarter and otherwise as may be: required.

The Company tests for goodwill impairment based on the SFAS No. 142 goodwill impairment model, which is a
two-step process. First, the impairment modei requires comparnison of the book value of net aisets to the fair
value of the related reporting units that have goodwill assigned to them. If the fair value i determined to be less
than book value, a second step is performed 10 compute the amount of impairment. In the second step, the
implied fair value of goodwill is estimated as the fair value of the reporting unit used in the first step less the fair
values of alt other net tangible and intangible assets of the reporting unit. If the carrying amount of goodwill
exceeds its implied fair market value, an impairment loss is recognized in an amount equal to that excess, not to
exceed the carrying amount of the goodwill. The Company tests for impairment of intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives in accordance with SFAS No. 142 based on discounted future cash flows compared to the
related book values. The Company's impairment test is based on a discounted cash flow approach that requires
significant management judgment and estimates with respect to, among othes considerations, forecasted revenue,
advertising and promotional expenses, cost of products sold, gross margins, operating margins, the success of
product innovations and introductions, customer retention, tax rates, terminal growth values and the selection of
appropriate discount and royalty rates.

In addition to the annual impairment tests, goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite lives are evaluated each
reporting period. Goodwill is evatuated each reporting period 1o determine whether events ar d circumstances
would more likely than not reduce the fair value of a reporting unit below its carrying value. Intangible assets
with indefinite lives are evaluated each reporting period to determine whether events and circumstances continue
to support an indefinite useful life and to determine whether any indicators of impairment exist. Indicators such
as underperformance relative to historical or projected future operating results, changes in th> Company’s
strategy for its overall business or use of acquired assets, decline in the Company’s stock prize for a sustained
period, unexpected adverse industry or economic trends, unanticipated technological change or competitive
activities, loss of key distribution, change in consumer demand, loss of key personnel and acis by govemments
and counts may signal that an asset has become impaired.

Intangible assets with definite lives are amortized over their useful lives and are also evaluated each reporting
period to determine whether events and circumstances continue to support their remaining useful lives.

Long-lived Assets

The Company assesses potential impairments to its long-lived assets when there is evidence that events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value of an asset may not be recoveruble Any required
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WD-40 Company
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
fn_l_l_gust 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005

impairment loss would be measured as the amount by which the asset’s carrying value exceeds its fair value,
which is the amount al which the asset could be bought or sold in a current transaction between willing partics,
and would be recorded as a reduction in the carrying value of the related asset and a charge to results of
operations. An impairment loss would be recognized when the sum of the expected future undiscounted net cash
flows is less than the carrying amount of the asset. No material impairments have been identified by the
Company.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The Company’s financial instruments include cash equivalents, trade receivables, accounts payable, debt and
foreign currency exchange contracts. Periodically, the Company’s financial instruments may also include short-
term investments. The carrying amounts of these instruments, with the exception of debt, approximate fair value
because of the short maturities or variable interest rates.

The fair value of the Company's debt was approximately $55.8 million and $66.8 million at August 31, 2007 and
2006, respectively. The fair value of the Company’s debt is based on discounted future cash flows using current
markel interest rates.

Concentration of Credit Risk

Financial instruments, which potentially subject the Company to significant concentrations of credit risk, consist
principally of cash and cash cquivalents, short-term investments and accounts receivable. The Company’s policy
is to place its cash in high credit quality financial institutions, in investments that include operating and money
market accounts and, periodically, auction-rate securities. The Company's accounts receivable are primarily
derived from customers located in North America, South America, Asia-Pacific and Europe. Additionally, the
Company limits its credit exposure from trade receivables by performing on-going credit evaluations of
customers, as well as insuriny its accounts receivable in selected markets.

Revenue Recognition

Sales are recognized as revenue at the time of delivery to the customer when risk of loss and title pass. Sales are
recorded net of allowances for damaged goods and other sales returns, sales incentives, trade promotions and
cash discounts.

The Company records sales incentives as a reduction of sales in its consolidated statements of operations. The
Company offers on-going trade promotion programs with customers, and consumer coupon programs that require
the Company to estimate and accrue the expected costs of such programs. Programs include cooperative
marketing programs, shelf price reductions, coupons, rebates, consideration and allowances given to retailers for
space in their stores, consideration and allowances given to obtain favorable display positions in the retailers’
stores and other promotional activity. Costs related to rebates, co-operative advertising and other promotional
activity are recorded upon delivery of products to customers. Costs related o coupon offers are based upon
historical redemption rates and are recorded as incurred, when coupons are circulated.

Cost of Products Sold
The components of cost of products sold primarily include the cost of products manufactured on the Company’s
behalf by its contract packagers, net of volume and other rebates. The costs to manufacture WD-40 concentrate

are 0ls50 included in cost of producis sold, which include direct iabor, direct materials and supplies; in-bound
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WD-40 Company
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
August 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005

freight costs related to purchased raw matenials; and depreciation of machinery and equipment used in the
manufacturing process.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses

The components of selling, general and administrative expenses include costs refated to selling, the product such
as the cost of the sales force and selaled sales and broker commissions; freight paid to third-pa:ly companies to
distribute finished goads from the Company's contract packagers to its customers; other general and
administrative costs related to the Company’s business such as general overhead, legal and accounting fees,
insurance, and depreciation: and other employee-related costs to support marketing, human ret.ources, finance,
supply chain. information technology and research and development activities.

Shipping and Handling Costs

Shipping and handling costs included in selling, general and administrative expenses were $16.4 million, $16.3
million and $15.8 million in fiscal years 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

Advertising and Sales Promotion Expenses

The Company’s policy is to expense advertising and sales promotion expenses as incurred. Acvertising and sales
promotion expenses include costs for advertising (television, print media and internet}. coupon insettion,
consumer promotion, product demonstrations, public relalions, agency costs, package design cxpenses and
market research costs,

Research and Development

The Company is involved in research and development efforts that include the continual deve .opment of new
products and the improvement of existing products. All research and development costs are expensed as incurred
and are included in selling, general and administrative expenses. Research and development expenses were 33.8
million for each of the fiscal years ended 2007 and 2006, and $2.5 million for the fiscal year ended 2005. These
expenses include general research and development activities, as well as internal staff, overhead, design testing,
market research and consuliants.

Income Taxes

Current income tax expense is the amount of income taxcs expected to be payable for the cunent year. A
deferred income tax liability or asset is established for the expected future tax consequences r2sulting from the
differences in financial reporting and tax bases of assets and liabilities. A valuation allow:nce is provided if it is
more likely than not that some or all of the deferred 1ax assets will not be realized.

The Company establishes accruals for certain tax contingencies when, despite the belief that the Company’s tax
retumn positions are fully supported, the Company believes that certain positions may be chailenged and that the
Company’s positions may not be fully sustained. The tax contingency accruals are adjusied in light of changing
facts and circumstances, such as the progress of 1ax audits, case law and emerging legislation The Company’s
tax contingency accruals are reflected as a component of income taxes payable.

U.S. income tax expense is provided on remittances of foreign earnings and on unremitted foreign earnings that
are not indefinitely reinvested. Where unremitted foreign earnings are indefinitely reinvested no provision for
federal and state tax expense is made.




WD-40 Company
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
August 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005

Foreign Currency

Assets and liabilities of the Company’s foreign subsidiaries are translated into U.S. dollars at exchange rates in
effect at the balance sheet date. Income and expense items are translated at the average exchange rates prevailing
during the period. Gains and losses from translation are included in accumulated other comprehensive income
(loss). Gains or losses resulting from foreign currency transactions (transactions denominated in a currency other
than the entity’s functional currency) are included in the consolidated statements of operations as other (expense)
income. Aggregate foreign currency transaction (losses) gains were ($38,000), $110,000 and $387,000 for the
fiscal years ended August 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

The Company uses foreign currency forward contracts to reduce the risk of foreign currency transactions of one
of its wholly-owned foreign subsidiaries. The principal currency affected is the Euro. Forward contracts are
accounted for on a mark-to-market basis, with realized and unrealized gains or losses recognized currently. Cash
flows from settiements of forward contracts are included in operating activities in the consolidated statements of
cash Mows. While the Company engages in foreign currency hedging activity (o reduce its risk, for accounting
purposes, none of the foreign exchange contracts are designated as hedges.

The Company continually monitors its positions with, and the credit quality of, the major intemational financial
institutions which are counterpartics to its foreign currency forward contracts, and has not experienced
nonperformance by any of thise counterparties. As a matier of policy, the Company does not purchase contracts
that exceed the amount of the foreign denominated cash and accounts receivable balances. At August 31, 2007,
the Company had approximately $6.4 million of foreign currency forward contracts outsianding, which mature
starting in September 2007 and continue to mature through December 2007. The amount of net realized and
unrealized gains and losses on the foreign currency forward contracts was not material for all periods presented.

Earnings per Share

Basic earnings per common share is calculated by dividing net income for the period by the weighted average
number of common shares outstanding during the period. Diluted earnings per common share is calculated by
dividing net income for the period by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the
period increased by the weighted average number of potentially dilutive common shares (dilutive securities) thal
were outstanding during the period. Dilutive securities are comprised of options granted under the Company's
stock option plan.

Stock-based Compensation

Effective September 1, 2005, the Company began recording compensation expense associated with stock options
in accordance with SFAS No. 123R, “Share-Based Payment”. Prior to September 1, 2003, the Company
accounted for stock-based compensation related 1o stock options under the recognition and measurement
principles of Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25; therefore, the Company measured compensation
expense for its stock option plan using the intrinsic value method, that is, as the excess, if any, of the fair market
value of the Company's stock at the grant date over the amount required to be paid to acquire the stock, and
provided the disclosures required by SFAS Nos. 123 and 148. The Company adopted the modified prospective
transition method provided under SFAS No. 123R, and as a result, did not retroactively adjust results from prior
periods. Under this transition method, compensation expense associated with stock options recognized in fiscal
years 2007 and 2006 includes: 1) expense related to the remaining unvested portion of all stock option awards
granted prior to September 1, 2005, based on the grant date fair value estimated in accordance with the original
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WD-40 Company
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
August 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005

provisions of SFAS No. 123; and 2) expense related to all stock option awards granted subsequent to
September !, 2005, based on the grant date fair value estimated in accordance with the provisions of SFAS
No. 123R.

The adoption of SFAS No. 123R also resulied in certain changes 1o the Company’s accourting for its restricted
stock awards, which is discussed in Note 10 in more detail.

Segment Information

The Company discloses certain information about the Company's operating segments, which nre determined
consistent with the way management organizes and evaluates financial information internally for making
operating decisions and assessing performance. The Company is organized on the basis of geographical areas. In
addition, management assesses revenue on the basis of products.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In February 2007, the Financial Accounting Standards Beard (FASB) issued SFAS No. 159, “The Fair Value
Option for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities—Including an amendment of FASB Stalement No. 115.”
This Statement permits entities o choose to measure many financial instruments and certain other items at fair
value. This Statement is effective as of the beginning of an entity’s first fiscal year that begin: after

November L5, 2007. Early adoption is permitted as of the beginning of a fiscal year that begins on or before
November 15, 2007, provided the entity also elects to apply the provisions of SFAS No. 157, ** Fair Value
Measurements.” Management is currently evaluating the impact that the implementation of SIFAS No. 159 may
have on the Company’s consolidated results of operations and financial position.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, “Fair Value Measurements.” SFAS No. 157 defines fair
value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value and expands disclosures about fair value measurements.
This statement is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007,
and interim periods within those fiscal years. Management is currently evaluating SFAS No. 157 to determine the
impact, if any, on the Company's consolidated financial stalements.

In June 2006, the FASB issued Interpretation No. 48 (FIN 48), “Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes -
an interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109.” FIN 48 seeks to reduce the significam diversizy in practice
associated with recognition and measurement in the accounting for income taxes. It applizs to all tax positions
accounted for in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 109, "*Accounting for Income
Taxes.” FIN 48 is effective for fiscal years beginning afier December 15, 2006. The Company will adopt this
interpretation as required beginning September 1, 2007. Management is currently evaluating the impact that the
implementation of FIN 48 may have on the Company’s consolidated results of operations an financial position.

2. Goodwill and Other Intangibles

Goodwill and other intangibles principally relate to the excess of the purchase price over the fair value of
tangible assets acquired, Goodwill and intangible assets that have indefinite useful lives are t2sted at least
annually for impairment during the Company’s second fiscal quarter and otherwise as may b2 required. During
the fiscal year 2007 second quarter, the Company tested its goodwill and indefinite-lived int.ngible assets for
impairment. Based on this test, the Company determined that there were no instances of imp.irment.
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WD-40 Company
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
August 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005

Acquisition-related Goodwill

Changes in the carrying amounts of goodwill by segment for the fiscal years ended August 31, 2007 and 2006 are
summarized below:

Acquisition-refated Goodwlll
Americas Eurape Asta-Pacilic Total
Balance as of August 31, 2005 $85,628,000  $9.018,000  §1,212,000  $95858,000
Translation adjustments 39.000 221,060 — 260,000
Balance as of August 31, 2006 85,667.000 9,239,000 1,212,000 96,118,000
Translation adjustments 42,000 248,000 1,000 291,000 |
Balance as of August 31, 2007 $85,705000 $9.487.000  $1.213.000  $96.409.000

Indefinite-lived Intangible Assets

Intangible assets, excluding goodwill, which are not amortized as they have been determined to have indefinite
lives, consist of the trade names Carpet Fresh, X-14, 2000 Flushes, Spot Shot and 1001,

Changes in the carrying amounts of indefinite-lived intangibles by segment for the fiscal years ended August 31,
2007 and 2006 are summarized below:

Indchinite-tved 1 bl

Americas Europe Asia-Pocilic Total
Balance as of August 31, 2005 $35.700.000  $3.656000 § — $19,356.000
Translation adjustments — 206,000 —_ 206,000
Balance as of August 31, 2006 35,700.000 3.862,000 — 39.562.000
Translation adjustments — 231.000 231,000
Balance as of August 31, 2007 $35,700,000 $4,093,000 $ — $39,793,000

Definite-lived Intangible Assets

The Company’s definite-lived intangible asset consists of cenain non-contractual customer relationships acquired
in the fiscal year 2004 acquisition of the 1001 line of products.

This definite-lived intangible asset is included in the Europe segment and is being amortized on a straight-line
basis over its estimated eight-year life. The following table summarizes the non-contractual customer
relationships intangible asset and the related amortization:

As of August 31,
007 2006
Gross carrying amount $ 4,800,000  §4.528,000
Accumulated amortjzation {2,050,000) (1,368,000)
Net carrying amount $ 2,750,000  $ 3.160,000
Year Ended August M1,
2007 2006 2005

Amortization ¢xpensc $583.000  $532,000  $552.000




WD-40 Company
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
August 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005

The estimated amortization expense for the non-contractual customer relationships intangible £sset is based on
current foreign currency exchange rales, and amounts in future periods may differ from those presented due to
fluctuations in those rates. The estimated amonrtization for the non-contractual customer relationships intangible
asset in future fiscal years is as follows:

Fiscal year 2008 $ 600,000
Fiscal year 2009 600,000
Fiscal year 2010 600,000
Fiscal year 2011 600,000
Thereafter 350,000

$2,750,000

Changes in the carrying amounts of definite-lived intangibles by segment for the fiscal years ended August 31,
' 2007 and 2006 are summarized below:

Definite-lived lotanibles

Americas Europe AshirPacilic Total
Balance as of August 3t, 2005 s —_ $3.528000 §$ — $3,528,000
Amontization —_ (532,000) - (532,000)
Translation adjustments —_ 164,000 = 164,000
Balance as of August 31, 2006 — 3,160.000 —- 3,160,000
Amortization — (583.000) - (583.000)
Translation adjustments — 173,000 - 173,000
Balance as of August 31, 2007 $ —_ $2.750,000 3 - $2.750,000
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WD-40 Company
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
August 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005

3. Selected Financial Statement Information

As of August 31,
007 2006
inventories
Raw materials and components § 1004000 § 1,110.000
Work-in-process 1,455,000 2,196,000
Finished goods 10,749,000 11,963,000
$ 13,208,000  $ 15,269.000
Other Current Assets
Prepaid expenses and other $ 3459000 § 4,229.000
Federal income taxes receivable 30,000 629.000

§ 3489000 § 4858000

I

Property, Plant and Equipment, net

Land $ 597000 § 583000
Buildings and improvements 4,559,000 4,196,000
Fumniture and fixtures 1,129.000 1,090,000
Computer and office equipment 3.937.000 3,513,000
Software 3,647,000 3,207,000
Machinery, equipment and vehicles 7.663.000 7.135.000
21.532.000 19,724,000
Less: accumulated depreciation (12,721,000) (10,784,000)

S 881,000 § 8940000

Accrued Liabilities
Accrued adventising and sales promotion expenscs $ 7938000 § 6854000
Other 4,842,000 4,824,000

$12.780000 ¥ 11,678,000

Accrued Payroll and Related Expenses

Accrued bonus $ 3185000 $ 3923000
Accrued profit sharing 1,402,000 1,404,000
Accrued payroll 1.265.000 1,14),000
Accrucd payroll taxes 832,000 779.000
QOther 222,000 233,000

$ 6906000 $ 7.485.000

4. Stock Repurchase Plan

On March 27, 2007, the Company’s Board of Directors approved a share buy-back plan. Under the plan, which is
in effect for up to twelve months, the Company is authorized to acquire up to $35.0 million of the Company’s
outstanding shares. As of August 31, 2007, the Company has acquired 500,000 shares at a total cost of $17.3
million under the plan.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
August 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005

5. Earnings per Common Share

The schedule below summarizes the elements included in the calculation of basic and diluted :arnings per
common share for the fiscal years ended August 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005.

Year Ended Aug 131,
007 06 2005
Net income $31,534000  $23,112.0(0  §27,798.000
Weighted avernge common shares outstanding:
Weighted average common shares outstanding. basic 17,071,870 16,734,473 16,629,057
Weighted average dilulive securities 193,372 127,842 178,342
Weighted average common shares outstanding. diluted 12,271,242 16.912,355 16,807,399

Weighted average options outstanding totaling 243,177, 359,507 and 270,455 for the fiscal years ended

August 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively, were excluded from the calculation of diluted EPS, as the options
have an exercise price greater than or equal to the average market value of the Company s co nmon stock during
the respective periods. For the fiscal year ended August 31, 2007, there were no additional anti-dilutive weighted
average options outstanding excluded from the calculation of diluted EPS under the treasury :tock method. For
the fiscal year ended August 31, 2006, weighted average options outstanding totaling 198,581 were also excluded
from the calculation of diluted EPS under the treasury stock method as they were anti-dilutive:. These options
were anti-dilutive as a result of the assumed proceeds from (i) amounts option holders must pay for exercising
stock options, (ii) the amount of compensation costs for future service that the Company has not yet recognized
as expense, and (iii) the amount of tax benefits that would be recorded in additional paid-in c1pital upon exercise
of the options.

6. Long-term Debt

Long-term debt is comprised of the following:

As if August 31,

2007 2006
Total debi $ 53,5710 $ 64,285,000
Less: currcn? portion (10,714,000) (10,714,000)
Long-term debn $ 42.857,000 $ 53.571.000

As of August 31, 2007, the Company had $53.6 million remaining on an oniginal $75 million, 7.28% fixed-rate
term loan financed through Prudential Capital. The $75 million term loan, which originated in October 2001, has
a 10-year term and required interest-only paymenis for the first three years.

The term loan agreement has covenant requirements, which require the Company to maintain minimum
consolidated net worth greater than the sum of $57 million plus 25% of consolidated net income for exch fiscal
quarter beginning with the first fiscal quarter of 2002, plus proceeds of all equity securities cther than those
issued under the Company's stock option plan. A consolidated fixed charge coverage ratio greater than 1.20:1.00
on the last day of any fiscal quarter must be maintained. The Company is alsc limited 10 a maximum ratio of
funded debt to earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization (EBITDA) of 2 25 10 1.00. The term
loan is collateralized by the Company’s cash, property, inventory, trade receivables and wiangible assets. The
term loan also includes certain pravisions for prepayment penalties.
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The events of default under the fixed-rate term loan include the following:
* Failure to pay principal or interest when due

*  Failure to comply with covenants, representations and warranties, or other terms and conditions under
the credit agreemenls

* Commencing any proceeding for bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, dissolution or liquidation

* The sale, ransfer, abandonment, forfeiture or disposal of the WD-40 trademark or any other trademark
used in a material product line

In the event of default, the term loan may be due and callable immediately at the option of the holders.

The term loan agreement also limits the Company’s ability, without prior approval from the Company’s lenders,
10 incur additional unsecured indebtedness, sell, lease or transfer assets, place liens on propenties, complete
certain acquisitions, mergers or consolidations, enter into guarantee obligations, enter into related party
transactions and make certain loan advances and invesiments.

On March 27, 2007, the Company's Board of Directors approved a share buy-back plan. As a result of the share
buy-back plan, the Company's debi covenants related 1o its fixed-rate term loan have been revised. Under the
revised debt covenants, the aggregate payments for dividends and share repurchases by the Company are limited
to $35 million, plus 75% of consolidated net income for each quarter beginning March 1, 2007.

The Company is in compliance with all debt covenants as required by the term loan agreement.

The aggregate maturities of the remaining fixed-rate term loan are as follows:

Year ending August 31, 2008 $10,714,000
2009 10,714,000
2010 10,714,000
2011 10,714,000
2012 10,715,000

Total 353,571,000

7. Related Parties

VML Company L.L.C. (VML), a Delaware Limited Liability Company, was formed in April 2001, at which time
the Company acquired a 30% membership interest. Since formation, VML has served as the Company's contract
manufacturer for cenain household products and acts as a warehouse distributor for other product lines of the
Company. Although VML has begun to expand its business to other customers, the Company conlinues to be its
largest customer. VML makes profit distributions to the Company and the 70% owner on a discretionary basis in
proportion to each party’s respective interest.

The Company has a put option to sell its interest in VML to the 70% owner, and the 70% owner has a call opiion
to purchase the Company’s interest. The sale price in each case is established pursuant to formulas based on
VML’s operating results.

Under Financial Interpretation No. 486, “Consolidation of Variable Inicrest Entities, an interpretation of
Accounting Research Bulletin No. 51, VML qualifies as a variable interest entity, and it has been determined
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that the Company is not the primary beneficiary. The Company’s investment in VML is accounted for using the
equity method of accounting, and its equity in VML eamnings or losses is recorded as a component of cost of
products sold, as VML acts primarily as a contract manufacturer to the Company. The Corapany recorded equity
carnings related to its investment in VML of $0.1 million for (he fiscal year ended August 31, 2007, equity losses
of $0.1 million for the fiscal year ended August 31, 2006 and equity earnings of $0.4 million for the fiscal year
ended August 31, 2005.

The Company's maximum exposure 1o loss as a result of its involvement with VML was $1.0 million as of
August 31, 2007. This amount represents the balance of the Company’s equity investment in VML, which s
presented as investment in related party on the Company's consolidated balance sheets. The Company’s
investment in VML as of August 31, 2006 was $1.0 million.

Cost of products sold which were purchased from VML, net of rebates and equity eamings or losses, was
approximately $19.1 million, $41.0 million and $38.4 million during the fiscal years ended August 31, 2007,
2006 and 2005, respectively. The Company had product payables to VML of $1.5 million and $0.5 million at
August 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. Additionally, the Company receives rental incoms from VML, which is
recorded as a component of other (expense) income, net. Rental income from VML was $0.2 inillion for each of
the fiscal years ended August 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005.

During the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2006, the Company acquired $2.0 million of inventory from VML. The
inventory purchased from VML consisted of centain finished goods that had been acquired from other
manufacturers on behalf of the Company. As the Company transitioned to direct acquisition of these finished
goods, it acquired the remaining inventory at VML. s

8. Commitmenits and Contingencies

The Company was committed under certain non-cancelable operating leases, marketing and o‘her agreements
and capital expenditure commitments at August 31, 2007 which provide for the following future fiscal year
minimum payments:

2008 009 2010 011 2 Thercafier
Operating Icases SHL461.000  $ 903000  $483000 $172,000  $66.000 $10.000
Marketing and other commitmenis 1.163,000 438,000 438,000 - — —
Capita! expenditure commitments 2.019.000 — — —_ — —_

$4.643,000  $1,341,000  $921,000  $172000  $6(.000 $10.000

Rent expense was $1.3 million for the fiscal year ended August 31, 2007, and $1.1 million for each of the fiscal
years ended August 31, 2006 and 2005.

The Company has relationships with various suppliers (contract manufacturers) who manufacture the Company’s
products. Although the Company does not have any definitive minimum purchase obligations included in the
contract terms with the contract manufacturers, supply needs are communicated and the Company is commitied
to purchase the products produced based on orders and short-term projections provided to the contract
manufacturers, ranging from two to five months. The Company is also obligated to purchase hack obsolete or
slow-moving inventory, The Company has acquired inventory under these commitments, the amounts of which
have not been material.
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In addition to the commitments to purchase products from contract manufacturers described above, the Company
has also entered into commitments with other manufacturers to purchase finished goods and components of $1.1
million in fiscal year 2008.

The Company provides fixed retirement benefits to certain of its key exccutives under a supplemental employee
retirement plan. Under the plan, the Company is committed to pay benefits to current retirees of $141,000 in
fiscal year 2008 and $84,000 in each of fiscal years 2009 through 2012. Benefits payable 1o current employees
vest upon retirement. As a result, the timing of payments and the total annual benefit payment amounts beyond
fiscal year 2012 are uncertain. However, the Company has actuarially determined the present value of all future
benefit payments to be $2.0 million as of August 31, 2007.

The Company is pasty to various claims, legal actions and complaints, including product liability litigation,
arising in the ordinary course of business. With the possible exception of the legal proceedings discussed below,
management is of the opinion that none of these matters is likely to have 2 material adverse effect on the
Company’s financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

On April 19, 2006, a legal action was filed against the Company in the United States Disirict Court, Southern
District of California (Drimmer v. WD-40 Company). After several of the plaintiff’s factual claims were
dismissed by way of motion, the plaintiff filed an amended complaint on September 20, 2006, sceking class
action status and alleging that the Company misrepresented that its 2000 Flushes Bleach and 2000 Flushes Blue
Plus Bleach automatic toilet bowl cleaners (ATBCs) are safe for plumbing systems and unlawfully omitted to
advise consumers regarding the allegedly damaging effect the use of the ATBCs has on toilet parts made of
plastic and rubber. On August 24, 2007 the Company successfully defeated the plaintifi"s attempt 10 have the
case certified as a class uction. The plaintiff has petitioned for permission to appeal the District Court’s decision
and the Company has opposed the petition, If the plaintiff is successful in an appeal and class action certification
is granted in this aforementioned legal action, it is reasonably possible that the outcome could have a material
adverse effect on the operating results, financial position and cash flows of the Company. There is not sufficient
information to estimate the Company’s exposure at this time,

The Company has been named as a defendant in an increasing number of lawsuits brought by a growing group of
attorneys on behalf of individual plaintiffs who assert that exposure 10 products that allegedly contain benzene is
a cause of certain cancers, The Company is one of many defendants in these Jegal proceedings whose products
ase alleged to contain benzene. However, the Company specifies that its suppliers provide constituent ingredients
free of benzene, and the Company believes its products have always been formulated without containing
benzene. Except for self-insured retention amounts applicable to each separately filed lawsuit, the Company
expects that the henzene lawsuits will be adequately covered by insurance and will not have a material impact on
the Company's financial condition or results of operations. The Company is vigorously defending these lawsuits
in an effort to demonstrate conclusively that its products do not contain benzene, and that they have not
contained benzene in prior years. The Company is unable to assess the expected cost of defense of these lawsuits
in future periods. If the number of benzene lawsuits filed against the Company continues Lo increase, it is
reasonably possible that such costs of defense may materiully affect the Company's results of operations and
cash flows in future periods.

As permitted under Delaware law, the Company has agreements whereby it indemnifies senior officers and
directors for certain events or occurrences while the officer or director is, or was, serving at the Company’s
request in such capacity. The maximum potential amount of future payments the Company could be required to
make under these indemnification agreements is unlimited; however, the Company maintains Director and
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Officer insurance coverage that mitigates the Company’s exposure with respect to such obligations. As a result of
the Company’s insurance coverage, management believes that the estimated fair value of these indemnification
agreements is minimal. No liabilities have been recorded for these agreements as of August 31, 2007,

From time to time, the Company enters into indemnificalion agreements with certain contractual parties in the
ordinary course of business, including agreements with lenders, lessors, contract manufacturers, marketing
distributors, customers and certain vendors. All such indemnification agreements are entered inlo in the context
of the particular agreements and are provided in an attempt to properly allocate risk of 1oss in connection with the
consummation of the underlying contractual arrangements. Although the maximom amoun. of future payments
that the Company could be required to make under these indemnificalion agreements is unlimiled, management
believes that the Company maintains adequate levels of insurance coverage to protect the Com jany with respect
to most potential claims arising from such agreements and that such agreements do not otherwise have value
separate and apart from the liabilities incurred in the ordinary course of the Company's busine:s. No liabilities
have been recorded with respect to such indemnification agreements as of August 31, 2007,

9. Income Taxes

The provision for income taxes includes the following:

Year Ended Augu's 31,

2007 2005 2008
Current Tox Provision
Faderal $ 9681000 $10.829000+ § 7,729,000
State 1,432,000 953,000 1.060.000
Foreign 2,062,000 2,393,000 2,705,000
Total current 13,175,000 14,173,000 t1,498.000
Deferred Tax Provision
United States 2,285,000 401,000 3.190,000
Forcign 181,000 172,000 379.000
Total deferred 2,466,000 571,000 3.569,000

515,641,000  $14,745000  $15.067.000

Income before income taxes includes approximately $8,130,000, $6,395,000 and $7.480,000 r:lated to foreign
operations for the fiscal years ended August 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.
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Deferred 1ax assets and deferred tax liabilities are comprised of the following:

! As of August 31,
2007 2006
Deferred Tux Assets

Accrucd payroll and related expenses $ 69000 § 697,000
State income taxes paid 287,000 233,000
Accounts reccivable 778,000 929,000
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 2,134,000 2.098.000
Deferred employee benefits and other tong-term liabilities 760,000 668,000
Stock-based compensation expense 953,000 494,000
Net operating loss 203,000 120,000
Other 453,000 $40.000
Valuation allowance (162,000} —

Total deferred tax assets 6,096,000 5,779,000

Deferred Tax Liabilities

Property, plant and equipment, net (154.000) (198,000)
Amertization of tax goodwill and intangibles (16,529,000  (13,551,000)
(nvestment in low income housing partnerships (786,000) (813,000}
tnvestment in VML partnership (285.000) (323,000)
Other (198.000) (174,000}
'Tota!l deferred tax liabilitics (17,956.0000  (15.059.000)
Net deferred tax liabilities $(11.860,0000 § (9,280,000)

As of August 31, 2007, the Company had foreign and state net operating loss (NOL) carryforwards of
approximately $492,000 and $595,000, respectively, which begin to expire in fiscal years 2013 and 2014. The
foreign net operating loss created a deferred tax asset of approximately $162,000. Utilization of this deferred tax
assel is dependent upon the generation of future taxable income in this jurisdiction. At this time, management has
concluded that it is not “more likely than not™ that this will occur, and accordingly, has placed a valuation
allowance against this deferred tax asset. In the current fiscal year, the Company used state NOL carryforwards
of $1,389,000.

A reconciliation of the stawtory federal income tax rate to the Company’s effective tax rate follows for the fiscal
years ended August 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005:

Year Ended August 3,
2007 2006 2008

Arount computed at U.S. statutory federal tax rate $16,511,000  $15000,000  $15,003,000
Siate income 1axes, net of federal benefit 1,083,000 1,010,000 654,000
Low income housing and research and experimentation credits (106,000} (177,000) (474,000)
Benefit from qualified domestic production deduction (268,000) (218.000) —
Benehit from extra territorial income deductions (54,000) (212,000) (211,000)
Benefit from municipal bond interest (435,000) (106.000) -
Effect of foreign operations (815,000) (362,000) (141.000)
Other (275,000} (189,000) 236,000

$15.641,000  $14,746.000  $15.067.000

The Company has provided for U.S. income taxes and foreign withholding taxes on the undistributed earnings of
certain foreign subsidiaries not indefinitely reinvested. As of August 31, 2007, the Company has not provided for
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U.S. income taxes and foreign withholding taxes on $33,113.000 of undistributed earmings of certain foreign
subsidiaries indefinitely reinvested outside of the U.S. The amount of unrecognized deferved 1).S. income tax
liability would substantially be offset by unrecognized foreign tax credits that would be avail:ble to reduce a
large portion of the U.S. liability.

In June 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued FASB Interpretation No. 48 (FIN 48),
“Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes — an interpretation of FASB Statement No. 105" FIN 48 seeks to
reduce the significant diversity in practice associated with recognition and measurement in thz accounting for
income taxes. It applies to all tax positions accounted for in accordance with Statement of Firancial Accounting
Standards No. 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes.” FIN 48 is effective for fiscal years buginning after
December 15, 2006. The Company will adopt this interpretation as required beginning Sepieraber 1, 2007.
Management is currently evaluating the impact that the implementation of FIN 43 may bave on the Company’s
consolidated results of operations and financial position.

10. Stock-based Compensation

Effective September 1, 2005, the Company began recording compensation expense associatedt with stock options
in accordance with SFAS No. 123R, “Share-Based Payment.” Prior to September 1, 2003, the Company
accounted for stock-based compensation related to stock options under the recognition and mzasurement
principles of Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25; therefore, the Company measired compensation
expense for its stock option plan using the intrinsic value method, that is, as the excess, if any, of the fair market
value of the Company’s stock at the grant date over the aimount required to be paid to acquire the stock, and
provided the disclosures required by SFAS Nos. 123 and 148. The Company adopted the modified prospective
transition method provided under SFAS No. 123R, and as a result, did not retroactively adjust results from prior
periods. Under this transition method, compensation expense associated with stock options recognized in fiscal
years 2007 and 2006 includes: 1) expense related 1o the remaining unvested portion of all stock option awards
granted prior to September 1, 2005, based on the grant date fair value estimated in accordance: with the original
provisions of SFAS No. 123: and 2) expense related to all stock option awards granted subsetuent 1o

September 1, 2005, based on the grant date fair value estimated in accordance with the provisions of SFAS

No. 123R.

In November 2003, the FASB issued FASB Staff Position (FSP) No. FAS [23R-3, “Transiticn Election Related
to Accounting for the Tax Effects of Share-Based Payment Awards,” to provide an alternate iransition method
(“short-cut”” or “simplified” method) for the implementation of SFAS No. 123R. This FSP provides that
companies may elect o use a specified short-cut method to calculate the historical pool of windfall tax benefits
upon adoption of SFAS No. 123R. This method comprises (a} a computational component thit establishes a
beginning balance of the additional paid-in-capital pool (“APIC pool”) related 10 employee stock-based
compensation and (b) a simplified method to determine the subsequent impact on the APIC pool of employee
awards that are fully vested and outstanding upon the adoption of SFAS No. 123R. The Company clected the
short-cut method as set forth in this FSP to determine its APIC pool. For the fiscal year endec August 31, 2007,
the Company determined that it does have a pool of windfall 1ax benefits,

The adoption of SFAS No. 123R also resulted in certain changes to the Company’s accounting for its restricted
stock awards, which is discussed below in more detail.
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As a result of the adoption of SFAS No. 123R, the Company’s net income included $1.8 million of compensation
expense for each of the fiscal years ended August 3, 2007 and 2006; and $0.6 million and $0.5 million of
income tax benefits in fiscal years ended August 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively, related to the Company’s stock
options. The compen;ation expense related to all of the Company’s stock-based compensation arrangements is
recorded as a component of selling, general and administrative expenses, consistent with the classification of the
cash compensation paid to the related option holder. Prior to the Company's adoption of SFAS No. 123R, the
Company presented tax benefits resulting from the exercise of stock aptions as cash flows from operating
activities on the Company’s consolidated statements of cash flows. SFAS No. 123R requires that cash flows
resulting from tax deductions in excess of the cumulative compensation cost recognized for options exercised
(excess tax benefits) be classified as cash inflows from financing activities and cash outflows from operating
activities.

The Company issues new shares upon the exercise of stock options and the issuance of restricted stock. |
Stock Options

At August 31, 2007. the Company had one stock option plan. Under the Company’s current stock option plan, the ' 1
Board of Directors may grant options to purchase up to 4,480,000 shares of the Company’s common stock to i
officers, key emplovees and non-employee dircctors of the Company. Al August 31, 2007, options for 1,022,667

shares remained available for future grant under the plan. Options cancelled due to forfeiture or expiration relurn

to the pool available for gram. The plan is administered by the Bourd of Directors or ifs designees and provides

that options granted under the plan will be exercisable at such times and under such conditions as may be

determined by the Board of Directors at the time of grant of such option, however options may not be granted for

terms in excess of 12n years. Options outstanding under the plan have been granted with immediate vesting,

vesting after one year and vesling over a period of three years. Compensation expense related to stock options

granted is recognized ratably over the service vesting period for the entire option award. The total number of

stock option award: expected to vest is adjusted by estimated forfeiture rates. The terms of the plan provide for

the granting of options at an exercise price not less than 100 percent of the fair market value of the stock at the

date of grant, as determined by the closing market value stock price on the grant date. The exercise price of all

options granied during the fiscal years ended August 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005 was greater than or equal to the

market value on the date of grant and, accordingly, no stock-based compensation expense for such options is

reflected in net income for fiscal year 2003,

The estimated fair value of each option award granted was determined on the date of grant using the Black-
Scholes option valuation model with the following weighted-average assumptions for option grants during the
fiscal years ended August 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005:

Yeur Ended August 3L,
2007 2006 2008
Risk-free interest raie 4.70% 4.34% 2.950%
Expected volatility of common stock 23.89% 25.11% 41.35%
Expected dividend yield 2.81% 3.22% 2.88%
Expected option emm 491 years  485years 348 years

The computation of the expected term is based on a weighted average calculation combining the average life of
options that have already been exercised or cancelled with the estimated life of all unexercised options. The
increase in the expected term in fiscal years 2007 and 2006 compared to fiscal year 2005 is due 10 anticipated
lower volatility in the future and to a change in the mix of employees receiving slock option awards. The
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expected volatility is based on the historical volatility of the Company's stock. For option grants duriag the fiscal
years ended August 31, 2007 and 2006, the expected volatility computation is based on the average of the
volatility over the most recent one-year period, the most recent period commensurate with the expected option
term and WD-40) Company’s long-term mean reversion volatility. For option grants during the fiscal -/ear ended
August 31, 20085, the expected volatility computation is based on the volatility over the five-year perind prior to
the date of grant of such prior year options. Beginning in fiscal year 2006, the Company revised its vclatility
calculation method to include consideration of both long-term and short-term volatility measures in aldition to
volatility over the period commensurate with the expected option term. The Company expects this revised
methodology to be a better predictor of future volatility. The risk-free interest rate is based on the implied yield
on a U.S. Treasury constant maturity with a remaining term equal to the expected term of the option, “he
expected dividend yield is based on the projected annual dividend payment per share, divided by the s:ock price
at the grant date.

A summary of the status of the Company’s stock option plan as of August 31, 2007, 2006 and 2003 and of
changes in options outstanding under the plan during the three years ended August 31, 2007 is as follows:

Weighted-Avemge

Welghted-A vernge Remsining
Exercise Price Coutractual Term ApRregale
Number of Shares per Share (In years) Intrinsic Yalue

Options outstanding at August 3], 2004 1.269.920 525.57

Options granted 276,650 $27.80

Options excercised (128,567) $22.08

Options forfeited or expired (36107 $28.20
Options outstanding al August 31, 2005 1,381,896 $26.27
Options vested and exercisable at August 31, 2005 881,871 $25.17

Opiions granted 247.000 $27.35

Options exercised (282.159) 524 87

Options forfeited or expired (28.815) $29.04
Options outstanding at August 31, 2006 L3172 $526.71
Opiions vested and exercisable at August 31, 2006 870,270 $26.16

Options granted 301,700 $35.63

Options exercised (368,735) $26.45

Options forfeited or expired (12310 $32.29
Options outstanding at August 31, 2007 1,238,574 52891 6.79 $7.260.000
Options vested and exercisable at August 31, 2007 767.516 $2692 572 $6,029.000

The Company’s determination of fair value is affected by the Company’s stock price as well as a nuinber of
assumplions that require judgment. The weighted-average fair value of all options granted during the fiscal years
ended August 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, estimated as of the grant date using the Black-Scholes option valuation
model, was $7.65, $5.61 and $7.28 per option, respectively, The total intrinsic value of options exercised was
$3.4 miilion, $2.0 million, and $1.2 million during the fiscal years ended Augusi 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005,
respectively.

As of August 31, 2007, there was $1.8 miltion of unamortized compensation cost related to non-vested stock
option awards, which is expected 1o be recognized over a remaining weighted-average vesting period of . .8
years,
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Cash received from stock option exercises for the fiscal years ended August 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005 was $9.8
million, $7.0 million and $2.8 million, respectively. The income tax benefits from stock option exercises tolaled
$1.0 million, $0.6 million and $0.4 million for the fiscal years ended August 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005,
respectively.

For stock options granted prior (o the adoption of SFAS No. 123R, the following table illustrates the pro forma
effect on net income and earnings per common share as if the Company had applied the fair value recognition
provisions of SFAS No. 123 in determining stock-based compensation for awards under the plan:

Ycar Ended

Augusi 31, 2005
Net income. as reponed $27,798,000
Deduct: Total stock-based compensation expense deicrmined under fair value-based method for all awards, net of related tax
cffects (1.229,000) I
Pro forma net income 526,569,000 '
Earnings per common share:
Basic - as reported 3 1.67
Basic - pro forma s 1.60
Daluted - gs reported 3 1.65
Diluted - pro forma $ .59

Restricted Stock

Pursuant to the Company’s current Amended and Restated WD-40 Company 1999 Non-Employee Director
Restricted Stock Plan (the Plan) and the director compensation policy in effect for 2007, restricied shares are
issued to non-employee directors of the Company WD-40 Company in lieu of cash compensation of up to
$32,000 according 10 an election made by each director by November of the prior year. A direcior who held
shares of the Compuny having a value of at least $50,000 may have elected to receive his or her annual director’s
fee entirely in cash. Otherwise, directors would have elected to receive restricted stock in lieu of cash in the
amount of $5,500, $11,000, $16,500, $22,000, $27,500 or $32,000. The restricied shares were issued in
accordance with the director’s election as seon as practicable afier the first day of March. The number of shares
issued was equal Lo the amount of compensation paid in shares divided by 90% of the closing price of the
Company’s shares as of the first business day of March or other date of issuance of such shares. Compensation
expense related 10 restricted stock issued is recognized ratably over the service vesting period. Restricted shares
issued 10 a director do not become vested for resale for a period of five years or until the director’s retirement
from the Board following the director’s 65 birthday. Unless a director has reached age 65. the shares are subject
to forfeiture if, during the five-year vesting period, the director resigns from service as a director. During the
years ended August 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, the Company issued 3,896, 6,099 and 4,828 shares of restricted
stock, respectively.

In accordance with SFAS No. 123R, the fair value of restricted stock awards is estimated based on the closing
market value stock price on the date of share issuance. The total number of restricted stock awards expected to
vest is adjusted by estimated forfeiture rates. As of August 31, 2007, there was $286,000 of unamortized
compensation cost related to non-vested restricted stock awards, which is expected 10 be recognized over a
remaining weighted-average vesting period of 3.0 years. The unamonized compensalion cost refated to
non-vested restricted stock awards was recorded as unearned slock-based compensation in shareholders” equity a1
August 31, 2005. As part of the adoption of SFAS No. 123R, such unamortized compensation cost was
reclassified as a component of paid-in-capital in fiscal year 2006.
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A summary of the status of the Company's restsicted stock awards as of August 31, 2007 and of changes in
restricted stock outstanding under the plan during the three years ended August 31, 2007 is as follow.s:

‘Weighted-Average
Number of Grant Date Fair
Shares Value per Share
Restricted stock awards outstanding ar August 31, 2004 11,091 52484
Shares issued 4828 $32.62
Shares vested . (3.958; $26.16
Shares forfeited —_ s —
Restricted slock awards outstanding at August 31, 2005 11.961 $28.87
Shares issued 6,006 $30.32
Shares vested (200) $30.32
Shares forfeited — $ —
Restricted stock awards outstanding at Augusi 31, 2006 17.859 32035
Shares issued 1.896 $32.08
Shares vesied (2,718) $24.40
Shares forfeited — 5 —
Restricted stock awands outstanding m Auguss 31, 2007 19,037 $30.61

11. Other Benefit Plans

The Company has a WD-40 Company Profit Sharing/401(k) Plan and Trust (the Profit Sharing/401(k) Plan)
whereby regular U.S. full-time employees who have completed certain minimum service requirements can defer
a portion of their income through contributions to a trust. The Profit Sharing/401(k) Plan provides for Company
contributions 10 the trust, as approved by the Board of Directors, as follows: 1) matching contributions to each
participant up to 50% of the first 6.6% of compensation contributed by the participant; 2) fixed non-eleztive
contributions in the amount equal to 10% of eligible compensation; and 3} a discretionary non-¢leclive
contribution in an amount to be determined by the Board of Directors up to 5% of eligible compensatio. The
Company's contributions are subject to overall employer contribution limits and may not exceed the: amount
deductible for income tax purposes. The Profit Sharing/401(k) Plan may be amended or discontinued at any time
by the Company.

Total Company contribution expense for the WD-40 Company Profit Sharing/401(k) Plan during the: fis:al years
ended August 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005 was approximately $2,219,000, $2,117,000 and 31,781,000, respectively.

The Company’s international subsidiaries have similar benefit plan arrangements, dependent upon the tecal
applicable laws and regulations. The plans provide for Company contributions to an appropriate third party plan,
as approved by the subsidiary’s Board of Directors. Company contribution expense relaled to the international
plans during the fiscal years ended August 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005 was approximately $967,000, $£33.000 and
$754,000, respectively.

The Company provides fixed retirement benefits 1o certain of its key executives under a supplemental eniployee
retirement plan. The accumulated benefit obligation was $2,030,000 and $1,794,000 at August 31, 2007 and
2006, respectively, which is recorded as a component of deferred employee benefits and other long-term
liabitities on the Company’s consolidated balance sheets. The Company has historically recorded this benefit
obligation as a long-term liability on its consolidated balance sheets. As a resull, the implementation of SFAS
No. 158, “Employers’ Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement Plans-an amendment of
FASB Statements No. 87, 88, 106, and 132R,” did not have a material impact on the Company’s consolidated
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financial statements. The service and interest costs amounted to approximately $235,000, $215,000 and $205,000
for the fiscal years ended August 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively. During each of the fiscal years ended
August 31, 2007, 2006 and 2008, the plan paid benefits of approximately $141,000. A weighied-average discount
rate of 6.5% and a weighted-average rate of compensation increase of 4.0% were used to calculate the
accumulated benefit obligation and service costs for each of the fiscal years ended August 31, 2007, 2006 and
2005.

12. Business Segments and Foreign Operations

The Company evaluates the performance of its segments and allocates resources (o them based on sales,
operating income and expected return. The Company is organized based on geographic location. Segment data
does not include inter-segment revenues and incorporates costs from corporate headquarters into the America’s
segment, without allocation to other segments. The Company’s segments are run independently, and as a result,
there are few costs that could be considered only costs from headquarters that would qualify for allocation to
ather segments. The most significant portions of cosls from headquarters relate to the Americas segment both as
a percentage of time and sales. Therefore, any allocation to other segments would be arbitrary.

The tables below present information about reportable segments and net sales for the fiscal years ended
August 31:

The Asias
Americas Europe Pacifle Totat
2007
NEESAlES « .ot e e $187.146000  $96.485000  $24.185000  $307.816.000
Income from operations . ........cccveiucinnnnnns § 28980,000  SI6,711.000  $ 32325000 $ 496,000
Depreciation and amortization expense ............. $ 2146000 $ 1,370,000 0§ 133000 5 3.645.000
IIERESE INCOME L. iv vt veeetraanrevrnrnneanns $ 1466000 $ 593000 $ 34000 $ 2093000
T e e $ 4008000 8 — $ 13000 $ 4111000
TOlal ASSeIS .. ..t i e e $208.456,000 366259000  § 8471000  $283.186.000
006
Netsales oot e e $186.769.000 579,101,000 $21,046.,000 $286.916.000
Income from Operations .. ....vuiviirrriiiaininas $ 28.714000  $13.088,000  § 4220000 § 46,022.000
Depreciation and amonization €XPense ............. $ 2124000 $ 1250000 § 93000 S 3467000
IEreS INCOMIE ..\ v it eieiiisrannarsrmens $ LIS3000 § 223000 $ IR000 § 1,394,000
INGETESEERPENSE . . .. .o iieiiiie i S 4897000 § —_ s — $ 4.3897.000
TOlASSELS ...t iiaaraaas $208,261.000 $55.274.000 $ 4,940,000 $268,475.000
2005
Netsales .. ... . i i rrenneeans $176,106,000 $68,353,000 $18.768.000 $263,227.000
Income from operations ............. P $ 30706000  $12.261.000  $ 4453000 § 47,420,000
Depreciation and amortization expense . ............ $ 1682000 §$ 1238000 § 87.000 § 3.007.000
IDLErESLINCOME .. ou v veirnrne i ine e ininnnanias $ B52000 § 161,000 3 20000 5 1034000
Interest eXpense ., ... ... e $ 6167000 3 — H — $ 6,167,000
TOIASSES .- oeoeie et i $203,716,000  $45399.000  $ 5,138,000  $254,253.000
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Net Sakes
2007 2006 2005
Product Line Information
LU NS o oot ittt i e e e re s $£216,300,000  $190,468,000 $174,084,000
Houschold products .. ..o ii e i iiiicn it ieaie e iinenannns 85,106,000 89,822,000 82,237.000
Hand clemners .ot e e 6.410,000 6,626,000 6,906,000

$307.816000 5286916000  $263.227.000

Geographical Information

United States . ... e i e, $160.904.000  $161.624,000 $154,369,000
United Kingdom ... ... it it ira ettt cinenninas 29.127.000 25,432,000 22,318,000
Other intemationzl .. ..ottt e et itaieianeiannrennn 117,785,000 09,860,000 86,340,000

$307816.000  $286.916,000  $263.127,000

Non-carrenl Assels

2007 2004
Geographical Information
United S1a1ES ... ittt i i $126,105000  $126,917,000
Intermational .. .....e i e 26,510,000 26,013,000

$152,615,000  $152.935.000

13. Subsequent Events

On October 4, 2007, the Company’s Board of Directors declared a cash dividend of $0.25 per share payible on
QOctober 31, 2007 to shareholders of record on October 18, 2007,
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